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REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF JOHN R. DENMAN
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0816)

INTRODUCTION
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND POSITION WITH APS.

My name is John R. Denman. I am the Vice President of Fossil Generation for

Arizona Public Service Company (“APS” or “Company”).

WHAT IS YOUR PROFESSIONAL BACKGROUND?

I have worked for APS for more than 40 years in various positions relating to
fossil generation. I have been the Vice President for Fossil Generation since
1997. From 1986 to 1997, I was the Director of Fossil Generation, with the same
basic responsibilities I have as Vice President of Fossil Generation. Prior to
1986, I held various positions within fossil generation, including Plant Manager

for the Four Corners Power Plant.

DID YOU FILE DIRECT TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING?

No.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY IN THIS .
PROCEEDING?

I am responding to the testimony by John Antonuk regarding the examination

and evaluation of the Company’s procurement and management of fuel and

energy conducted by the Arizona Corporation Commission’s (“Commission™)

Utilities Division Staff. I willA focus on issues and recommendations relating to

coal procurement and plant operations. APS witnesses Don Brandt and Tom

Carlson will address issues and recommendations relating to gas commodity

procurement, gas transportation, and hedging.
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HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED BEFORE THIS COMMISSION?
No.

SUMMARY

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY.

APS was pleased that Mr. Antonuk has confirmed that the Company
appropriately handles fuel and energy procurement and effectively operates its
fossil generating facilities, and that the recommendations are intended to
improve already-appropriate systems and operations. We considered all of Mr.
Antonuk’s recommendations in those areas and agree with most of them. In
several cases, such as with the process for handling coal weights, we already had
addressed or were addressing the recommendations at the time of the audit. In
other cases, such as the inventory target at the Cholla Power Plant and the coal
contract management process, we agree that the suggested changes will improve
our systems, and we will implement those recommendations. Finally, with
respect to some of the recommendations, we believe we already had in place the
suggested changes but that perhaps we did not adequately explain the

Company’s process during the audit process.

FUEL CONTRACT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

MR. ANTONUK OFFERS VARIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS
REGARDING FUEL AND ENERGY PROCUREMENT AND
MANAGEMENT. DID YOU REVIEW THOSE RECOMMENDATIONS?

Yes, and 1 agree with Mr. Antonuk’s overall conclusion that the Company
handled these areas “in a manner that produced appropriate costs during the

April through December 2005 peribd,” the period covered by the fuel audit.




DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. ANTONUK’S RECOMMENDATIONS
REGARDING FUEL CONTRACT MANAGEMENT AND
ADMINISTRATION?

In general, yes. Mr. Antonuk offers a few recommendations regarding the
Company’s fuel contract management processes that in general APS finds to be
appropriate. In fact, the Company already was implementing several of those
recommendations when Mr. Antonuk’s firm, Liberty Consulting, conducted its
assessment. The following paragraphs summarize the status and response to the
contract management recommendations relating to the Company’s coal

acquisitions. Mr. Carlson will respond to those recommendations relating to the

acquisition of the Company’s gas supply.

) Develop a complete set of procedures related to the management and

administration of coal contracts: The APS Fuel Procurement Department

will review its procedures for fuel contract management and
administration and, as appropriate, incorporate additional detail to reflect

the processes used.

° Streamline the procedures for handling of information on coal weights:

APS agrees that the manual process used for handling coal weight
information for the coal sample analysis should be ree\;aluated for
possible automation. Mr. Antonuk’s recommendation that APS improve
the automation of the data entry of weight information from the coal belt
scales at the Four Comers and Cholla Power Plants appears to have merit.
APS will evaluate the cost of automating these activities and implement

those changes are found to result in a positive cost benefit.
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Revise the inventory target for Regular Coal at the Cholla Power Plant

from 25 days of supply to 35 days of supply: As Mr. Antonuk testifies,

the Cholla Power Plant practice has been to carry a coal inventory in
excess of the lower inventory farget. Mr. Antonuk concluded that the
Plant’s practice was appropriate and that the farget should be revised to
reflect that practice. APS Fuel Procurement will work with Cholla Power
Plant management to review the inventory target and adjust it to reflect

the appropriate inventory practice.

Conduct a comprehensive analysis of gas purchasing and management

under El Paso Natural Gas’s revised rate structure, and report to the

Commission: Mr. Antonuk clarified in discussions with APS that the
Company has taken appropriate steps to date to address pipeline

transportation cost concerns. To that end, APS takes a comprehensive

approach to investigating alternatives for increasing the Company’s

options relating to gas transportation. With respect to infrastructure
needs, APS has worked with both Kinder Morgan and TransWestern
Pipeline to encourage the construction of a new pipeline to serve Arizona.
In addition, as Mr. Carlson discusses in his testimony, APS continues to

examine options relating to natural gas storage and liquefied natural gas

(‘GLNG”)'

Mr. Antonuk’s recommendation, therefore, focuses on encouraging the
Company to continue that proactive approach in addressing these issues
in light of continuing developments relating to the El Paso Natural Gas
rates. As Mr. Antonuk discusses in his testimony, it will be important for

APS to continue to evaluate options relating to natural gas transport. APS
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will conduct the recommended “analysis of gas purchasing and
management under [El Paso’s] revised rate structure” and will submit a
confidential report to the Commission summarizing its analysis within

one year of the decision in this docket.

PLANT OPERATIONS

MR. ANTONUK ALSO OFFERS SEVERAL RECOMMENDATIONS
RELATING TO APS PLANT OPERATIONS. DO YOU HAVE ANY
RESPONSES TO THOSE RECOMMENDATIONS?

Yes, I do. Although I agree with some of Mr. Antonuk’s recommendzitions, I

believe that other recommendations may have been based on an inaccurate or

incomplete understanding of the processes APS currently uses to evaluate plant T

operations.

LET’S START WITH MR. ANTONUK’S RECOMMENDATION THAT
APS “FOCUS ON OPTIMIZING THE PERFORMANCE” OF THE
REDHAWK AND WEST PHOENIX CC5 UNITS AS THEY TRANSITION
INTO APS. DO YOU HAVE ANY RESPONSE TO MR. ANTONUK’S
RECOMMENDATIONS?

Yes. First, however, 1 would like to reiterate that Mr. Antonuk found that APS
“has appropriately recognized the shift in the market paradigm brought about”
by the movement of the Redhawk and West Phoenix CC5 units into APS. As Mr.
Antonuk noted, those units have experienced “representative outage frequency

and duration.”

APS continuously focuses on optimizing the performance of all of its fossil
generating units, including Redhawk and West Phoenix CC35. Because of that
focus, the transition of these gas-fired units into an intermediate dispatch

operation has gone very well overall. As with any generating unit that initially is
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designed for base-load operation and then changed to intermediate duty, certain

systems and equipment have required re-engineering for the new duties.

With respect to Redhawk, many of the start-up and unit operational issues
already have been resolved. For example, several steam by-pass valves have
been replaced and relocated, additional generator endturn blocking has been
added, and larger start-up drains have been added. Because of these efforts,
among others, Redhawk is operating at a combined equivalent availability factor

(“EAF”) of 96.5% for 2006 year-to-date.

At West Phoenix CC5, APS also has addressed operational and start-up issues.
Many of the by-pass and feedwater regulating valves have been replaced, and
the remaining are scheduled to be replaced during planned future outages. The

rotor air cooler system has been redesigned and heater retubing is scheduled for

‘October 2006. Like 'other units throughout the industry with the same turbine

design, West Phoenix CC5 has experienced some problems with the low
pressure steam turbine last stage blades (“L-O Blades”). These L.-O Blades are
the largest turbine blades in each unit. In addition to requiring frequent unit
outages for blade inspection, the unit must be operated in a manner that results
in higher unit heat rate. We anticipate installing a newly designed blade in the
first quarter of 2008. Because of these efforts, among others, West Phoenix
CC5’s year-to-date EAF is 91.6%.

MR. ANTONUK ALSO RECOMMENDS THAT APS “PREPARE AND
EXECUTE AN ACTION PLAN THAT WILL IMPROVE ECONOMIC
EVALUATIONS RELATED TO MINIMIZATION OF OUTAGE TIME.”
DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT RECOMMENDATION?

We believe APS already has such a process in place. APS schedules required

planned outages using a production cost model, which produces the least cost
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replacement power for the system. All scheduled outages at APS base-load and
intermediate units are planned using a critical path planning tool to minimize
outage time. The Company schedules planned outages to obtain the shortest
duration to minimize replacement power cost. Planned outages for peaking units
are scheduled during off-peak times to ensure that scheduled work is performed

at the least cost.

Forced outages on the intermediate and peaking units are worked based on value
to the system, replaéement power cost at the time of the outage, and forecasted
near term anticipated dispatch of the unit. We perform an assessment of each
unit to determine options for extending the time between required outages. For
example, we may install upgraded materials or change equipment design to
reduce wear. With respect to outage duration, we work to reduce outage time by
making sure éppropriate resources (such as labor, tools, parts, contract support)
are available so the outage is as short as possible. ’

ALTHOUGH MR. ANTONUK’S RECOMMENDATION IS BROADLY
STATED, THE ASSOCIATED CONCLUSION IN THE AUDIT REPORT

- FOCUSES ON APS’S REFLECTION OF NET REPLACEMENT POWER

COSTS IN ITS ECONOMIC EVALUATIONS. DO YOU HAVE ANY
COMMENT ON THAT ISSUE?

I absolutely agree with Mr. Antonuk that net replacement power cost should be
considered in economic evaluations relatihg to spare parts and inventory and, in
fact, APS considers those costs already. At the Company’s intermediate gas
plants, capital spare parts are justified and purchased for inventory based on an
economic evaluation using differential fuel cost and projected loss of generation.
Major spare parts are evaluated for consideration to stock (i.e., kept as
inventory) based on expected lead time to purchase, expected refurbish time for

the maintenance spare, and the expected time between planned maintenance.
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With respect to replacement combustion hardware, for example, one set of spare
combustion hardware costs well over $8 million dollars, and the Company has
determined that one set of spares for the Redhawk units and a second set of
spares for West Phoenix is reasonable and appropriate. In addition, the
Company’s Long Term Service Agreements (“LTSAs”) guarantee that APS will
be provided with needed combustion parts beyond our in-house inventory levels

without any delay in scheduled or forced outage time.

The Company purchases routine inventory spares based on frequency of need,
risk of failure, and criticality to plant operations. We have evaluated all systems
as both base-load and intermediate load units with the objective of identifying
spare parts and spare equipment needs. Where it is cost effective to do so, spare
parts and equipment have been purchased.

HOW DO YOU RESPOND TO MR. ANTONUK’S RECOMMENDATION
THAT APS EVALUATE THE REPLACEMENT OF BOILER SECTIONS
AT FOUR CORNERS POWER PLANT UNIT #5 AND NAVAJO
GENERATING STATION UNITS #2 AND #3?

Boiler tube leaks on coal fired generating units usually constitute the major
contributor to lost genefation for these tybes and vintage of units. Many factors
influence boiler tube leaks, including boiler design, fuel quality, and age of the
different boiler components, among others. Because APS (for Four Corners) and-
SRP (for Navajo Generating Station) continuously review and research new
applications of boiler maintenance procedures and the use of up-graded

materials to anticipate and reduce boiler tube leaks, APS believes that Mr.

Antonuk’s recommendation already is being met.

APS and SRP each have an integrated boiler tube leak reduction program that

includes inspection and testing to anticipate leaks in addition to procedures to
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determine the root cause of leaks, ensure that repairs are performed properly,
require the development of short and long-term corrective action plans, and
monitor implementation of corrective action plans to assure timely completion.
Based on our comprehensive boiler tube leak reduction program, planned boiler
components replacement is performed at each planned outage. All major
component replacements are based on an estimated remaining life assessment
and economic evaluation of component failure.

MR. ANTONUK ALSO RECOMMENDS THAT APS CONDUCT A
REVIEW OF OPERATOR AND MAINTENANCE ERRORS TO
DETERMINE WHY SUCH ERRORS APPEAR TO OCCUR MORE
FREQUENTLY AT FOUR CORNERS UNIT #3 AND NAVAJO UNIT #3.
HOW DO YOU RESPOND?

It is important to first clarify that operator and maintenance errors at all APS
base-load coal plants and at the Navajo Generating Station, operated by Salt
River Project (“SRP”), already are investigated for root causes. With respect to
the plants that APS operates, I receive daily reports on plant operation and
review monthly plant performance issues with plant fnanagernent. In addition, I
require each coal plant to provide me a quarterly report on all lost generation.
That report also sets out the plant’s corrective action plans to address any issues

identified.

We regularly conduct operational assessments at each of the base-load and
intermediate load plants that APS operates to assure that operators are
knowledgeable and are following good operational practices. Appropriate
corrective action is identified based on investigation findings when a human

performance error occurs. Corrective actions can include training, changes in

- procedures, additional procedures, and/or employee coaching.
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With respect to the Navajo Generating Station, SRP prbvides daily status and
monthly lost generation reports to me, the APS Manager of Technical Services
and the APS Manager of Generation Engineering, both of whom report to me.
APS representatives also attend quarterly Engineering & Operating (“E&O”)
Committee meetings where SRP provides detailed information about Navajo’s
operations, including lost generation events, to all plant owners. SRP also
identifies corrective actions that it has taken or plans to take to address issues

and problems identified.

There were seven human performance errors reported at Four Corners Unit 3 in
2005 - one maintenance and six operations. Of the six operations errors, five
were related to one event. In February 2006, the Company identified the actual
root cause—a faulty check valve. The Company decided not to correct the 2005

data to reflect that these five reported errors were not in fact operator errors.

There were six human performance errors reported at Navajo Unit 3 in 2005. All
were related to unit start up and operator experience. Consistent with the plant’s
root cause policy, each of these events was investigated and appropriate action
taken to help insure that human performance errors are kept to the lowest
possible level. Procedures, employee training, employee coaching, and
operations audits are used to keep human performance errors to the lowest level

possible.

In short, we do not agree that there is any unusual pattern of operator errors at
these two units requiring the suggested special evaluation. The current practice
of root cause analysis of outages with follow up corrective actions, if needed, is

sufficient.

10
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DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. ANTONUK’S RECOMMENDATION
THAT APS “IMPLEMENT FOR WEST PHOENIX #5 THE
REQUIREMENT FOR ROOT CAUSE ANALYSIS WHEN GENERATION
IS LOST”?

I agree with Mr. Antonuk’s endorsement of root cause analysis, but West
Phoenix CCS5 already is required to comply, and does comply, with the same
requirement for root cause analysis that applies to the rest of the Company’s
fossil generating units. In addition, as I indicated above, I meet with the Plant
Manager of each fossil plant monthly to discuss lost generation events. I require
the plants to develop specific Action Plans to address root cause corrective

actions and review them regularly with plant management to assure

implementation.

CONCLUSION

DO YOU HAVE ANY CONCLUDING COMMENTS?

I appreciate Mr. Antonuk’s overall conclusion that APS’s fuel procurement and
plant operations are effective and appropriate, as we have worked hard to have
an effective operation. Any operation can be improved, however, and as I
indicated above, the Company already has in place or is implementing a number
of the recommendations made by Mr. Antonuk. We will continue to implement
those processes. In addition, we will update our analysis of options relating to
gas transportation and provide the Commission with a confidential report on that

analysis within one year after the decision in this proceeding.

DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

Yes, it does.

11
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF PATRICK DINKEL
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0816)

INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND POSITION WITH APS.

My name is Patrick Dinkel. 1 am the Director of Corporate Planning and
Resource Acquisition for Arizona Public Service Company (“APS” or
“Company”). I led the APS team responsible for conducting the 2003 APS
Request for Proposals—Power Supply Resource Proposal for the Procurement
of Generating Capacity (the “2003 RFP”), evaluating the resulting proposals,
negotiating the Asset Purchase Agreement with PPL Sundance Energy, LLC
(“PPL Sundance™), and closing the traﬁsaction that resulted in APS owning the
Sundance Generating Station and associated assets (“Sundance Assets™). T also
conducted the two 2005 RFPs called for by Decision No. 67744 (April 7, 2005)
— one seeking at least 100 MW of renewables and a second all-source
procurement for at least 1000 MW.

WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL Z
BACKGROUND?

I received a Bachelors of Science degree from Marymount College and a
Masters of Business Administration from Northern Arizona University. I joined
APS in 1986. Before becoming Director of Corporate Planning and Resource
Acquisitions in 2004, I was the Manager of Corporate Planning, and the
Manager of Business Unit Analysis and Reporting. Before that, I held various
positions within APS and Pinnacle West Cépital Corporation (*Pinnacle West™),

primarily within the financial planning and budgeting areas.
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Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

A.  APS is seeking to include the Sundance Assets in its rate base. My testimony
explains the validity of the procurement process and the value of the Sundance
Assets for serving APS customers. APS witness Ms. Laura Rockenberger will

discuss the operating income pro forma for the Sundance Assets.

Q. HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED BEFORE THIS COMMISSION?

A. Yes, I have. 1 test-iﬁed in support of APS’ request to acquire the Sundance Assets
in Docket No. E-01345A-04-0407 (“Sundance Acquisition Docket™). My
testimony in that docket addressed the 2003 RFP and the evaluation process that
resulted in the selection of the-PPL Sundance proposal. In addition, I addressed
APS’ proposed financing of the acquisition and provided details relating to the
Accounting Order that APS was requesting. Because it is relevant to the issues

in this rate case application, a copy of my pre-filed direct testimony in the

/ Sundance Acquisition Docket is attached as Attachment PD- 1.

Q. WHAT WAS THE OUTCOME OF THE SUNDANCE ACQUISITION
DOCKET?

A. In Decision No. 67504, (January 20, 2005), the Commission affirmed APS’
ability, subject to applicable regulatory requirements, to buy new generation
assets for native load.! The Commission declined to approve the acquisition
prior to its consideration in a ratemaking proceeding, or to make a determination
as to whether the assets were “used and useful.” The Commission did determine

that the Sundance Assets acquisition satisfied the evidentiary and legal standards

' Subsequent to the decision in the Sundance Acquisition Docket, the Commission issued Decision No. 67744

(April 7, 2005), which imposed certain restrictions on APS’ ability to self-build or acquire new generation.
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necessary to be accorded full cost recovery under traditional cost of service
principles in a future rate proceeding. The Commission also found that the
financing authorizations granted in Decision Nos. 54230 and 55017 were in full
force and effect and could be used for the acquisition of the Sundance Assets. A
specific modification to the Sundance Certificate of Environmental Compliance
was approved as requested. In addition, the Commission held that subject to

specified conditioné, including the approval of the proposed Power Supply

Adjustor (PSA) in the then pending APS rate case, APS was authorized to defer

certain costs of owning, operating, and maintaining the Sundance Assets.

DID APS RECEIVE THE REQUIRED APPROVAL FROM FERC FOR

ITS ACQUISITION OF THE SUNDANCE ASSETS?

Yes. That approval was received by Letter Order on May 6, 2005. I have

attached a copy of FERC’s Order as Attachment PD-2. The sale and purchase

transaction closed on May 13, 2005.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS RATE CASE

DOCKET.

My testimony will demonstrate that:

. APS’ long range forecasts in 2002 and 2003 showed that the Company
would need a significant amount of additional generation resources to
meet iis continued load growth. ‘

. The Company’s ultimate decision to purchase the Sundance Assets was |
based on a fair and appropriate Request for Proposal (“RFP”) process.
The acquisition of the Sundance Assets was analyzed with sound
.economic principles and determined to be a cost effective means of

acquiring critical long-term peaking capacity for our customers. We also
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analyzed the performance of the units and found that they were well

suited for our customers’ needs.

SUNDANCE ASSETS
PLEASE DESCRIBE THE SUNDANCE ASSETS.

The Sundance Generating Station is a 450-megawatt (“MW), natural gas-fired,
simple cycle, peaking electric generating facility located in Pinal County,
approximately five miles southwest of Coolidge, Arizona. The plant began
commercial operation in July 2002. APS acquired the Sundance Assets from
PPL Sundance, which constructed the facility and managed it as a merchant
power plant prior to the sale. Sundance consists of ten 45 MW General Electric
LM6000-PC combustion turbines arranged in pairs, along with five generation
step-up transformers. The plant uses well-known technology with a solid

operational and environmental track record.

WHY DID APS ISSUE AN RFP IN DECEMBER 2003?

APS routinely prepares forecasts of its projected load requirements and
compares them to its available resources, including owned generation and any
long-term purchased power contracts it may have in place. In 2002 and 2003,
lthe Company was forecasting continued load growth that, when compared to the
Company’s existing resources, signaled a need for a significant amount of
additional generation resources. The APS Summer Supply & Demand Balance
Assessment showed that APS would have a resource shortfall by the summer of
2007 of more than 1400 MW. This assessment included the 1700 MW of
Arizona assets owned by Pinnacle West Energy Corporation (“PWEC”), which
APS proposed to have included in its rate base in its then-pending rate case. APS

issued the 2003 RFP in December 2003 to explore options for meeting the
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resource shortfall and to take advantage of any potentially favorable market

purchase alternatives.

WHAT FACTORS DID APS CONSIDER IN ISSUING THE RFP?

Timing was a major consideration. APS saw the potential for favorable prices in
the near-term given the wholesale market at the time and reports that some of
the resources in the area may be for sale. APS felt that it was important to
determine quickly whether the Corﬁpany could procure long-term resources for
its customers from the competitive wholesale market at a reasonable price. The

timing of a new long-term resource acquisition was another consideration.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE RFP ISSUED BY APS.

The 2003 RFP identified APS’ projected capacity shortfall of 1447 MW in 2007,
with growth of approximately 300 MW per year. APS expressed a willingness to
consider either long-term purchase power agreements or asset ownership. The
2003 RFP specifically. sought proposals that would deliver a power supply to
APS commencing in the summer of 2007. ‘
WHAT WAS THE PROCESS THE COMPANY USED TO EVALUATE
WHETHER THE SUNDANCE ASSETS WERE THE BEST
GENERATION OPTION FOR APS CUSTOMERS?

A team of experienced employees from various APS departments, as well as
legal counsel and outside experts, reviewed the proposals submitted in resbonse
to the 2003 RFP and reported their conclusions. The defined objective was to
identify any issue that warranted consideration or that could have a material

impact on a transaction.

The Company evaluated the economics of those proposals that were in

contention for further consideration by computing and comparing the installed
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cost of each asset sale proposal, the levelized busbar cost of each bid, and the

system revenue requirement impact of each bid.

The' installed cost, including any interest capitalized during construction, is

usually the investment included in a utility’s rate base. APS calculated the

" installed cost of each asset sale proposal to provide a snapshbt of how each

alternative would impact customers. This analysis provided an indication of the
fixed costs associated with each option. Additional discussion of the installed

cost analysis is included in Attachment PD-1.

The busbar cost is the revenue required to cover the costs of owning and
operating the plant (including fuel and cost of capital) or of purchasing power
under a PPA, divided by the anticipated MWh output at the plant’s “bus” or the
MWh purchase. A “levelized” busbar cost is the busbar cost over the period
evaluated (e.g., 30 years) stated in constant dollars. In completing the busbar
analysis, APS incorporated information submitted with each proposal along with
equipment manufacturer data and standard financial and capacity factor
assumptions. Further detail on the busbar cost economic analysis is included in

Attachment PD-1.

The system revenue requirement cost study we employed calculated the present
value cost for each alternative of providing power to customers, including the
cost of fuel, purchased power and ownership. APS evaluated the Sundance
Generaﬁng Station against alternative new-build simple cycle cases and
purchases from the wholesale market. The revenue requirement results were
consistent with the busbar results, shdwing that the acquisition of the Sundance

Generating Station produced present value saving of $79 million to $154 million
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compared to the other available alternatives. Additional discussion of this

analysis is included in Attachment PD-1.

Set out below is a table summarizing select information relating to Sundance

and other selected options.

Simple Cycle Technology Comparison
Sundance  New New
LM6000  LM6000 TEA
Installed Cost ($/kW) 475 762 695
Summer Output (MW) 40 40 76
Heat Rate (BtwkWh) = 9,855 9,855 12,125
Quick Start (<10 Min.) Y Y N
Busbar Cost ($ per MWh) 151 177 182

WHY DID APS SELECT THE PPL SUNDANCE PROPOSAL?

APS celected to pursue the PPL Sundance proposal because the Company’s
analysis demonstrated that purchasing the Sundance Assets was the least cost
means for APS to acquire critical long-term peaking capacity. Also, because the
units can ramp up qﬁickly, they provide cost-effective reserves for APS’ system
reliability. The generation can start ﬁp in less than ten minutes from a warm or
cold standby condition. Sundance was the only constructed or permitted simple-
cycle plant that was available in the Arizona market, and it was acquired for
peaking capacity at a discounted price that will benefit APS customers far into
the future.

WHAT WERE STAFF’'S COMMENTS IN THE SUNDANCE

ACQUISITION DOCKET REGARDING THE SUITABILITY OF APS’
ACQUISITION OF THE SUNDANCE ASSETS?
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Staff made several particularly relevant observations during the four month
period that the filing .was under evaluation.® First, Staff agreed that there were
“positive aspects” to APS’ acquisition of the Sundance facility, including
“increased reliability,” “[i]ncreased operational flexibility” and that “the plant
would be acquired through a fair and open RFP.” Second, Staff noted that the
Sundance Plant was “well situated to supi)ort the peaking needs of Arizona
customers in Phoenix and Tucson areas.” Third, Staff recognized that the
“Sundance units’ quick start capability and grid location would provide APS
with additional options in responding to system disturbances . . . and would
provide flexibility in meeting system reserve requirements.” Fourth, Staff
pointed out that “[i]n the normal course of business, [Sundance] will displace
older less efficient units [such as Ocotillo, West Phoenix, Saguaro and Yucca

combustion turbines] in the dispatch priority.® Finally, Staff noted:

According to the APS busbar cost, the PPL Sundance
purchase is a lower cost alternative to new construction of
comparable plants. The cost comparison does not reflect
some additional advantages. For instance, PPL Sundance is
operational, has been reliable, and has an acquisition cost set
forth in the asset purchase agreement that cannot be
exceeded. In contrast, construction of a new plant can have

5

Testimony of Matthew Rowell, Docket No. E-01345A-04-0407, Hearing Transcript at 356.
Testimony of Matthew Rowell, Docket No. E-01345A-04-0407, Hearing Transcript at 364-65.
Direct Testimony of William Gehlen, Docket No. E-01345A-04-0407, at 5.

Direct Testimony of William Gehlen, Docket No. E-01345A-04-0407, at 5-6; see also, Testimony of

Matthew Rowell, Dacket No. E-01345A-04-0407, Hearing Transcript at 365-66.

Direct Testimony of William Gehlen, Docket No E-01345A-04-0407, at 6; see also Testimony of Matthew

Rowell, Docket No. E-01345A-04-0407, Hearing Transcript at 381-83.
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cost overruns that far exceed the original anticipated cost to
build.”

DID STAFF ANALYZE THE RFP SOLICITATION AND BI
EVALUATION IN THE SUNDANCE ACQUISITION bOCKET? .

Yes. In direct pre-filed testimony, Staff described its review of the RFP process
and bid evaluation. Based on its review, Staff .opined that APS displayed a
willingness to individually evaluate a wide range of bids, as most of the -
proposals did not conform to the RFP.? |

DID STAFF EXPRESS AN OPINION REGARDING THE ECONOMICS
OF THE SUNDANCE PLANT ACQUISITION?

Yes, as evidenced from the quote above, Staff found that according to the APS
economic analysis, including the busbar cost, the Sundance Assets purchase was
a lower cost alternative as compared to new construction of comparabie plants.
WHEN APS PROPOSED TO ACQUIRE THE SUNDANCE ASSETS, DID
APS BELIEVE THE FACILITY WOULD PROVIDE IMMEDIATE
BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY AND ITS CUSTOMERS?

Yes. APS had been using a portion of the Sundance Assets pursuant to a long-
term agreement and shorter-term market purchases to serve APS customers’
needs since July 2003. Projeétions indicated that the Company would need the
full capacity of the units in the future. The acquisition of the Sundance Assets
provided APS with 325 MW of critical additional capacity during the summer
peak season in 2005, as it will in 2006. The full output from the plant will be

utilized to serve APS customers beginning in the summer of 2007 after a

8

Direct Testimony of William Gehlen, Docket No. E-013454-04-0407, at 7.

Direct Testimony of William Gehlen, Docket No. E-013454-04-0407, at 4.




o 3 ™

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

previously existing agreement between PPL and Tucson Electric Power
Company expires.

ASIDE FROM THE NEED FOR THE SUNDANCE ASSETS IN
DELIVERING ENERGY DURING PERIODS OF PEAK LOAD, WERE
THERE OTHER FACTORS THAT LED APS TO BELIEVE THAT THE
FACILITY WOULD BE BENEFICIAL TO APS AND ITS CUSTOMERS?
Yes. The additional benefits for APS and its customers in acquiring the
Sundance Assets included increased operational flexibility from owning ten
quick-start 45 MW units and the .availability of the units to help APS more
efficiently manage its reserves. With typical unit start times of six minutes from
a hot or cold stand-by condition and a very short ramping time to full-rated
output, these units provide valuable non-spinning reserves to APS. Although the
largest benefit is from added operational flexibility, the reservle value allows
APS to more efficiently manage its total reserves requirement needed to support
reliable operations. Furthermore, the Sundance Plant benefits APS and its
customers by decreasing the exposure to fluctuating wholesale power prices,
insufficient supply or supplier default.

GIVEN THE NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND THE ANALYSIS DISCUSSED
ABOVE, IN YOUR OPINION, WAS THE DECISION TO ACQUIRE
SUNDANCE APPROPRIATE? | -

Yes. All of the economic analyses showed that the acquisition of the Sundance
Assets at the offered price was the best available peaking resource alternative for
meeting our customers’ needs. Our operational analysis indicated that the plant
was an outstanding technology and an exceptional match for our customers’
projected peaking powerk needs. The Company’s due diligence reviews verified
that the Sundance Assets were in good working order, and ensured that all

agreements were reviewed and no unexpected liabilities came with the plant.

10
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IS THERE A NEED FOR THE SUNDANCE PLANT’S CAPACITY AND
IS IT BEING USED TO MEET THAT NEED?

Yes. The above-referenced needs assessment demonstrated that APS clearly has

a functional need for the Sundance capacity. In fact, APS still remains short on

- capacity even after the Sundance Assets acquisition. In addition, as I discussed

above, the Sundance Assets provide ‘APS with operational flexibility and

-en.hances the reliability of the APS generation portfolio.

ng%'rll“ WAS THE PURCHASE PRICE APS PAID FOR THE SUNDANCE
AS S?

The purchase price was $189.5 million, excluding a post-closing adjustment for
the value of the plant inventory. This closing price is the same as the negotiated
price for a closing on March 31 and the price used in completing the above

analysis.

CONCLUSION
DO YOU HAVE ANY CONCLUDING COMMENTS?

APS’ acquisition of the ‘Sundance Assets was the product of a fair and open

procurement process and was based on sound economic principles. APS had a
clearly defined need for the peaking plant based upon its previous resource plans

and in fact is already using the Sundance Assets to meet the reliability and

energy needs of its customers.

DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

Yes, it does.

11
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF PATRICK DINKEL
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-04 , et al.)
INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND POSITION WITH APS.

My name is Patrick Dinkel. I am the Manager of Corporate Planning for Arizona
Public Service Company (“APS” or “Company™). I led the APS team
responsible for conducting the APS Request for Proposals—Power Supply
Resource Proposal for the Procurement of Generating Capacity (“RFP”),
evaluating the resulting proposals, and negotiating the Asset Purchase
Agreement with PPL Sundance Energy, LLC (“PPL Sundance™).

WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL
BACKGROUND?

I received a Bachelors of Science degree from Marymount College and a
Masters of Business Administration from Northern Arizona University. I joined
APS in 1986. Before becoming Manager of Corporate Planning, I was the
Manager of Business Unit Analysis and Reporting, with responsibility for
corporate budgeting. Before that, I held various positions within APS and
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation (“Pinnacle West”), primarily within the

financial planning area.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

I will discuss the RFP and the evaluation process that resulted in the selection of
the PPL Sundance proposal. I also will address APS’ proposed financing of the
acquisition and provide the details on the Accounting Order that APS is

requesting.
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PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR TESTIMONY

APS’ Long Range Forecasts consistently show that APS is facing a growing
need for additional generation resources. Based on these forecasts, the current
state of the wholesale market, and the apparent willingness of some parties to
sell assets, APS elected to conduct a RFP for long-term resources. The Company
conducted a review of all of the proposals submitted in response to the RFP and
eliminated a number of responses from further consideration. The Company
conducted a more detailed review of those remaining proposals most likely to be
able to meet APS’ needs. Ultimately, APS selected the PPL Sundance proposal

and negotiated an agreement to purchase the Sundance Generating Station.

The acquisition of the Sundance Generafing Station will efficiently and cost-
effectively address some of APS’ future capacity needs. Sundance was the only
peaking plant bid in the RFP and is the only recently-completed merchant
peaking plant in Arizona. Given that APS customer demand requires peaking
resources and that there are no additional merchant peaking facilities currently
permitted or planned for construction in Arizona, the Sundance Generating
Station fits well into APS’ generation portfolio. Other advantages of the facility
are its operational flexibility and quick-start capabilities that allow it to provide
essential reliability support for APS customers. APS has concluded that
acquiring the Sundance Generating Station is the least cost alternative through
an analysis of available options, including building new peaking units and

buying power from the wholesale market.

To finance the acquisition, APS contemplates issuing additional short-term

and/or long-term debt under the Company’s current debt limits approved by the
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Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission”). This assumes that the
Commission finds the Sundance Generating Station to be a prudent addition to

the Company’s generation portfolio serving APS customers.

APS is purchasing the Sundance Generating Station for less than its book value.
Due to regulatory accounting requirements in the FERC Uniform System of
Accounts (“USOA™), APS will record a “negative acquisition adjustment” equal
to the difference between the purchase price and the net book value of the plant
as of closing. APS will amortize the negative acquisition adjustment over the

remaining life of the facility.

APS is requesting an Accounting Order authorizing APS to defer for future
recovery capital and operating costs associated with the acquisition, along with a
debt return on the deferred balance. The amount of the deferral will be offset by
any savings to the Company resulting from the acquisition. A deferral order will
allow APS to acquire the Sundance Generating Station at a price that will bring
significant long-term value to customers without the Company incurring
unnecessary and significant financial harm prior to the Sundance Generating

Station being reflected in APS rates.

RFP PROCESS
WHY DID APS ISSUE AN RFP IN DECEMBER 2003?

APS regularly prepares forecasts of its projected load requirements and
compares them to its available resources, including owned generation and long-
term purchased power contracts. APS has a near-term resource shortfall that it
meets in the short-term wholesale market. The Company is forecasting

continued growth, which requires a significant amount of additional resources.
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The APS Summer Supply & Demand Balance Assessment (“Summer Supply &
Demand Balance™), which was included as Attachment 1 to the RFP, shows that‘
APS will have a resource shortfall in the summer of 2007 of more than 1400
MW, even assuming the inclusion of Pinnacle West Energy Corporation’s
(“PWEC”) 1700 MW of Arizona assets as APS is requesting in its pending rate
case. The RFP, with all attachments, is provided as Schedule PD-1 to this
testimony. A revised Summer Supply & Demand Balance, showing that the
Company will have a shortfall of more than 3100 MW in 2007 without the
inclusion of the PWEC Arizona assets, was prepared and provided to bidders in
January 2004. That revised Summer Supply & Demand Balaﬁce and an

amended RFP schedule are attached to my testimony as Schedule PD-2.

WHAT OTHER FACTORS DID APS CONSIDER IN ISSUING THE RFP?
Timing was a major consideration. APS saw the potential for favorable prices in -
the near term given the current stage of the cyclic capacity market and reports
that some of the resources in the area may be up for sale. APS felt that it was
important to determine quickly whether the Company could procure long-term
resources for its customers at a reasonable price. The timing of a new long-term
resource acquisition was another consideration. APS targeted 2007 in the RFP
because the Company could likely purchase short-term resources in the open
market for the next few years through the Secondary Procurement Protocol. By
2007, the Company’s significant capacity shortfall requires an asset purchase,
new construction or long-term purchases to procure much of the resources
needed for necessary reliability and price stability. In addition, APS’ internal
wholesale electric price forecast predicted that, by 2007, the present oversupply

of generation would tighten, leading to increased prices for such resources.
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PLEASE PROVIDE A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE RFP
SCHEDULE.

APS first announced its plans to conduct the RFP on November 19, 2003 and
formally issued it on December 3, 2003. The RFP was widely distributed to
generators and marketers conducting business in the Company’s service
territory. On December 15, 2003, APS held a bidders’ conference attended by
nine interested generators and energy marketers. At that bidders’ conference,
APS provided an overview of the RFP, gave a presentation on transmission
capacity, and responded to questions. Bidders submitted RFP responses by
January 21, 2004. In mid February, 2004, APS notified those bidders who were
short-listed, including PPL Sundance. After significant additional analysis,
negotiations and due diligence, APS entered into the Asset Purchase Agreement

with PPL Sundance on June 1, 2004.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE RFP ISSUED BY APS.

APS requested proposals for generation to meet APS’ rapidly growing retail
load, with the minimum size of any single generating unit bid being 35 MW and
the maximum size being approximately 550 MW. These limits did not exclude
any constructed or permitted merchant facility in Arizona. The RFP specifically
sought proposals that would deliver a power supply to APS commencing in the
summer of 2007 for reasons previously mentioned. Although the RFP expressed
a preference for the purchase of generating assets already constructed or
permitted, APS also indicated that it would consider reasonably-priced proposals
for long-term unit-specific purchase power agreements (“PPAs™). For any
proposal for a long-term unit-specific PPA, APS sought full dispatch rights for

the applicable unit. If a proposal involved the sale of a unit that was currently
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operating or would be operating prior to June 1, 2007, APS expressed a
breference for acquiring the unit at the conclusion of negotiations and then
entering into a Sale Back Arrangement with the bidder for the output of that
generating unit through May 31, 2007. In contrast to asset sales, the solicited
PPAs were, by their terms, for deliveries on and after June 1, 2007, and thus no

proposed Sale Back Arrangement was necessary.

WHAT OTHER PROVISIONS WERE INCLUDED IN THE RFP?

To mitigate risk to APS and its customers, and consistent with other asset
acquisitions, the proposed Asset Purchase Agreement included in the RFP
provided that any acquisition of a generating unit would-be conditioned upon
approval by any and all regulatory authorities with jurisdiction over the
transaction. Additional requirements are set forth in the RFP attached as

Schedule PD-1.

HOW DID APS ARRIVE AT THE TERMS OF ITS RFP?

Several prinbiples drove the RFP requirements. It was important to conduct a
timely and efficient RFP that attracted the largest number of bidders. Thus, the
Company tried to make the RFP as inclusive as possible. APS left the RFP open
to any fuel type, any location (as long as it could reach APS’ customers),
permitted and existing plants, renewable generation, asset purchases and PPAs.
Timing was important because there were a number of plants in the region that
appeared to be in a state of flux from an ownership perspective. APS understood
that owners of those plants would be reluctant to leave their plants in limbo if

the Company took too long to evaluate their proposals.
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PLEASE EXPLAIN IN MORE DETAIL THE RESULTS OF THE RFP
PROCESS.

APS received 13 different proposals from nine entities in response to the RFP,
for a total of approximately 6800 MW. All of the bidders were merchant
generators or power marketers. The proposals included existing generating units,
generation under construction, planned projects holding some (but not all) of the
necessary permits, proposed but undeveloped projects, and sales from
unidentified assets. All of the asset-backed proposals involved natural gas-fired
generating units, none of which were utility-owned or within the Phoenix load
pocket. In addition, all of those proposals required APS and its customers to bear
the fuel price risk in one manner or another. The “APS Summary of Responses
Received to its Power Supply Resource Request for Proposals Dated December
3, 2003” (attached as Schedule PD-3) was filed with the Commission on January
27,2004 and provides additional information about the RFP results. |
PLEASE DISCUSS APS’ PRELIMINARY EVALUATION OF THE BIDS
RECEIVED?

APS performed a preliminary analysis of all of the proposals it received in
response to the RFP to identify a short-list of proposals warranting additional
consideration. APS reviewed each proposal for credibility and value in relation -
to generation operations, gas transportation, transmission availability, power
marketing, environmental compliance, credit, and overall resource mix, as well
as compliance with the minimum Eid requirements. Although most of the
proposals presented one or more issues related to the minimum bid
requirements, APS did not reject any proposal because of those issues. Several

proposals, however, provided insufficient information or non-firm pricing
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thereby making consideration of those proposals more difficult and reducing the

probability of selection.

A team of experienced employees from various APS departments as well as
legal counsel reviewed the proposals and reported their conclusions. The
objective was to identify any issue that warranted further evaluation or that

could have a material impact on a transaction.

The Company evaluated the economics of proposals that were in contention for
further consideration by computing the levelized busbar cost of each such bid.
The busbar cost is the revenue required to cover the costs of owning and
operating the plant (including fuel and cost of capital) divided by the anticipated
MWh output at the plant’s “bus.” A “levelized” busbar cost is the busbar cost
over the period evaluated (e.g., 30 years) stated in constant dollars. In
completing the busbar analysis, APS incorporated information submitted with
each proposal along with equipment manufacturer data and standard financial

and capacity factor assumptions.

As a result of its preliminary analysis, APS narrowed the proposals received in
response to the RFP down to three. Most of those proposals that were not
selected for short-listing were eliminated on the basis of price; however,
development risk for projects not yet under construction, credit risk of lower
credit counterparties, and price uncertainty also were significant factors. Next,
APS entered into discussions with the bidders of the three remaining proposals,

eventually narrowing its focus to the PPL Sundance proposal.
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WHY DID APS SELECT THE PPL SUNDANCE PROPOSAL?

APS accepted the PPL Sundance proposal because purchasing the Sundance
Generating Station is the least cost means of APS acquiring cfitical long-term
peaking capacity. Because the units can ramp up quickly, they are able to

provide cost-effective reserves and improve APS’ system reliability.

PLEASE DESCRIBE GENERALLY THE PPL SUNDANCE FACILITY

AND PROPOSAL.

The Sundance Generating Station is a nominally rated 450 MW facility located
approximately 55 miles southeast of Phoenix in Pinal County. It was placed in
service in July 2002 and consists of ten 45 MW General Electric LM 6000PC
combustion turbines. Such units typically are used to meet peaking capacity
needs because of their ability to start up in less than 10 minutes from a warm or
cold standby condition compared to ﬁve to seven hours for a typical combined
cycle unit. As described in more detail in the testimony filed by PPL, the facility
is natural gas fired, uses Central Arizona Project excess water as its primary
water supply, and interconnects to the Western Area Power Administration

(“WAPA”) transmission grid at WAPA’s Coolidge substation.

PPL Sundance initially submitted a proposal to sell the entire Sundance facility
to APS for $185 million as of December 31, 2004. Its proposal did not include a
Sale Back Arrangement. The proposal also required APS to assume certain
existing contracts associated with the facility. The final agreed-upon price of
$189.5 million reflects an adjustment for PPL Sundance’s added carrying costs

for a March 2005 closing.
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VvLHAT ARE THE EXISTING CONTRACTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
PLANT?

As a result of Tucson Electric Power’s (“TEP”) Track B process, PPL Sundance
entered into a tolling agreement with TEP for 75 MW of capacity year-round
through the end of 2006. The proposal required APS to assume that contract
with its acquisition of the PPL Sundance facility. In addition, there were several
transmission contracts with WAPA and gas transportation contracts with El Paso
Natural Gas included in the proposal.

WHAT FOLLOWED THE PRELIMINARY SELECTION OF PPL
SUNDANCE’S BID IN THE RFP?

After narrowing its focus to the PPL Sundance proposal, APS began a multi-
track process that included due diligence, a more detailed economic analysis and
comprehensive negotiations. The due diligence on the facility sought to identify
any material issues related to the construction, operation, ownership,
performance or environmental condition of the plant. A team of experts
reviewed contracts, permits, schedules and reports, and conducted on-site
inspections to review plant construction, operations, operating and maintenance
history, regulatory issues, real estate and land use, environmental compliance,
fuels transportation issues, and transmission capabilities, among other topics.
This due diligence effort did not identify any issues that warranted rejecting the
bid. The economic analysis, which showed that the PPL Sundance proposal was
the most attractive option available, is discussed in more detail in Section IV of

this testimony.

APS and PPL discussed the PPL Sundance bid and APS’ interest over the

following weeks. APS incorporated into its discussions the results of its due

10
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III.

diligence and economic analysis. PPL Sundance repeatedly indicated that 1its
offer assumed a sale of the plant for cash in 2005, not 2007, and in fact, made no
offer for a 2007 sale. PPL Sundance was unwilling to both absorb the short-term
impact of the Sale Back Arrangement in 2005-2006 and give APS the long-term
benefit of the Sundance Generating Station from 2007 forward. In the end, APS
determined that the final agreement was an attractive purchase and the best

option available to customers.

APS’ NEED FOR PPL SUNDANCE FACILITY

- WHEN APS ACQUIRES THE SUNDANCE GENERATING STATION,

WILL THAT GENERATION BE USED BY APS?

Yes. APS has been using the Sundance Generating Station to serve APS
customers and will need the units in the future. Acquiring the Sundance
Generating Station provideé APS with 400 MW of additional capacity during the
summer peak season. Sundance is expected to produce 400 MW during the
summer rather than its rated capacity of 450 MW due to the fact that the peak
capacity for combustion turbines drops as the ambient air temperature rises. PPL
Sundance fills ‘only a fraction of the Company’s anticipated future resource
needs, even if all of the PWEC Arizona generation is included in the Company’s
rate base following the pending rate case. With the Sundance purchase, the
capacity shortfall in 2005, 2006, and 2007 is 456 MW, 785 MW, and 1047 MW,
respectively. The shortfall in 2007 and beyond could grow if Salt River Project
chooses to terminate all or part of its existing long-term purchased power

contract with APS.

11
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IV.

ASIDE FROM THE NEED FOR THE SUNDANCE GENERATING
STATION IN SERVING APS PEAK LOAD, ARE THERE ADDITIONAL
BENEFITS SUCH THAT THE FACILITY WOULD BE “USEFUL” IF
ACQUIRED BY APS AND DEDICATED TO SERVING APS
CUSTOMERS?

As Mr. Wheeler mentions in his testimony, the benefits for APS and customers
of acquiring the PPL Sundance facility include increased operational flexibility
from owning ten quick-start 45 MW units and the availability of the units to help
APS more efficiently manage its reserves. There is significant value in APS
owning the Sundance Generating Station and being able to quickly dispatch the

facility instead of having to use day-ahead scheduling required under the PPA.

ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF PROPOSED ACQUISITION

WHAT ECONOMIC ANALYSIS DID APS UNDERTAKE TO EVALUATE
THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION? '

APS evaluated the economics of the PPL Sundance proposal from several
perspectives. First, APS looked at the depreciated acquisition cost plus estimated
deferrals and compared that to the available alternatives. Second, APS compared
the busbar costs of various alternatives. Finally, APS calculated the present value
revenue requirement of the system generation cost for each of the altematives,

including an alternative of purchasing the power from the wholesale market.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE ALTERNATIVES YOU CONSIDERED.

The table below summarizes the alternative peaking generation technologies that
could be used to construct simple cycle combustion turbines in 2007 along with
several key characteristics associated with each technology. The PPL Sundance
facility (which consists of LM6000 turbines) is the lowest-cost alternative and is

estimated to cost approximately 60% of a facility constructed with new LM6000

12
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turbines. The PPL Sundance facilities also provide the better fuel efficiency

(through a lower heat rate) and shorter start times of the two technologies.

Simple Cycle Technology Comparison

Sundance New New -

LM6000 LM6000 TEA
Instailed Cost ($/kW) 475 762 695
Summer Outp;lt (MW) - 40 40 76
Heat Rate (Btw/kWh) 9,855 9,855 12,‘125
Quick Start (<10 Min.) Y Y N

The installed cost is usually the investment included in a utility’s rate base. APS
calculated this amount to provide a snapshot of how each alternative would
impact customers. Although not intended to be a comprehensive comparison, it
does provide an indication of the fixed costs associated with each option. The
installed cost is provided in 2007 dollars, and the Sundance Generating Station

installed cost includes the estimated impacts associated with the requested

Accounting Order.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE BUSBAR COST STUDIES.

As mentioned previously, the busbar cost equals the revenue required to pay for
the costs to own and operate a plant (including fuel and cost of capital) divided
by the anticipated MWh output from that plant. The busbar cost study performed

by APS compared the levelized busbar cost of acquiring the Sundance

13
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Generating Station against the levelized busbar cost of building new simple
cycle plants. For purposes of the busbar cost study, a consistent capacity factor
for these options was assumed for all alternatives. The study period began in
2007 and covered the life of the units. In analyzing the PPL Sundance proposal,
APS developed two alternative transmission options which are reflected in the
graph below: 1) assuming rollover of fhe existing transmission contracts with
WAPA; and 2) assuming a new transmission line is added from the Sundance
Generating Station to APS’ Santa Rosa substation. The results, as summarized in
the graph below, indicated that acquiring the Sundance Generating Station under
either transmission option is superior to the new-build alternatives even without
consideration of any permitting or construction risk typically associated with
new build alternatives.

Results of Sundance Busbar Analysis
$ 177 /MWh $ 182 /MWh

' $151 /MWh
$ 143 MWh

Sundance Sundance New
. Wheeling Over LM6000 7EA
New APS Line WAPA

14
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PLEASE DISCUSS THE SYSTEM REVENUE REQUIREMENT COST
STUDY :

The system revenue requirement cost study calculated the present value cost for
each alternative of providing power to customers, including the cost of fuel,
purchased power and ownership. The analysis is based on a system dispatch
simulation utilizing the GE-MAPS system dispatch model and supporting -
calculations. APS evaluated the Sundance Generating Station against alternative
new-build simple cycle cases and purchases from the wholesale market. The
system revenue requirement analysis captured the 'particu'lar technology
characteristics of each alternative and ensured that the projected customer load
would be met at the least cost to customers. The study period began January 1,
2007 and covered the life of the units. The revenue requirement results were
consistent with the busbar results, showing that the acquisition of the Sundance
Generating Station produced a present value saving of $119 million to $194
million compared to other available alternatives. The analysis assumed APS
constructed a new transmission line to connect Sundance to APS’ transmission
grid. If APS were to purchase WAPA transmission for the life of the Sundance
plant the present valﬁe savings from acquiring Sundance would be $79 million
to $154 million. Both of these ranges of present value savings include the impact
of the requested deferral order. This result is consistent with the facts that the.
PPL Sundance proposal had the lowest up-front investment cost (expréssed as
$/KW) and the best fuel efficiency (expressed as Btw/KWh) as shown above in

the table Results of Sundance Busbar Analysis.

15
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WHY DID YOU START ALL OF THE STUDIES IN 2007?

The year 2007 serves as a reasonable date to begin comparison. of resource
alternatives. First, given that simple cycle units take two years or more to build,
a new unit could not be- completed much sooner than 2007. Second, APS is not
asking the Commission to include the cost of the acquisition in customer rates
until after its next general rate case. Thus, analyzing the costs starting in 2007
provides a reasonable estimation of the impact on customers.

%}’{%T ABOUT THE IMPACTS TO APS AND CUSTOMERS PRIOR TO
Assuming the Commission issues the Accounting Order and deferral
authorization requested, APS believes that the PPL Sundance purchase will not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial status prior to its inclusion in
rates. The Accounting Order, however, is essential to minimize the near-term
financial impact associated with the purchase. Customers will see no economic
impact from the acquisition assuming that the near-term fuel and purchased
power savings are excluded from the Power Supply Adjustment (“PSA”)

mechanism requested by APS in its general rate case, as discussed later.

APS IS CURRENTLY BUYING POWER FROM SUNDANCE UNDER A
TRACK B CONTRACT. WHAT WILL HAPPEN WITH THAT
CONTRACT WHEN APS PURCHASES THE PLANT?

APS entered into a tolling agreement with PPL Sundance in 2003 as part of the
Company’s Track B procurement process. Under that agreement, APS purchased
150 MW of capacity from PPL Sundance for the summer months of June
through September in 2003, 2004, and 2005. At closing, there will be four
months of 150 MW remaining under the contract. APS and PPL Sundance have

agreed to terminate the Track B contract upon closing. Customers will get the

16
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value of the 150 MW of Sundance capacity consistent with the contract, and the
savings from the avoided contract capacity payment will be used to offset the

cost deferral.

PROPOSED FINANCING AND ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
HOW DOES APS INTEND TO FINANCE THE TRANSACTION?

APS anticipates issuing a combination of long- and/or short-term debt
depending on the market conditions prevailing at the time of the financing.
HOW WILL THE ACQUISITION BE TREATED FROM A
REGULATORY ACCOUNTING STANDPOINT?

The regulatory accounting associated with the acquisition is subject to the
USOA, which applies to APS pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2-212(G)(2). The USOA
requires that APS record the PPL Sundance Generating Station at its depreciated
book value at the time of the acquisition. Under the USOA, the difference
between book value and the amount paid by APS is recorded as an “acquisition
adjustment.” In this case, a negative acquisition adjustment will be recorded
because the purchase price is less than the book value of the plant. For purposes
of calculating APS’ rate base, the negative acquisition adjustmenf reduces the
book value of the plant to the amount APS paid for the asset. APS will amortize

the negative acquisition adjustment over the plant’s remaining service life.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE DEFERRAL ORDER THAT APS IS
REQUESTING.

APS is requesting that an Accounting Order authorize the Company to defer for
future recovery the capital and operating costs associated with the acquisition,

net of any savings produced by the acquisition. APS is requesting that the

- Commission authorize a return on the deferred amount at the cost of debt

17
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determined in APS’ pending rate case. The specific language that the Company
believes necessary in the Accounting Order to authorize this deferral is set forth

in Schedule PD-4. Also, APS requests that the period for which APS is

authorized to defer costs be limited to five years from the date of a final order in

this case.
WHY IS A DEFERRAL ORDER NECESSARY FOR THIS
ACQUISITION?
The favorable price that PPL Sundance proposed for the Sundance Generating
Station required APS to acquire the facilities in 2005. Given that APS is already
using this resource and it brings immediate operational and reliability benefits to
our customers, APS believes that acquiring the facility today is appropriate and
in the best interests of customers. However, because the costs associated with
this new investment are not yet reflected in APS’ rates, the adverse financial
impact to APS that results from acquiring the Sundance Generating Station
without immediately including it in rates should be mitigated. A deferral order is
a standard and well-accepted regulatory tool for exactly these circumstances.
HAS THE COMMISSION PREVIOUSLY ISSUED DEFERRAL ORDERS
TO APS WHEN NEW GENERATION RESOURCES WERE ACQUIRED?
Yes. The Commission authorized deferral of capital and operating costs
associated with both Palo Verde Unit 2 and Unit 3. In Decision No. 55325
(December 5, 1986), the Commission stated:

In a perfect regulatory world, there would be little time between

the introduction of large increments of plant into service and the

setting of rates which took that plant into consideration. We do not

live in such a world, and rate cases cannot, for any number of

reasons (including those attributable to the utility), be exactly

timed so as to prevent significant mismatches between revenue
and expenses.

18
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Decision No. 55325 at 5. Shortly afterwards, in Decision No. 55931 (April 1,
1988), the Commission summarized the policy reasons supporting such
deferrals:
According to the Commission, the problem posed by the
commercial operation of Palo Verde 2 was the time between the
introduction of large increments of plant into service and the
setting of rates which takes that plant into consideration.
Decision No. 55931 at 36. In connection with Palo Verde Unit 3, the
Commission recognized that, “Issnance of an accounting order will properly
synchronize cost recording with cost recovery.” Decision No. 55939 (April 6,

1988) at 4-5.

In addition to these decisions, I would also note that deferral orders continue to
be issued by other regulatory commissions in cases involving utilities acquiring
new generation. For example, the Michigan Public Service Commission recently
approved the acquisition of a $120 million peaking facility by Wisconsin Public
Service Corporation and authorized a deferral of costs associated with the
acquisition in a February 20, 2003 decision in Docket No. U-13621.

IN THE DEFERRAL ORDER THAT APS IS REQUESTING, HOW WILL
SAVINGS ASSOCIATED WITH THE ACQUISITION BE USED TO
OFFSET THE AMOUNT OF DEFERRALS?

The savings from the cancellation of the Track B contract (e.g., the avoided
capacity payments that would otherwise be due) will reduce the 2005 deferral
amount at the time the contract is cancelled. Other savings, such as reduced fuel
or purchased power costs, associated with the acquisition of the Sundance
Generating Station would also reduce the amount of the deferrals associated

with capital and operating costs each year. To avoid double-counting such
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savings, all fuel cost savings, purchased power cost savings, and additional off-
system sales margins will be excluded from any calculation under the PSA that
APS is requesting in its pending rate case.

HAS THE COMPANY ESTIMATED THE AMOUNT OF THE
DEFERRAL?

APS estimates that the pretax deferral will be approximately $10 million to $15
million per year. This deférral estimate assumes that fuel and purchased power
savings as well as avoided Track B capacity payments are used to reduce the
impact of the costs of ownership as previously mentioned. The estimate is also
dependent upon the market price of gas and electricity which will affect the level
of off-setting savings.

WHEN WOULD APS SEEK RECOVERY OF THE DEFERRED
BALANCE?

When APS files its next rate case, it would include the deferral in its application.
APS is not proposing a specific amortization period for the regulatory asset
associated with the deferral. The Commission could select a reasonable
amortization period for the deferred balance at the time it establishes rates that

include the new facility.

CONCLUSION
DO YOU HAVE ANY CONCLUDING COMMENTS?
Through the RFP, APS has identified an acquisition of an asset that will fit well

into APS’ existing generation portfolio and bring value to customers. Because of
the circumstances surrounding the acquisition, however, an accounting order is
required to facilitate the transaction. Because the Company sees significant

value to its customers in completing this transaction, the Company is requesting

20




W 0 a9 & W AW N

N N N N N \®] |\ et ot p— Ja—y Pt — — — J— et
(@) ()] LS (58] N bt o O o0 ~ N ()] S W [\®} p— o

1521574

the Commission’s finding that the acquisition is prudent and its approval of the

requested Accounting Order.

DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY? -

Yes, it does.
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Attachment PD-2

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 111 FERC 162,146
FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

PPL Sundance Energy, LLC , Docket No. EC05-20-000
PPL EnergyPlus, LLC
Arizona Public Service Company

ORDER AUTHORIZING DISPOSITION AND ACQUISITION
- OF JURISDICTIONAL FACILITIES

(Issued May 6, 2005)

On November 22, 2004, PPL Sundance Energy, LLC (PPL Sundance), PPL
EnergyPlus, LLC (PPL EnergyPlus) and Arizona Public Service Company (APS) filed an
application under section 203 of the Federal Power Act’ requesting Commission
authorization for a disposition and acquisition of jurisdictional facilities related to PPL
Sundance’s proposed sale of its Sundance Generating Station (Facility) to APS.* The
jurisdictional facilities involved in the proposed transaction include transmission
interconnection facilities and a power sales contract.

PPL Sundance, an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of PPL Corporation (PPL),
owns and operates the Facility, consisting of ten combustion turbines with a total capacity
of 450 megawatts (MWs) and associated interconnection facilities that deliver power
from the Facility to the Western Area Power Administration transmission grid. PPL
Sundance is authorized to make sales of energy and ancillary services at market-based
rates. PPL EnergyPlus, a PPL power marketing affiliate, purchases the entire output of
the Facility and supplies APS with 150 MWs of power from the Facility during summer
months under a contract that will expire at the end of Summer, 2005. PPL EnergyPlus
also provides 75 MWs of power to Tucson Electric Power Company (TEP).

APS, a public utility, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pinnacle West Capital
Corporation (Pinnacle West), an exempt investor-owned public utility holding company.
APS owns and operates generation and transmission facilities, and engages in the
wholesale sale and transmission of electricity. APS also provides electric service at retail
in its service territory, including the Phoenix metropolitan area and throughout the state .
of Arizona. APS’ Pinnacle West affiliate, Pinnacle West Energy Corporation owns
directly and through a subsidiary about 2000 MWs of generating capacity comprised of
various generating facilities in Arizona and Nevada.

116 U.S.C. § 824b (2000).

? Applicants amended their application on February 11, 2005, March 29, 2005 and
April 22, 2005.
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Under the Asset Purchase Agreement by and between PPL Sundance Energy, LLC
as Seller and Arizona Public Service Company as Purchaser, dated as of June 1, 2004,
PPL Sundance proposes to sell to APS a 100 percent ownership interest in the Facility
and associated jurisdictional assets. As part of the transaction, PPL EnergyPlus will
transfer to APS the contract to provide TEP with 75 MWs of capacity. APS will also
acquire PPL Sundance’s transmission rights on the WAPA system for delivering APS’
share of the Facility’s energy to serve APS’ load, and the Facility will be a network
resource for APS. In addition, APS will acquire PPL Sundance’s other contracts
associated with the Facility’s operation, including agreements with El Paso Natural Gas
Company for gas transportation service. The contracts under which PPL Sundance sells
all of the output of the Facility to PPL EnergyPlus and PPL EnergyPlus sells 150 MWs of
power to APS will be terminated upon consummation of the transaction.

Upon consummation of the transaction, APS proposes to implement a market
monitoring plan (APS’ Plan) that will provide for an independent expert to monitor APS’
generation dispatch and the operation of its transmission system and to identify and
report to the Commission any potentially anti-competitive conduct. Applicants state that
this plan will be consistent with the plan recently approved by the Commission in Docket
No. EC04-92-000, involving the indirect indisposition of jurisdictional facilities
associated with the acquisition of UniSource Energy Corporation by Saguaro Utility
Group I and affiliated entities.” APS’ market monitoring plan will continue in effect until
the Commission approves a regional market monitoring entity with a Commission-
approved market monitoring plan or for five years, whichever is earlier.

Applicants assert that the proposed transaction will not adversely affect
competition, rates or regulation. Based on an analysis of the effect of APS’ acquisition of
the Facility on concentration and of other factors affecting the competitive situation, they
contend that the proposed transaction does not present horizontal market power concerns
in any relevant market. They also assert that the transaction does not raise vertical
market issues. Applicants note that APS has an open access transmission tariff on file
with the Commission and is a participant in wesTTrans, an OASIS for many western
transmission providers. They also state that APS commits to implement, upon
consummation of the transaction, a market monitoring plan, as described above, that will
encompass generation dispatch and operation of APS’ transmission system.
Authorization of the transaction is granted herein based in part on this commitment.

Applicants also assert that the transaction will not adversely affect rates. They
note that most of APS’ wholesale energy transactions occur pursuant to agreements
negotiated under market-based provisions of its power tariff and or the Western Systems
Power Pool Agreement. Although other wholesale power agreements contain a fuel
adjustment clause for pricing energy, Applicants state that customers under these

3 UniSource Energy Corporation, et al., 109 FERC 4 61,047 (2004).
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agreements are protected from adverse rate impacts due to “hold harmless” provisions
previously adopted by APS.

Applicants further contend that the transaction will not adversely affect
Commission or state regulation. They note that the transaction will not result in the
creation of a new, registered public utility holding company. Applicants state that APS
and PPL EnergyPlus will continue to be subject to the Commission’s regulation with
respect to wholesale sales of energy and that APS’ retail operations will continue to be
subject to the jurisdiction of the Arizona Corporation Commission.

This filing was noticed on November 24, 2004, February 18, 2005, April 1, 2005
and April 25, 2005, with comments, protests or interventions due on or before May 5,
2005. Panda Gila River, L.P. (Panda) filed a timely motion to intervene and comments.
On April 8, 2005, Panda filed a notice of withdrawal of its comments. Notices of
intervention and unopposed timely filed motions to intervene are granted pursuant to the
operation of Rule 214 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (18 C.F.R. §
385.214). Any opposed or untimely filed motion to intervene is governed by the
provisions of Rule 214.

After consideration, it is concluded that the proposed transaction is consistent with
the public interest and is authorized, subject to the following conditions:

(1)  The proposed transaction is authorized upon the terms and conditions and
for the purposes set forth in the application;

(2)  The foregoing authorization is without prejudice to the authority of the
Commission or any other regulatory body with respect to rates, service,
accounts, valuation, estimates, or determinations of cost, or any other
matter whatsoever now pending or which may become before the
Commission;

(3)  Nothing in this order shall be construed to imply acquiescence in any
estimate or determination of cost or any valuation of property claimed or

asserted;

(4)  The Commission retains authority under sections 203(b) and 309 of the
FPA to issue supplemental orders as appropriate;

(5)  Applicants shall make appropriate filings under section 205 of the FPA, as
necessary, to implement the transaction; and

(6)  Applicants shall notify the Commission within 10 days of the date that the
disposition of jurisdictional facilities has occurred.
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This action is taken pursuant to the authority delegated to the Director, Division of
Tariffs and Market Development — West, under 18 C.F.R. § 375.307. This order
constitutes final agency action. Requests for rehearing by the Commission may be filed
within 30 days of the date of issuance of this order, pursuant to 18 C.F.R. § 385.713

Jamie L. Simler
Director
Division of Tariffs and Market Development - West
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II.

REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF PATRICK DINKEL
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0816)
INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

* Patrick Dinkel, 400 North Fifth Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85004.

DID YOU PROVIDE DIRECT TESTIMONY IN THIS DOCKET?
Yes. I filed Direct Testimony in this docket on November 4, 2005 (“Initial

Filing™), and also provided updated testimony on January 31, 2006 (“January
Filing”). | |

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to respond to the testimony of Mr. David

Berry of Western Resource Advocates and his position regarding the use of
renewable energy as a hedge against high natural gas prices. In addition, I will be
responding to the concerns raised by Ms. Amanda Ormond of Interwest Energy
Alliance regarding wind integration costs. Finally, I will discuss APS’ position
related to the testimony of Staff and several Intervenors and their increased

interest in Demand Response programs.

SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY IN THIS RATE
CASE DOCKET.

My testimony will address the use of renewables as a hedge. Specifically, APS

agrees that renewable energy should be a bigger percentage of APS’ generation
portfolio and that renewable energy will offset the need for generation from

conventional resources. However, to date, APS is paying a premium for

1859729.12 -1-
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II.

renewable energy, and that premium must be given consideration. My testimony
will also include a discussion of APS’ pending Wind Integration Cost Study and
the concerns raised by Interwest Energy Alliance. Finally, I will discuss APS’

interest in exploring additional Demand Response offerings to provide effective

supply side options for meeting our system needs.

RENEWABLES AS A HEDGE

IN MR. BERRY’S TESTIMONY, HE INDICATES THAT APS SHOULD
USE AN INCREASED AMOUNT OF RENEWABLE ENERGY AS A
HEDGE AGAINST HIGH NATURAL GAS PRICES. DO YOU AGREE
WITH HIS CONCLUSION?

I agree with his proposition that renewable energy should make up a larger

percentage of APS’ generation portfolio. APS has supported the increasing

renewable energy requirements proposed in the draft Renewable Energy Standard

» (LCRES”)-

DO YOU BELIVE THAT THE RENEWABLE ENERGY PROCURED BY
APS IS AN EFFECTIVE HEDGE AGAINST NATURAL GAS?

While renewable energy will offset some of the need for generation from natural
gas, this displacement comes at a higher cost than natural gas, based on current
prices. In general, there is a cost premium for any “hedge”, and careful
consideration of the cost is required. So, while renewable generation may be
“effective™ as a hedge due to its displacement of future gas needs, the critical
questions are whether they are a cost effective hedge and whether the added costs
are acceptable from the perspective of APS customers. Natural gas hedges can be
secured at a relatively small cost over prevailing market prices, yet renewable
energy is currently only available at a more expensive premium to the cost of
conventional, gas-fired energy resources. Mr. Berry provides‘ data that indicates

that renewable energy can be procured at a small premium to, or possibly even

1859729.12 -2-
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below, the cost of conventional resources. There have been some very recent
projects in certain states where that has been true, but unfortunately APS has not
been in that situation. APS has been acquiring resources in the market and is
paying a significant premium compared to the cost of conventional energy

resources utilizing natural gas.

WHY IS APS NOT ACQUIRING RENEWABLE PROJECTS AT THE
RELATIVELY LOW PRICES MR. BERRY IS CITING?

A pumber of factors affect the price of renewable generation, such as federal and
state incentives, the price of equipment, and the quality of the natural resource
(e.g., wind, geothermal steam, or biomass material). Arizona renewable resources
are limited and can be lower quality than renewable energy resources available in
somé states. APS’ choices are to procure out-of-state renewable resources in
direct competition with other utilities, or to acquire the limited in-state resources

at a higher cost.

DOES THIS MEAN RENEWABLES ARE NOT AN EFFECTIVE
ECONOMIC HEDGE AGAINST NATURAL GAS?

Not necessarily. It just means that the economics are not as obvious or compelling
for APS as they may be for other utilities, and that global statements on the topic
may prove inaccurate in the specific case of APS. Project specific analysis is

required to adequately measure the economic value of each renewable project.

DOES THE TYPE OF RENEWABLE TECHNOLOGY AFFECT ITS
VALUE AS A HEDGE?

Yes. Renewable energy that displaces energy produced by natural gas generation
will cause a reduction in gas volume purchases and thus will reduce the total
exposure to natural gas price volatility. But, as Mr. Berry correctly points out in

his testimony, wind energy is an intermittent source of power, which means that

1859729.12 ~3-
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the timing of when the energy is being produced is uncertain from hour to hour,
day to day and variable over the course of the year. Moreover, the wind energy
resources that might be most available to the Company generally are less
available during the peak summer démand period when gas generation is most-
needed. This uncertainty means it may be difficult to schedule the gas purchases
needed to counterbalance the renewable resource intermittency, possibly resulting

in increased costs.

MR. BERRY INDICATES THAT AN ADVANTAGE OF USING
RENEWABLE ENERGY IS THAT RENEWABLE ENERGY PRICES ARE
FIXED. DO YOU SEE THIS AS A BENEFIT? '

Yes, it is a benefit. Renewable energy is generally either at a fixed price or a price
with known escalators, which in either case removes price uncertainty from a
certain percentage of APS’ energy portfolio. However, it generally comes at a
premium when compared to the expected price of energy from conventional
resources. Our renewable purchases made under settlement agreement in Decision
No. 67744 locked in a cost of renewable energy that was up to 125% above APS
avoided cost. We can’t ignore the premium we are paying for the benefit of a.

fixed price.

WIND INTEGRATION COST STUDY

MS. ORMOND RAISES CONCERNS ABOUT APS’ METHODOLOGY
FOR CALCULATING WIND INTEGRATION COSTS. DOES APS
SHARE MS. ORMOND’S CONCERNS?

We believe it is in everyone’s best interest that we continue to study the impact of

the integration of renewable resources into our portfolio. For this reason, APS is
in the final stages of discussion with Northern Arizona University for the

coordination of a Wind Integration Cost Study.

1856729.12 -4 -
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DESCRIBE THE APS WIND INTEGRATION COST STUDY.

The wind integration cost study is being designed to answer the question of what
are the system impacts and costs associated with effectively integrating potential
wind projects into APS’ system. It will address the nuances of APS’ system, and
the known characteristics of probable wind projects that may be made available to
APS. This study should establish a basis to start from, and as we gain experience
with actual renewable resources we will have the ability to better predict and
evaluate the costs and impacts of integrating specific renewable resource
technologies into the system, particularly those which demonstrate intermittency
like wind and solar. NAU will conduct the analysis with the direct involvement of
industry experts, with the scope, technical process and results overseen by a
Technical Advisory Committee. In addition, a Stakeholder Advisory Committee
is being formed to provide review from a variety of stakeholders including other
utilities and renewable energy advocates. A time frame is currently being
evaluated, but APS expects the integration cost study to be complete in

approximately 6 to 8 months.

WHY IS A WIND INTEGRATION COST STUDY NECESSARY?

Our most recent experience is that APS has had limited availability to detailed
wind data. Our recent experience is that very few bidders could provide detailed‘
wind data, so getting multiple years of data on numerous projects, as one would
require for an effective cost study, has been difficult if not impossible. To date,
wind data is still very difficult to acquire because developers have limited site
specific data and carefully guard what data they have. Industry knowledge is also
limited and is to date, system and project specific. APS’ system and Arizona’s

wind resources are unique and widely publicized studies based upon others’

1859729.12 -5-
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projects and systems are not directly transferable to Arizona projects on APS’
system. The wind in Texas isn’t the same as the wind in Arizona. Also, APS
relies heavily upon natural gas fired power plants for system regulation whereas
other utilities may be able to provide regulation out of lower cost hydroelectric or
coal-fired facilities. A Wind Integration Cost Study would incorporate input from
industry professionals and establish a more credible method to determine the
expected wind resource integration costs. In addition, APS will bé gaining
specific knowledge on wind integration costs once our two wind projects begin

operation in early 2007.

DEMAND RESPONSE

SEVERAL INTERVENORS EXPRESSED AN INTEREST IN DEMAND
RESPONSE. DOES APS SUPPORT DEMAND RESPONSE?

Yes. APS is interested in Demand Response (“DR”) and believes it may be able
to provide effective supply-side options for meeting system needs, in addition to
introducing greater elasticity in energy demand and use. To be effective, DR
programs must adequately address reliability requirements and provide economics

that are favorable compared to other supply-side options.

DO YOU AGREE WITH STAFF AND RUCO THAT DEMAND
RESPONSE OFFERINGS NEED TO BE EXPLORED?

Yes. There are a variety of demand response programs which differ in their
implementation cost, benefits, infrastructure needs and complexity of
administration. Price response in particular is very complex and requires a

through assessment of infrastructure costs, customer acceptance and pricing

- mechanisms. One only needs to look to the myriad of demand response initiatives

in California to realize large number of potential approaches. For that reason, a

thorough study is necessary to determine which types of Demand Response

1859729.12 -6-
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programs would be likely to produce the most cost effective benefits for the APS
system and our customers. We will need to analyze the types of technologies
(measures) to be considered, measure-by-measure benefit to cost, potential MW
impacts, types of customers who would pérticipate and their specific loads, likely -
customer responses and behavior, what it would take to get customers to
participate, and the costs of infrastructure/equipment for such a program. The
results of this analysis should be reviewed and commented on by interested
parties, including the Arizona Corporation Commission (“*ACC”), Residential
Utility Consumer Group (“RUCO™), and industry participants. Staff has proposed
that APS perform a feasibility study for demand response programs and a
cost/benefit analysis within eight (8) months of the Decision and submit one or
more demand response programs for ACC approval after the study is completed.
Although APS is not opposed to conducting such a study, eight months is not a
sufficient amoﬁnt of time to complete a thorough study and develop appropriate

demand response programs.

RUCO HAS SUGGESTED THAT A TASK FORCE BE FORMED TO

EXPLORE OPPORTUNITIES FOR LOAD SHAVING AND LOAD

./S&HIII{EII*ZNG THROUGH DEMAND RESPONSE PROGRAMS. DO YOU
G ?

The first course of action should be to conduct a study to determine which types
of Demand Response programs are most beneficial to the APS system and our
customers. APS is not opposed to a task force but believes the most effective and
expeditious way to manage this first phase is for APS to conduct the study with
open communication with interested parties. After the assessment is complete, the
specifics of which programs are selected, the ‘costs of the programs, and how
certain programs are procured and managed can be discussed with interested

parties and filed with the Commission for approval.

1859729.12 » -7-
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VI

IS THERE A FUNDING MECHANISM FOR COSTS THAT WOULD BE

INCURRED TO STUDPY AND DEVELOP DEMAND RESPONSE
PROGRAMS?

Since Demand Response is included in Decision No. 67744 along with Demand
Side Management programs, the DSM adjustor mechanism provides for such
funding and, for now, is the appropriate mechanism. Demand Response programs
funded through the DSM adjustor mechanism would be filed with the
Commission for approval prior to implementation in a manner similar to the DSM

programs.

CONCLUSION

AND DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR PREFILED REBUTTAL
TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING?

Yes.

1859729.12 -8-
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TESTIMONY OF CHRIS N. FROGGATT
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05- 0816)

INTRODUCTION
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

" My name is Chris N. Froggatt. My business address is 400 N. 5% Street, Phoenix,

Arizona 85004.

WHAT IS YOUR POSITION WITH ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
COMPANY?

[ am Vice President and Controller for Arizona Public Service Company {(“APS” or
“Company”). My educational background and professional qualifications, as well
as my professional e_xperience,' are set forth in Appendix A, which is attached to
this testimony.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

My testimony will primarily focus on the historical accounting data in the
Company’s filing, including unadjusted test year ended September 30, 2005 data
(“Test Year”). I will also testify regarding how the capital structure proposed by

APS witness Donald Brandt is used to calculate the Company’s cost of capital.

SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY
PLEASE PROVIDE A SUMMARY OF YOUR TESTIMONY.

My testimony addresses historical accounting data and pro forma adjustments that

are required by various Standard Filing Requirement (“SFR”) Schedules of the

~ Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission”) to support the Company’s rate
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case filing. I will discuss information from the Test Year (twelve months ended|
September 30, 2005) and prior years relating to the Summary Schedules, SFR
Schedules A-2 and A-3, and inéorne statements relating to the Test Year and prior
years, as set forth in SFR Schedule C-1. Of the pro formas set forth in SFR
Schedule C-2, I will be sponsoring the following:

e Regulatory Assessments and Franchise Fees

e Environmental Portfolio Standard

o Demand Side Management

e Interest on Customer Depbsits

¢ Amortization of Regulatory Assets

e Pinnacle West Energy Corporation (“PWEC”) Loan

e Out of Period Income Tax Adjustments

¢ Generation Production Income Tax Deduction

e Income Tax / Interest Synchronization
I will discuss the factor used to gross up operating income to account for taxes, as
set forth in SFR Schedule C-3. T will also discuss the capital structure of the
Company and provide APS’ actual overall cost of capital, as set forth in SFR
Schedules D-1, D-2 and D-3. (Mr. Brandt will discuss the projected information on
Schedule D-1.) This will include information on the cost of equity providéd by Dr.
William Avera, APS’ return on equity (“ROE”) witness, as well as the Company’s
cost of debt. In addition, I will sponsor the various schedules relating to the
Company’s financial statements, as set forth in SFR Schedules E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4,
E-7, E-8 and E-9 (Mr. Brandt will discuss the projected information on these
schedules). SFR Schedule E-6 is not applicable to APS. SFR Schedule E-5 will be
addressed by Ms. Laura Rockenberger. Finally, I will sponsor the Test Year data

on SFR Schedules F-1 and F-2, which address projected income statements and
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projected changes in financial position. Mr. Brandt will address the projected

information on those schedules.

HISTORICAL AND TEST YEAR ACCOUNTING DATA
' PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ACCOUNTING INFORMATION CONTAINED

WITHIN THE SFR SCHEDULES THAT YOU ARE SPONSORING.

As the Controller of APS, I am responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting by the Company. Thus, my testimony covers historical accounting data,
including the actual data for the Test Year. The majority of this information is

either directly or indirectly contained in both the APS and consolidated Pinnacle

West Capital Corporation (“Pinnacle West"’) audited financial statements, which

are included in filings made with the Securities and Exchange Commission

(“SEC”) for the relevant years.

Additionally, all of the accounting information provided in my testimony complies
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). These are the
principles that accounting professionals use to preparé financial statements. One
major goal of GAAP is to make financial statements comparable from year to year,
from industry to industry, and from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. APS’ accounting
practices comply with other applicable utility accounting standards, such as the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) Uniform System of Accounts,
which has also been adopted by the Commission. See A.A.C. R14-2-212(G).

In large part, my testimony supports the testimony of other APS witnesses. The
direct testimony of Mr. Brandt addresses financial projections to actual Test Year
data. Ms. Rockenberger addresses, among other things, Original Cost Rate Base,
the PWEC and Sundance units, the nuclear decommissioning fund, depreciation

and working capital requirements. Mr. Rumolo focuses on the .jurisdictional

-3-
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allocation of APS revenues, costs, and rate base items. Dr. Avera’s testimony

addresses the Company’s ROE.

A. Summary Schedules

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE HISTORICAL INFORMATION IN SFR
SCHEDULE A-2,

SFR Schedule A-2 provides the ‘Summary Results of Operatlons for the Test
Year and the prior three calendar. years. It also includes projected information for
two calendar years after the Test Year. I am sponsoring the data contained in the|
first four columns of SFR Schedule A-2, which is historical data fo;' the prior
calendar years and the Test Year. Mr. Brandt is sponsoring the projected

information on this SFR Schedule.

PLEASE DISCUSS SFR SCHEDULE A-3.

SFR Schedule A-3 is the “Summary of Capital Structure” for APS, which is
separated into the Test Year, three prior calendar years, and a projected period. As
with SFR Schedule A-2, I am sponsoring the historical prior calendar years and

Test Year data.

B. Test Year Income Statements

PLEASE DISCUSS THE INF ORMATION THAT YOU ARE SPONSORING
IN SFR SCHEDULE C-1.

SFR Schedule C-1 is the summary of the Company’s adjusted Test Year income
statement. | am sponsoring the historical Test Year data in the first column of SFR
Schedule C-1. This information provides the baseline from which pro forma
adjustments are made and shows operating income and net income for the Test

Year. As shown on the schedule, APS’ operating income and net income during the
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Test Year period were $ 377 million and $ 167 million, respectively, on revenues

of nearly $ 3.4 billion.

ARE YOU SPONSORING ANY OTHER RELATED SFR SCHEDULES?

Yes, I am sponsoring SFR Schedules C-2 and C-3. SFR Schedule C-2 presents the
pro forma adjustments to the Company’s Test Year operating income. 1 will
discuss these adjustments in detail later in my testimony (see section IV “Pro
Forma Adjustments”). SFR Schedule C-3 shows the computation of the gross|

revenue conversion factor.

PLEASE DESCRIBE SFR SCHEDULE C-3.

SFR Schedule C-3 calculates the factor applied to “groSs-up” income to account for
income faxes so that taxes that must be paid by APS are reflected in the revenue
requirement that APS is requesting. The Gross Revenue Conversion factor off
1.6407 (shown on line 3) is simply an algebraic transformation of APS’ composite
federal and state income tax rate of 39.05 percent. This factor is used on SFR
Schedule A-1 (line 7) to arrive at the increase or decrease in Gross Revenue

Requirements necessary to account for income taxes.

C. Capital Structure and Cost of Capital

PLEASE DISCUSS THE COST OF CAPITAL INFORMATION THAT YOU
ARE SPONSORING.

SFR Schedule D-1 is the summary of the Company's historical and projected cost
of capital. I am sponsoring the Test Year data in this schedule. Mr. Brandt will
discuss the Company’s proposed capital structure and the pro forma adjustments to
the cost of capital. SFR Schedule D-2 presents supporting detail for the long-term
debt that is summarized on SFR Schedule D-1. SFR Schedule D-3, which

addresses preferred stock, is included in the Company’s schedules for
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completeness, but it is not applicable because APS had no outstanding preferred
stock at the end of September 2005 and in fact, has had none for many years. SFR

Schedule D-4 addresses the Company’s cost of common equity.

PLEASE DISCUSS IN MORE DETAIL THE COMPANY’S
OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM DEBT AS OF THE END OF THE TEST

© YEAR.

At the end of the Test Year, approximately 74 percent of APS’ outstanding long-
term debt consisted of unsecured notes with a weighted average interest rate of]
approximately 6 percent ($114,928,000 divided by $1,910,476,000). Most of the
remainder of the Jong-term debt consisted of tax-advantaged pollution control
bonds. This debt has weighted average interest rate of about 3.6 percent. APS also
has a small amount of interest related to capital lease obligations and amortization
of gains and losses on reacquired debt, both of which are classiﬁed as interest

expense and are reflected on SFR Schedule D-2.

WHA'I; WAS APS’ CAPITAL STRUCTURE AT THE END OF THE TEST
YEAR!?

APS’ total long-term debt and common equity was approximately $ 5.6 billion.
This was comprised of approximately $ 2.6 billion in long-term debt (including
current maturities) and approximately $ 3.0 billion in common equity. Thus APS’
capital structure at the end of the Test Year was approximately 46 percent debt and

54 percent equity.

WHAT IS THE COST OF CAPITAL THE COMPANY IS REQUESTING?

| As discussed in Mr. Brandt’s testimony, and set forth on SFR Schedule D-1, the|

adjusted cost of capital the Company is requesting is 8.73 percent.
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D. Financial Statements

ARE E(;‘I)J SPONSORING SFR SCHEDULES E-1 THROUGH E-4, E-7, E-8
AND E-9? :

Yes. These schedules relate primarily to historical financial and accounting
information, as well as the notes to the financial statements. SFR Schedule E-6 is|

required only for combination utilities and therefore does not apply to APS.

PLEASE DISCUSS SFR SCHEDULES E-1, E-2 AND E-3. |

These three schedules contain information féund on the balance sheet, thé income
statement and the cash flow statement for the Test Year period and the three prior
caléndar years. SFR Schedul_e E-1 provides comparative balance sheets for these
periods, while SFR Schedules E-2 and E-3 provide comparative statements of]
income and comparative statements of cash flows, respectively. The calendar year

financial statements were included in SEC Form 10-K filings for the relevant years.

PLEASE DISCUSS SFR SCHEDULE E-4.

SFR Schedule E-4 shows changes in stockholders’ equity for the Test Year and
three prior calendar years. This schedule shows that stockholders’ equity changed
by net income, common stock dividends and other comprehensive income. APS’
other comprehensive income includes minimum pension liability adjustments and
unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments used to hedge gas and power ‘
costs. Even though these items are not yet realized, GAAP requires these items to
be reported in stockholders’ equity through other comprehensive income or loss,

rather than be reflected in net operating income.

WHAT INFORMATION IS PROVIDED IN SFR SCHEDULE E-7?
SFR Schedule E-7 provides detailed information conc'erning APS’ sales (in kWh),

number of customers and average usage per customer over the last three years,
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- including the Test Year. This information is contained in or derived from APS’

FERC Form 1 filings for the applicable periods, and is separated by customer
classes to show residential, commercial, industrial, irrigation, public street and
highway lighting, other sales to public authorities, and sales for resale.
Additionally, SFR Schedule E-7 shows the average revenue per residential
customer, which in 2004 was approximately 8.54¢/kWh. SFR Schedule E-7 also
shows that the direct production expense per kWh and the direct transmission

expense per kWh sold in Test Year were 4.0¢/kWh and 0.06¢/kWh, respectively.

PLEASE DISCUSS SFR SCHEDULE E-8.

SFR Schedule E-8 prdvides a breakdown of the taxes paid by APS during the Test
Year and the three prior calendar years, showing federal, state and local taxes paid.

This tax figure is used to derive the gross-up factor used in SFR Schedule C-3.

PLEASE DISCUSS SFR SCHEDULE E-9.

SFR Schedule E-9 sets forth the notes to the financial statements. These notes
include, but are not limited to, the Company’s accounting policies for dcprec.iation,
capitalized interest and income taxes. The notes also provide additional detailed |
information related to the income .statement, the balance sheet and the cash flow
statement. The Company is providing a copy of the Form 10-K for fiscal year
ended December 31, 2004 and a copy of Form 10-Q for third quarter 2005 as an
attachment to SFR Schedule E-9.

E. Projections and Forecasts

PLEASE DISCUSS THE INFORMATION THAT YOU ARE SPONSORING
IN SFR SCHEDULES F-1 AND F-2?.

SFR Schedule F-1 is a schedule that shows an income statement for the projected

calendar year, compared with actual test year results, at present and proposed rates.

-8-
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SFR Schedule F-2 shows projected changes in financial position for the projected
year compared with the Test Year, at present and proposed rates. I am sponsoring
the historical Test Year data in the first column of each of these SFR Schedules.

Mr. Brandt will address the projected data on these SFR Schedules.

PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS

4. Test Year _

WHAT TEST YEAR HAS APS PROPOSED IN ITS APPLICATION?‘

The twelve months ended September 30, 2005 is the Company’é proposed Test
Year. This represents the rhost recent historical calendar period for which
complete cost of servi?:e information was available at the time we prepared this
filing. |

ARE THERE ANY ADJUSTMENTS TO THE FINANCIAL RESULTS

ACHIEVED BY THE COMPANY DURING THE TEST YEAR THAT THE
COMMISSION SHOULD CONSIDER?

Yes. The Test Year must be adjusted for changes in operating expenses, revenues,
and plant-in-service, among others, which are known, meésurable, and capable of]
being reconciled with the Test Year to create a matching of costs and revenues.
The objective of making adjustments to Test Year results is to reflect conditions

expected to exist at the time the new rates become effective.

WHAT DOES A “KNOWN AND MEASURABLE” ADJUSTMENT MEAN?

I consider an adjustment to be “known” when, given all the circumstances, its
probability of occurrence is significantly greater than the chance it will not occur.
An adjustment is “measurable” if it can be quantified in a meaningful fashion, such

that the recognition of at least part of its effect on Test Year results will make the

Test Year “more representative” than if the adjustment were omitted altogether.
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WHAT DOES 1T MEAN THAT AN ADJUSTMENT MUST BE
RECONCILED WITH TEST YEAR OPERATIONS?

This is generally known as the “matching principle.” This principle states that
revenues required ecjual the cost of seﬁice incurred. For example, a pro forma
adjustment for increased electric sales should include a corresponding adjustment
to expenses that recognize the additional cost of service needed to produce these

sales. As with the concepts of “known and measurable,” one cannot insist on a

'precise matching for all adjustments without effectively requiring a constantly

updated Test Year. The issue is one of degree and of faimess.

DID APS MAKE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS TO TEST YEAR
OPERATING INCOME?

Yes. Many adjustments were done to be consistent with Decision No. 67744,
issued April 7, 2005, where the Commission adopted a settlement agreement to
resolve the issues in the most recent APS rate case. (“2002 Test Year Settlement™).
Test Year pro forma adjustments can be categorized into three basic types:

1) Accounting, ‘ie., adjustments that remove expenses or revenues properly

recorded during the Test Year but associated with prior periods;

2) Annualizations, ie., adjustments typically made in a rate case to annualize
the full effect of events taking place during the Tést Year; and

3) Known and measurable changes. i.e., adjustments to expenses or revenues
that took place or will take place after the end of the Test Year, and which
are of such significance that they should be recognized for rétemaking

purposes.

HAS THE COMMISSION PREVIOUSLY ACCEPTED PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE COMPANY’S TEST YEAR?

The Commission’s own rule specifically recognizes these types of adjustments. See

-10-
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A.A.C.R14-2-103. 1t has been the consistent practice of the Commission to accept

pro forma adjustments to Test Year rate base and operating income in rate cases.

B.  Pro Forma Adjustments To Operating Income

HAS APS MADE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS TO TEST YEAR
OPERATING INCOME?

Yes. These adjustments are set forth in Schedule C-2 of the Company’s
application. SFR Schedule C-2 provides total Company figures and Mr. Rumolo’s
jurisdictional allocation of my adjustments, which he will address in his testimony.
The Total Company portion of this SFR Schedule corresponds directly with
Attachments CNF 1-1 through CNF 1-9.

IS INCOME TAX EXPENSE INCLUDED IN EACH OF YOUR
OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS?

Yes. Each pro forma adjustment identified in Attachments CNF 1-1 through CNF

1-9 includes an income tax calculation, at the current statutory combined state and
federal income tax rate, so that the impact on net income for each adjustment can
be determined. However, throughout most of my testimony I will be referring to

pro forma adjustment amounts on a before income tax basis.

(i)  Regulatory Assessments and Franchise Fees

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE COMPANY’S PROPOSED TREATMENT OF
REGULATORY ASSESSMENTS AND FRANCHISE FEES?

This pro forma adjustment is being made so that all regulatory assessments and
franchise fees will be treated as pass-throughs and will not be included in base
rates, which is consistent with the settlement adopted in Decision No. 67744, This
adjustment removes assessments and franchise fees from both operating revenues
and expenses in the Test Year in the amount of $ 15,947,000. See Attachment CNF
1-1.

-11 -
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PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ADJUSTMENT TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL

(i) Base Rates Component for EPS

PORTFOLIO STANDARD (“EPS”).

This pro forma adjustment reflects the Company’s accounting for the $6 million
authorized System Benefits Charge (“SBC”) to fund the EPS. In the Test Year, the
Company inc'urred capital costs related to EPS. Revenue of $ 6,779,000, which
was equivalent to these costs, was reclassified to a contribﬁtion-in-aid-of-
construction. Because the costs were charged to construction work in process
rather than an Operation and Maintenance account, they are not reflected in the
Test Year operating results. The pro forma adjustment is needed to properly
reflect, for ratemaking treatment, revenue of $6,779,000 and $6,000,000, the
allowed portion of expenses related to the base rate portion of the SBC used to
fund the EPS. The pro forma adjustment to pre-tax operating income is $779,000,
as shown on Attachment CNF 1-2. |

(iii) Demand Side Management

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE COMPANY’S PROPOSED ADJUSTMENT TO
DEMAND SIDE MANAGEMENT (“DSM”) COSTS.

Decision No. 67744 mandated that the Company spend $10 million annually on
DSM programs, which are to be funded through base rates beginning in 2005. The
actual DSM expense in the Test Year was § 7,011,000, $ 2,989,000 less than is
currently required on afgoing-forward basis. The DSM pro forma adjustment
increases Test Year operating costs by the $ 2,989,000 and recognizes the
corresponding reduction in revenue as a result of DSM programs, which is
expected to be $ 4,907,000. See Attachment CNF 1-3. Mr. Peter Ewen discusses

the revenue calculation in his testimony.

-12-




© 00 ~N O O D W N e

t\)l\)[\)wl\)l\)l\)l—'t—lb—lp—lp—-p—n)_ap—lﬁ—tp_a
O A WD = OO N YT DD W N = O

(iv) Interest On Customer Deposits

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ADJUSTMENT FOR INTEREST ON
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS.

This pro forma adjustment reflects the annualized interest cost associated with
customer deposits (interest expense) as an Opefating expense, because the customer
deposit balances at the end of the Test Year are treated as a rate base deduction.
This treatment conforms to the approach utilized by the Commission in previous
Company rate cases. The pro forma adjustment was calculated by applying a 2.79
percent annual intefest rate to the September 30, 2005 outstanding deposit balance.
The annual interest rate is the rate required by APS tariffs for customer deposits —
the established one-year Treasury Constant Maturities rate, effective on the first
business day of each year, as published on the Federal Reserve website. This
resulted in a reduction of pre-tax operating income of § 1,529,000. See Attachment .

CNF 1-4.

(v)  Amortization of Regulatory Assets

WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE AMORTIZATION OF REGULATORY
ASSETS PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT? '

This adjustment provides for the amortization of the Palo Verde Unit 2
Sale/Leaseback rent levelization regulatory asset over the remaining life of the
lease, which is consistent with the 2002 Test Year Settlement adopted in Decision
No. 67744. The net pretax adjustment is $ 381,000, as shown on Attachment CNF
I-5.

-13-
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(vi) PWEC Loan
PLEASE EXPLAIN THE COMPANY’S ADJUSTMENT RELATED TO

THE 2.64 PERCENT INTEREST PREMIUM ON THE APS LOAN TO
PWEC. '

Commission Decision No. 65796 (April 4, 2003) authorized APS to issue non-
secured debt in an amount up to $500 million and loan the proceeds to PWEC.
That decision also required APS to charge PWEC a 2.64 perccnf ihterest premium,
as long as the loan was outstanding. This operating income pro forma reflects the
2.64 percent interest premium credit, which includes the amount deferred through
April 11, 2005, when the loan was repaid. In addition, consistent with Decision No.
67744, the amount deferred through December 31, 2004 is being amortized on a
straight-line basis over five years, beginning April 1, 2005. Decision No. 67744
required that the amounts deferred after December 31, 2004 were to be reflected in
APS’ next general rate proceeding. Accordingly, the amount deferred after
December 3}, 2004, will be amortized on a straight-line basis over a five year
period, beginning January 1, 2007. This pro forma includes an accrual of interest
at the rate of six percent, as required by Decision No. 67744. The adjustment of]
$3,330,000 is an increase to pretax operating income, as shown on Attachment

CNF 1-6.

(vii) Out of Period Income Tax Adjustments

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR OUT OF
PERIOD INCOME TAX ADJUSTMENTS. )

This pro forma adjustment removes income tax true-up items impacting income tax
expense that were recorded during the Test Year period, but relate to a period
earlier than the Test Year period. In addition, it adds income tax true-up items that
relate to the Test Year périod. Finally, it removes income tax expense recorded

during the Test Year period related to non-recurring income tax items. This pro

-14-
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forma decreases income tax expense by $1,287,000. The Test Year income tax
expense still includes credits and other items related 1o the Test Year. See

Attachment CNF 1-7.

(vii) Generation Production Income Tax Deduction

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR
GENERATION PRODUCTION INCOME TAX DEDUCTION.

On October 11, 2004, President Bush signed into law the American Jobs Creation
Act (“Act™). The Act created Internal Revenue Code Section 199 (“Section 199™),
which provides a new income tax deduction related to income attributable to
qualified production activities. On October 20, 2005, the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”™) issued proposed regulations addressing Section 199. Electricity production
is considered a qualified production activity for purposes of this Act; however
transmission and distributionbser\?ices are not. The proposed regulations provide
that a joint owner who owns less than 50% of a generating facility will not be
attributed the qualified production activity associated with such generation facility.
This deduction applies to years beginning in 2005. For 2005, the deduction is equal
to the lesser of three percent of the qualified production activities income (“QPAI’)
or the consolidated taxable income. The deduction increases to six percent in 2007
and increases again to nine percent in 2010. QPAI is equal to gross receipts, less
the cost of production and other related direct and allocable indirect costs. In
calculating this pro forma, gross receipts were determined by using the 12 months
ended September 30, 2005 Test Year functionalized revenue requirement,
excluding the impact of this deduction, fér electricity production. The related direct
and allocable indirect costs (except for interest expense) were determined by using
the 12 months ended September 30, 2005 functionalized operating expenses for

electric production. Functionalized interest expense for electric production was

-15-
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determined by multiplying electric production for the Test Year rate base by the
weighted interest rate component of the cost of capital. Next, adjustments were
made to reflect items treated differently for GAAP and income tax purposes.
Finally, a reduction was made to remove the QPAI generated' by jointly-owned
generating facilities in which APS owns 50% or less. This reduction was
determined by first deriving the ratio of net book value of plant fdr the jointly-
owned facilities divided by net book value for all generating facilities. This ratio
was multiplied by the total generation QPAI, which was then subtracted from total
generation QPAI to arrive at QPAI attributable to APS. QPAI for electric
production activities associated with generating facilities wholly owned by APS for
the 12 month§ ended September 30, 2005 Test Year is approximately $79 million.
The deduction percentage in 2007, which is the year the new rates will become
effective, is six percent. Therefore the deduction is approximately $4.8 million,
which translates into a reduction in'income tax expense of $1.,862,000. The
Proposed Regulations may be modified prior to becoming final regulations and the
final regulations may change the amount of this deduction. This calculation is set

forth in Attachment CNF 1-8.

(ix) Income Tax / Interest Synchronization

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ADJUSTMENT FOR INCOME TAX AND
SYNCHRONIZATION OF INTEREST.

This adjustment reflects the synchronization of interest expense using the adjusted
September 30, 2005 capital structure and cost of long-term debt, as well as the use|
of current statutory income tax rates. This pro forma adjusts after-tax operating

income by $2,906,000, as set forth on Attachment CNF 1-9.

-16 -
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A.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

Yes, it does.

-17-




Appendix A
Statement of Qualifications
Chris N. Froggatt

‘Chris N. Froggatt is Vice President and Controller for Arizona Public Service Company.
Mr. Froggatt has responsibility for Accounting Services, Tax Services, Insurance Risk
Management, Supply Chain, Transportation and Public Safety. These services are
provided as needed across all of the Pinnacle West companies.

Mr. Froggatt graduated from Michigan State University in 1980 with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Accounting. He is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of both the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Arizona Society of Certified
Public Accountants. :

Mr. Froggatt spent six ‘and one-half years in public accounting upon graduation from
college. He joined APS in December 1986 as Manager of Financial Reporting and
became Director of Accounting Services in 1992. In July of 1997, Mr. Froggatt was
named Controller for APS and had effectively the same responsibilities for Pinnacle
West. He was promoted to Vice-President and Controller of Pinnacle West in July 1999.

1367762.1
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REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF CHRIS N. FROGGATT
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0816)

INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND POSITION WITH APS.

My name is Chris N. Froggatt, and I am Vice President and Controller for Arizona
Public Service Company (“APS” or “Company™).

DID YOU FILE DIRECT TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING?

Yes. I filed Direct Testimony in tﬁis docket on November 4, 2005 (“Initial
Filing™), and also provided updated testimony on January 31, 2006 (“January
Filing™).

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

The purpose of my Rebuttal Testimony is to address several adjustments to
operating income proposed by Staff and RUCO witnesses. I will also address two
proposed rate base adjustments. I will indicate where we are in agreement with
those recommendations, and will discuss those that I do not believe are
appropriate or accurate. In addition, I will present the Company’s revised income
statement, which incorporates the adjustments the Company has accepted as

discussed herein.

SUMMARY OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
PLEASE PROVIDE A SUMMARY OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY.
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Staff and intervenors in this case have proposed both rate base and operating ‘
income adjustments to the Company’s original request. In some cases, proposals
are for reasonable revisions due to legislative changes, updated information that
was not available at the time the Company filed its original request, or corrections
for errors uncovered during the discovery process. Other adjustments that have
been pfoposed are clearly inappropriate or inaccurate, and I discuss why these
adjustments should either be revised or not accepted at all. Spépiﬁcally, I discuss
the following proposed operating income adjustments with which I agfee:

¢ Staff and RUCO’s Unregulated Marketing and Trading adjustment

e Staff’s Income Tax adjustment
In addition, I agree with Staff and RUCO’s rate base adjustment related to long
term disability deferrals (SFAS 112).

The following proposcd operating income adjustments are those with which I
agree in principle, but portions of the calculations require corrections, which I
discuss:

e RUCO’s Interest on Customer Deposits adjustment

¢ Staff’s Generation Production Deduction adjustment

o Staff and RUCO’s Income Tax/Interest Synchronization adjustment

e RUCO’s Out-of-Period Tax Consulting Fee adjustment

However, I do not agree with Staffs Investment Tax Credit rate base adjustment.

Additional Staff and intervenor operating income pro forma recommendations are
addressed by APS witnesses Laura L. Rockenberger, Peter M. Ewen, and David J.
Rumolo in their Rebuttal Testimony. Ms. Rockenberger will also address the |

remainder of the proposed adjustments to rate base.
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Additionally, the Company’s Adjustments to Schedule C-1, the revised income
statemént which' incorporates all adjustments accepted or corrected by the
Company, is attached to my testimony as Attachment CNF-1RB. I sponsor the
Total Company calculations that are presented on page 1. Attachment CNF-2RB
is the Company’s Adjustments to Schedule C-2, which individually presents each
adjustment, including those adjustments that other Company witnesses are
discussing. Of these adjustrﬁents, I am sponsoring the Total Company column for

those which I have listed above and discuss in my Rebuftal Testimony.

All jurisdictional allocations shown on the attached Adjustments to Schedule C-1
and C-2 have been calculated using the same factors that were used in APS’
January 31, 2006 filing, and were addressed by Mr. Rumolo in his Direct

Testimony.

The overall change in the Company’s rate request, which includes these revisions,

is addressed by APS witness Steven M. Wheeler in his Rebuttal Testimony.

STAFF AND INTERVENOR RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS
A Unregulated APS Marketing & Trading Activity

DO YOU AGREE WITH AN ADJUSTMENT TO REMOVE
UNREGULATED APS MARKETING AND TRADING ACTIVITY AS IS
RECOMMENDED BY BOTH STAFF AND RUCO?

Yes, I do. During the discovery process, the Company became aware that it had
inadvertently failed to exclude revenue and expenses associated with ‘APS’
unregulated marketing and trading activities. These activities relate to transactions
that are not used to serve APS native load, and therefore should have been

excluded in the Company’s test year calculations. This adjustment is proposed in
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Staff Schedules C-4 and C-5, sponsored by Staff witness Dittmer, and in the
Direct Testimony of RUCO witness Diaz Cortez on page 24. This additional
adjustment increases test year pre-tax operating income by $15.1 million, and is

shown on Attachment CNF-3RB.

B. Federal énd State Income Tax

DID STAFF PROPOSE A REVISION TO THE FEDERAL AND STATE
INCOME TAX PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT?

Yes. As part of the discovery process, Staff and the Company agreed upon a “top
down” cost-of-service income tax expense calculation. This calculation uses 2006
levels of various tax credits and other permanent tax items to estimate on-going
income tax expense. This calculation is shown on Staff Schedule C-20, sponsored
by Mr. Dittmer, and reduces test year income tax expense by $4.8 million. I agree
with Staff’s proposal and this adjustment is set forth on Attachment CNF-4RB.

C. Rate Base Offset for Long Term Disability (SFAS 112)

DOES THE COMPANY AGREE WITH THE RECOMMENDATION OF
STAFF AND RUCO TO ADJUST RATE BASE FOR LONG TERM
DISABILITY DEFERRED CREDITS (SFAS 112)?

Yes. Mr. Dittmer presents Staff’s proposed rate base adjustment on Staff Schedule

B-1, and Ms. Diaz Cortez discusses RUCO’s proposed adjustment on pages 7 and

8 of her Direct Testimony. Deferred credits related to expenses for employees on
long-term disability were incorrectly excluded from rate base. The expenses are
included in the test year and the related credit should likewise be included as a rate
base offset. The calculation is shown on Aftachment CNF-SRB ‘and results in a

rate base reduction of $3.9 million.
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D.  Interest on Customer Deposits

WHAT IS THE OPERATING INCOME ADJUSTMENT PROPOSED BY
RUCO WITNESS RIGSBY REGARDING INTEREST ON CUSTOMER
DEPOSITS?

On RUCO Schedule WAR-1, Mr. Rigsby calculates an adjustment for interest on
customer deposits of $2.5 million, which results in an increase of $976,000 over
the Company’s original proposal. RUCO recommends using the most recent
interest rate (as determined in the Company’s Service Schedule 1, Terms. and
Conditions for Standard Offer and Direct Access, p_aragraph 2.7.4) available prior
to the filing deadline for direct testimony. In this case, the most recent rate is the
2006 rate of 4.38 percent, in contrast to the 2005 rate of 2.79 percent used by the

Company in its January Filing.

DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS ADJUSTMENT?

I agree with the principle of adjusting this interest rate to the most recently
available rate. However, it appears that RUCO inadvertently utilized the March
31, 2006 deposit balance rather than the test year balance at September 30, 2005.
Using the September 30, 2005 balance multiplied by the revised rate results in a
total interest expense of $2.4 million. This revised calculation is shown on
Attachment CNF-6RB and results in a pre-tax operating income decrease of

$871,000 from the Company’s January Filing calculation.

E. Generation Production Deduction

DO YOU AGREE WITH STAFF’S ADJUSTMENT TO THE COMPANY’S

ORIGINAL GENERATION PRODUCTION INCOME TAX DEDUCTION

CALCULATION?
I agree in principle with the changes to the Generation Production Deduction

calculation as discussed by Staff witness Dittmer on pages 126 through 128 of his

-5-
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Direct Testimony. Staff presents a series of appropriate revisions to the
Company’s original calculation, based on the final Treasury Regulations pursuant
to the American Jobs Creation Act, which were not available when the Company

filed its direct testimony on this issue.

DO YOU DISAGREE WITH A PORTION OF STAFF’S ADJUSTMENT?

Yes, I do. Staff calculates its deduction adjustment using its proposed weighted
cost of common equity. As discussed by' APS witness Donald Brandt in his
Rebuttal Testimony, the Company does not agree with Staff’s recommended
weighted cost. Therefore, I have recalcuiated the deduction adjustment using
Staff’s proposed changes, but with the Company’s recommended capital structure.
This revised calculation results in a reduction in income tax of approximately $3.1
million, an additional $1.2 million reduction from the calculation included in the
Company’s January Filing pro forma adjustments. The Company’s recalculated
Generation Production Deduction is shown on Attachment CNF-7RB. Ultimately,
this adjustment should reflect the cost of capital used by the Commission to

establish rates in its final order.

F. Income Tax/Interest Synchronization

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE PURPOSE OF AN INCOME TAX/INTEREST
SYNCHRONIZATION PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT.

The purpose of this adjustment is to align the cost of long-term debt and the
capital structure, which was utilized as a part of the calculation of the Company’s
rate request, with the effect of pro forma adjustments made to the test year raté
base. Therefore, when a rate base pro forma adjustment is revised (which would
reflect a change in futufe capital requirements, possibly requiring a different cost

or level of debt acquisition), this synchronization pro forma must be revised as

-6-
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well to reflect any change in the Company’s cost or level of debt related to that
revision. Resultant income tax changes due to increases or decreases in debt are

then included in operating income.

DID STAFF AND RUCO PROPOSE CHANGES IN THE COMPANY’S
ORIGINAL SYNCHRONIZATION PRO FORMA?

Yes. Staff’s recommendation is proposed by Mr. Dittmer and presented on
Schedule C-19. RUCO’s adjustment is sponsored by Mr. Rigsby and is shown on
Schedule WAR-3.

DO YOU AGREE WITH THEIR ADJUSTMENTS?

I agree that it is appropriate to revise the synchronization adjustment as revisions
to rate base and/or cost or level of debt are proposed. However, because the
Company does not agree with all of the Staff and RUCO rate base adjustments, or
changes to the Company’s weighted cost of debt, I do not agree with their specific

synchronization calculations.

WHAT IS THE COMPANY’S PROPOSED ADJUSTMENT?

The Company’s proposed synchronization adjustment calculation is presented on
Attachment CNF-8RB. The calculation reflects rate base adjustments accepted or
recalculated by the Company and results in a.synchronization adjustment decrease

of $263,000 in interest expense.

-G. Out-of-Period Tax 'Consulting Fees

ARE YOU IN AGREEMENT WITH RUCO’S PROPOSED ADJUSTMENT
FOR OUT-OF-PERIOD TAX CONSULTING FEES?

Yes, I am. These consulting fees were incurred to prepare a claim made by APS

to the IRS for certain Investment Tax Credits (“ITCs™) that was ultimately
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successful. This expense was incurred prior to the beginning of the test year, is

not an on-going expense, and is appropriate to exclude from operating expense.

The adjustment proposed by RUCO does not include an additional expense of $1.5
million recorded in the test year. This additional expense, although recorded
during the test year, is non-recurring and should also be removed from operating |
expense. This revision increases RUCO’s adjustment from a $1.2 million
reduction to operating expense (as discussed .in Ms. Diaz Cortez’s Direct

Testimony at page 21) to a $2.8 million operating expense reduction, as shown on

Attachment CNF-9RB.

DID STAFF ADDRESS THIS SAME OUT-OF-PERIOD CONSULTING
FEE?

Yes, Mr. Dittmer addresses this fee in Staff’s Schedule C-12. Staff includes both
portions of the fee in its calculation, but proposes that the expense reduction be
split on a 50/50 basis between ratepayers and the Company as part of a larger
proposal involving the ITCs themselves as a rate base reduction. I do not agree
with the overall Staff proposal regarding these ITCs and the corresponding
consulting fees. I believe both the fees and the tax credits are appropriately

removed from regulated cost of service in their entirety.

WHY DO YOU BELIEVE BOTH THE FEES AND THE TAX CREDITS
ARE APPROPRIATELY REMOVED FROM REGULATED COST OF
SERVICE AND RATE BASE?

First, as I discuss above in full agreement with Staff and RUCO, both the fees and

the related tax credits are non-recurring and clearly unrelated to the test year.
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Second, as part of the 1994 settlement (Docket No. U-1345-94-120, Decision No.
58644), the Company was authorized to accelerate below the line amortization of
all deferred ITC’s in order to fully amortize those credits over a five year period
beginning in 1995. Staff’s proposed adjustment is not consistent with this
treatment.

Lastly, I will address the rate base portion of Staff’s proposal below.

H. Investment Tax Credit Rate Base Reduction

PLEASE DISCUSS STAFF’S RATE | BASE PROPOSAL REGARDING
ITCs.

These ITCs are income tax credits, originally issued by the IRS in 1962
specifically for reinvestment purposes, which were realized by APS as a result of
our recent claim requesting additional credits for 2'1 specific transition period after
repeal of the ITCs in 1986 (as allowed by law). In Schedule B-3, Staff has
proposed a 50/50 sharing of the ITCs. ‘

DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS PROPOSAL?
No. It is clear, based on discussions with outside legal counsel, that Staff’s

proposed treatment would constitute an IRS normalization violation.

WHY DOES THIS TREATMENT CONSTITUTE A NORMALIZATION
VIOLATION?

Of the additional ITCs allowed as a result of this claim, the majority (62%) relates
to nuclear fuel. Under the ITCs regulations, a Company rate base offset (as
proposed by Staff) requires a corresponding below-the-line amortization of the
ITCs over time. The amortization period can vary, but in no event can it exceed

the remaining useful life of the related asset. This fuel, being fully spent years
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ago, has no remaining useful life. Therefore, under no circumstances can the
related ITCs be treated as a rate base offset and amortized 15 years afier the fact.

This clearly constitutes a normalization violation.

In fact, there have been several recent (2005 - 2006) IRS rulings on this subject, in
response to utilities that have sought to continue the amortization of existing ITCs
balances despite the fact that the facilities to which the ITCs was related were
transferred or sold: The IRS has consistently issued adverse rulings premised on

the fact that the related facilities had no remaining useful life.

THAT COVERS ONLY A PORTION OF THE ITC. WHAT ABOUT THE
REMAINING PORTION? '

The remainder of the additional ITCs (38%) relates to facilities that may have a
remaining useful life. However, APS is in the unique situation of receiving the
ITC 15 to 20 years into the useful life of the related assets (as our claim related to
the tax years 1986—199()). It is likely that tax authorities would deterrﬁine that any
rate base offset allowed would be limited té what would have been the
unamortized 2006 balance from the time the assets were placed in service. If the
balance is required to be calculated in this manner, Staff’s proposed treatment for
this remaining portion would be a normalization violation as well. Determination
of the treatment of these ITC’s would have to be requested from the IRS in the

form of a Private Letter Ruling.

DO PENALTIES EXIST FOR NORMALIZATION VIOLATIONS?
Yes. Tax law regarding normalization violations for ITC’s specifies that a
violation results in a full disallowance of the entire ITC originally allowed for

those years within the statue of limitations. The Company’s statute of limitations

-10-
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remains open back to the 1980°s. This would be a significant liability for APS

and, ultimately, its customers.

Therefore, for all these reasons discussed above, I do not support Staff’s ITC
proposal.

CONCLUSION

WHAT IS THE IMPACT OF ADDITIONAL ADJUSTMENTS ON THE
COMPANY’S TEST YEAR OPERATING INCOME?

All Staff and intervenor recommended adjustments that the Company agrees with
or has revised, including those addressed by other Company witnesses, are shown
on Attachment CNF-2RB. These adjustments result in an Adjusted Total
Company ﬁet income of $(51,137,000) for the test year ending September 30,
2005, as shown on Attachment CNF-1RB, page 1. This is an increase of
$4,032,000 over the January Filing of Adjusted Total Company test year net

income.

As 1 mentioned earlier, the overall change to the Company’s rate request, which
includes this adjusted test year net income, is presented and discussed by Mr.

Wheeler in his Rebuttal Testimony.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
Yes.

-11 -




‘Attachment CNF-1RB

Page1 of 2
ARIZONA PUBLIC-SERVICE COMPANY
Total Company
Adjusted Test Year income Statement
Test Year 12 Months Ended 08/30/2005
(Dotlars in Thousands)
Total Company
SFR
Schedule
: - G4 Rebuttal Rebuttal
Line as Filed © Adjustments Adjusted
No. Description on 1/31/06 to C-1 C-1
(@ (®) ©

1 Electric Operating Revenues $§ 3,509,720 $ (836,652) $ 2,673,068
2 Purchased power and fuel costs 2,174,283 (810,949) 1,363,334
3 Operating revenues less purchased power and fuel costs 1,335,437 ~ (25,703) 1,309,734
4 Other operating expenses:
5 Opefsation and maintenance 684,209 (20,565) 663,644
3 Depreciation and amortization 344,690 (262) 344,428
7 income taxes 9,852 (7.200) 2,752
8 Other taxes 141,838 ~__(1,708) 140,131
9 Total 1,180,690 _ (29,735) 1,150,955
10 Operating income 154,747 . 4,032 158,778
11 Other income (deductions).
12 income taxes . 56,698 56,698
13 Allowance for equity funds used during construction 10,433 10,433
14 Regulatory disaliowance (143,217) (143,217}
15 Other income 26,019 26,019
16 Other expense (15,1786) {15.176)
17 Total (65,243) - (65,243)
18 income before income deductions 89,504 4,032 93,536
18 Interest deductions: .
20 interest on long-term debt 141,301 - 141,301
21 Interest on short-term debt 6,285 6,285
22 Debt discount, premium and expense 4,344, 4,344
23 AFUDC - debt ~ (7.257) (7,257)
24 Total 144,673 - 144,673
25 Net Income $ . (55169) § 4,032 $ (51,137




Attachment CNF-1RB

Page 2 of 2
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
ACC Jurisdiction
Adjusted Test Year income Statement
~ Test Year 12 Months Ended 9/30/2005
(Dollars in Thousands)
ACC Jurisdiction
SFR
Schedule
C-1 . Rebuttal Rebuttai
Line as Filed Adjustments Adjusted
No. Description on 1/31/06 to C-1 . C-1
@ ®) ©
1 Electric operating revenues $ 3,440,590 $ (823,174) $ 2617416
2 Purchased power and fuel costs 2,128,741 (787,409) 1,332,332
3 Operating revenues less purchased power and fuel costs 1,310,849 (25,765) 1,285,084
4 Other operating expenses:
5 Operation and maintenance 766,212 .(20,208) 746,003
6 Depreciation and amortization 306,988 (259) 308,729
7 Income taxes 395 . (7,116) (6,721)
8 Payroll and Other taxes 121,350 (1,688) 119,662
9 Total 1,184,945 (25,272) 1,165,673
10 “Qperating income $ 115,904 $ 3,507 $ 119,411
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REJOINDER TESTIMONY OF CHRIS N. FROGGATT
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0816)
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0826)
(Docket No. E01345A-05-0827)

INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, ADDRESS AND OCCUPATION.
My name is Chris N. Froggatt, and I am Vice President and Controller for Arizona

Public Service Company (“APS” or “Company”). My business address is 400 North
Fifth Street, Phoenix, Arizona, 85004.

DID YOU PREVIOUSLY FILE DIRECT AND REBUTTAL TESTIMONY IN
THIS PROCEEDING?

Yes.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REJOINDER TESTIMONY?

I have reviewed the Surrebuttal Testimony of Staff witness Dittmer and am responding

to his latest proposal for the treatment of certain Investment Tax Credits (“ITCs™).

DOES YOUR SILENCE REGARDING ANY OF THE ISSUES DISCUSSED BY
OTHER PARTIES INDICATE AN ACCEPTANCE OF THOSE POISTIONS BY
THE COMPANY?

No, it does not. For those issues, the Company maintains its position discussed in

previous testimony.

SUMMARY OF REJOINDER TESTIMONY

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR REJOINDER TESTIMONY.

In surrebuttal testimony, Staff proposes a modification to its original rate base treatment
of ITCs (as proposed in Staff Direct Testimony) in order to address the fact that

implementation of Staff’s initial proposal would constitute an IRS normalization
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violation. While the modified proposal does address that one concern, I continue to

- believe that Staff’s treatment of these ITCs is inappropriate and inconsistent with prior

Commission directives, and that these credits should be eliminated from rate base in

their entirety.

STAFF’S MODIFIED ITC RATE BASE PROPOSAL

PLEASE SUMMARIZE STAFF’S TREATMENT OF THESE CREDITS.
In Direct Testimony, Staff proposed a 50/50 ratepayer/shareholder sharing of the “net”

savings realized from the Company’s recent ITC claim. In my Rebuttal Testimony, I
discussed how this proposal would violate the normalization provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code. Material ramifications of such a violation would include the forfeiture
of tens of millions of dollars in previously claimed ITCs. In Surrebuttal Testimony,
Staff modified their rate base proposal in an attempt to avoid ény violation. Staff now
proposes that 100% of the unamortized ITC balance related to plant not fully depreciated

be reflected as a rate base. offset.

DO YOU AGREE THAT THE MODIFIED PROPOSAL AVOIDS AN IRS
NORMALIZATION VIOLATION?

Yes, I believe Staff’s latest proposal would not result in an IRS violation. However, [ do

not support or agree with Staff’s modified proposal.

WHY DO YOU CONTINUE TO DISAGREE WITH THE PROPOSAL?

First of all, this proposed treatment is still wholly inconsistent with Decision No. 58644,
wherein the Company was authorized to accelerate amortization of all deferred. ITCs
over a five year period beginning in 1995. The Company’s ITC claim in question
related to the years 1986 through 1990. Had these credits been issued on original
income tax returns, they would have been fully amortized by the year 2000 — some 6

years ago.
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WHAT ARE YOUR OTHER CONCERNS?

As I discussed in my Rebuttal Testimony, both the costs to obtain these tax credits and
the tax credits themselves are non-recurring and clearly unrelated to the test year. For
this reason alone, Staff’s modified proposal should be rejected. The Company is in full
agreement with excluding the cost of obtaining these ITCs from test year operating

expense.

CONCLUSION
DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR REJOINDER TESTIMONY?

Yes, it does.
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REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF MARK K. GORDON ON BEHALF OF
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0816)

INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
My name is Mark K. Gordon. My business address is One Embarcadero Center,

Suite 1400, San Francisco, California 94111.

HAVE YOU PROVIDED PREVIOUS TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

No, I have not.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE NATURE AND PURPOSE OF YOUR
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY.

I was asked to analyze APS’ incentive compensation programs, evaluate the
goals and effectiveness of the programs, and respond to the suggestions by
certain Staff and Intervenor witnesses that some of the costs of these programs

should be disallowed by the Commission in calculating APS’ recoverable costs.

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND.

My educational background includes a Bachelors degree in Psycholbgy and a
Masters in Business Administration from the University of California at
Berkeley.

BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?

I am a principal with Hewitt Associates LLC and a senior consultant in our

Talent and Organization Consulting practice.
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PLEASE DESCRIBE THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS OF HEWITT
ASSOCIATES.

Hewitt Associates LLC (“Hewitt”) is a global human resources management and
administration consulting firm. Since 1940, Hewitt has provided well over
10,000 organizations with a broad range of consulting and administrative
services related to total compensation and other human resource needs. Hewitt
consults with many mid- and large-sized organizations, including over half of the
FORTUNE® 500 companies. In addition, our proprietary Total Compensation
Measurement " (TCMTM) DataBase represents the total compensation (including
base salary, annual- and long-term incentives, supplemental benefits and
perquisites) practices of over half of the FORTUNE 500 companies and a
substantial representation of the electric and gas utility sector.

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR OWN PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS.
I work with a broad range of public and private general industry corporations
including utility and enefgy service businesses in the West Region. I have
twenty years of management consulting experience with Hewitt, specializing in
executive and broad-based compensation program strategy, design, and
implementation. My testimony is based on my own professional experience; the
collective compensation consulting experience of Hewitt Associates; our
extensive library of published, private, and proprietary compensation surveys;
and our understanding of the Arizona Public Service Company’s (“APS”)

incentive plans.

HOW DOES THE EXPERIENCE YOU HAVE DESCRIBED ABOVE
RELATE TO YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING?

My educational background in psychology and business emphasized the study of
motivation theory and organizational behavior management. This perspective is
very helpful in assessing the effectiveness of incentive design from both an

-2
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objective and qualitative point of view. Over the past twenty years, I have been
personally involved in the design and review of hundreds of officer, management
and broad based employee incentive plans covering annual and multi-year
performance periods for clients in a variety of industries, including regulated gas
and electric utilities. This experience, in the context of -consulting on “total
compensation” strategy and evaluation of competitive market practice provides a
strong foundation for me to comment on the structure, potential value and
effectiveness of APS’ Variable Incentive Plan. In addition to my client activity, I
have years of experience woi'king annually with a variety of published and
private survey sources which help me stay current on competitive market

practices and trends in compensation management.

PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

I was asked to comment on the purpose, prevalence, cost, and effectiveness of
variable pay incentive programs in corporate America, including the utility
industry and respond to the suggestions by certain Staff and Intervenor witnesses
that some of the costs of these programs should be disallowed by the
Commission in calculating APS’ recoverable costs. In addition, I was asked to
evaluate the nature and effectiveness of APS’ incentive compensation program
based on a variety of objective data and interviews with selected APS employees
representing various organization levels who are participants in the program. My
testimony addresses the benefits these types of incentive programs provide for
key constituents (including - customers, employees, and shareholders); the

motivational value of incentive programs in encouraging employees to achieve

~3-
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key operational, customer service, and cost containment goals; and the need to be
market competitive to attract and retain a stable, talented workforce. My
testimony also addresses my evaluation of the effectiveness of APS’ incentive

compensation program in achieving its stated goals and objectives.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR CONCLUSIONS REGARDING THE APS
COMPENSATION PROGRAMS.

Based on my review of APS’ annual variable incentive plans, and the long-term
incentive plan, I conclude that these plans are designed consistently with
competitive market practices, and their targeted compensation value is either
below or consistent with competitive market practices. This indicates to me that

cash compensation has been conservatively managed at APS.

I believe these plans are integral in providing a reasonable, competitive “total”
compensation program at all levels of the organization. The elimination of any
of these programs would significantly impair APS’ ability to attract and retain
employees critical to its successful ongoing operation. In fact, it could lead to
higher turnover rates which would likely result in reductions in productivity,
increase recruiting and training costs as well as damage employee morale and
erode the Company’s value system of high performance, accountability and pay
for performance. Given my years of experience and knowledge of competitive
practices, I view these compensation and benefit programs as a normal and
reasonable “cost of doing business” and therefore the costs of these programs
should not be disallowed by the Commission in calculating APS’ recoverable

Ccosts.

In addition, the variable incentive plan has demonstrated effectiveness at aligning |

employees with its business objectives and reinforcing a high performance
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culture. The design and administration of the variable pay programs, including
the goals and objectives, appear to correlate well with performance results that
have significantly benefited customers over the pﬁst 10 years. APS’ commitment
to goal setting at all levels of the organization and ongoing communication serve
to motivate employees and create a clear focus on accountability and pay for

performance.

Given the current demographics of APS’ workforce, including the high
percentage of employees who are curréntly or soon will be eligible to retire, and
the projected decrease in talented candidates entering the workforce, APS’ ability
to maintain stability with its current workforce and effectively compete for new
talent will be critical to its future performance. Providing a competitive total
compensation opportunity is fundamental to APS’ ability to attract and retain

high performing employees and in the best interests of customers.

NATURE OF WORK PERFORMED

PLEASE EXPLAIN WHAT YOU DID AND WHAT YOU REVIEWED AS
PART OF YOUR WORK ON THIS MATTER.

When I agreed to testify for APS, I asked for and was furnished with the

kfollowing information by APS management to better understand the APS

compensation program including incentive plan designs, award structures,

performance results and payout history as of 2005:

° APS Variable Incentive Plans (PNW Chairman and CEO, Officer, Senior
Management, Management, and Employee)
° Ten years of history (1996-2005) of APS performance metrics, goals and

incentive results
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« Industry performance benchmarking results on a variety of operating,.
customer and safety criteria
. Description of the APS Performance Share plan and Pinnacle West

Capital Corporation 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan document

I also requested and was provided with the most recent (October 2005) results of
an annual independent consultant market assessment of APS executive
cc;mpensation levels compared to a Board approved peer group of other utilities
with similar operating characteristics and general industry companies. I
supplemented my analysis with additional benchmark information from Hewitt’s
proprietary executive compensation database, including detailed plan design and
administrative specifications for incentives and target award opportunities at a

selected group of approximately 20 electric and gas utilities.

In addition to reviewing the above documentation, I interviewed selected APS
non-officer employees at various organization levels to gather anecdotal
experience and perceptions related to the understanding and motivational value
of the annual Variable Incentive Plan. I also had access to management for

clarification of any program designs or administrative activities, as needed.

I was also recently provided with a copy of the direct testimonies of Mr. James
R. Dittmer on behalf of the Utilities Division Staff (dated August 18, 2006) and
Ms. Marylee Diaz Cortez, CPA on behalf of the Residential Utility Consumer

office.

My testimony reflects the independent evaluation of this background

information, my understanding of market practices and my extensive experience

* working with clients on these types of programs.

-6-
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OVERVIEW OF VARIABLE PAY INCENTIVE PROGRAMS

PLEASE PROVIDE AN OVERVIEW OF WHAT YOU CALL VARIABLE
PAY INCENTIVE PROGRAMS.

Corporate America, including the utility industry, has undergone signiﬁcant
changes and restructuring over the past two decades. Evolving business
strategies, dereguiation, global competition, workforce demographics, and the
competitive labor market are key factors driving companies to create flexible
organization structures and human resource systems necessary for ongoing
business success. One of the more subtle but sweeping changes in human
resource strategy over this time period has been the widespread implementation
of variable incentive compensation programs at virtually all organization levels
as an integral element of the total compensation and performance management
systems. These programs and systems, once reserved for senior management,

increasingly have been extended to cover all employees in some form.

I’d like to make an important distinction between a “bonus” program and
“incentive” program. A bonus program is often viewed as a discretionary “add-
on” to base pay, with the award size subjectively determined at the end of the
year. Whereas, an annual incentive program is an integral part of annual cash
compensation where a portion of the employee pay is put at risk and establishes
an expectation for the participant at the beginning of the year that if certain
performance results are achieved, a predictable award will be earned based on
objective criteria and the actual award earned is variable based on actual results
relative to the pre-set goals. This type of system provides a more clear

connection between variable pay and performance.
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A properly designed incentive program with a competitive award structure has
become a critical part of employee retention strategies as well as for attracting
new talent and motivating desired performance. In many organizations, it also
plays a strategic role in aligning pay with performance results and engaging
employees to take more ownership in business success. A company without an
incentive compensation program today is clearly at a competitive and operational

disadvantage.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF SUCH VARIABLE PAY INCENTIVE
PROGRAMS?

The philosophy and strategic reasons behind the introduction of variable

incentive plans include to:

| Link pay with business performance and personal contribution to results.
° Motivate participants to achieve higher levels of performance.

. Communicate and focus on critical success measures.

. Reinforce desired business behaviors, as well as results.

. Reinforce an employee ownership culture.

In other words, incentive plans serve many purposes. Principally, however, they
are intended to improve business results by focusing employees on critical goals,
motivating them to direct their behaviors and rewarding them for performance

achievement, all while maintaining a reasonable compensation level.

Moreover, incentive plans are undertaken because the benefits (or performance
outcomes) associated with payments generally outweigh the program costs. The
key benefits of incentive plans include motivating performance which achieves
desired results, making total compensation cost variable depending on company
performance, delivering a total compensation program that is attractive to

-8~
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existing and potential employees and aligning and focusing attention on key
2 behaviors or specific goals.
3 {|Q. HOW PREVALENT ARE SUCH INCENTIVE COMPENSATION
PROGRAMS IN CORPORATE AMERICA TODAY, WHAT ARE THE
4 TYPICAL COSTS OF THESE PROGRAMS, AND HOW DOES APS
5 COMPARE?
A. A recent Hewitt survey (2005 Salary Increase Survey) shows that the prevalence
6
of U.S. companies with at least one broad-based variable compensation plan has
7 ,
increased from 60% in 1994 to over 75% in 2005. Company spending on
8
variable pay for salaried exempt employees (as a percent of payroll) below the
g .
officer level over this period increased from 6.4% to 11.4%. Over the same time
10
period (1994-2005), average annual merit base salary increases have declined
11 ’ .
from approximately 4.0% of payroll to 3.6%.
12
13 The following table summarizes the ten year historical spending trend in
14 employee variable pay and annual merit increases for salaried exempt employees
15 among general industry companies compared with APS:
16
General Industry vs. APS Spending on Broad-Based
17 Cash Compensation for Salaried Exempt Employees
(as a % of Pavroll)
18 12.0%
19 10.0% ]
20 8.0% [ ]
21 86.0%
29 4.0%
o
23 2.0%
0.0% — —— - S—-— — — . - . -
24 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2008
26
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As shown in the table, APS’ spending on variable pay has been considerably
below industry averages in all years except 1998 and base salary increases have
likewise been below industry averages in all years. This indicates to me that
cash compensation has been conservatively managed at APS for a number of
years.

DOES THE NATURE OF THE UTILITY INDUSTRY, AS
DIFFERENTIATED FROM CORPORATE AMERICA GENERALLY,

MAKE INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAMS LESS
IMPORTANT OR LESS BENEFICIAL?

Absolutely not. In fact, incentive compensation plans have taken on increasing
importance in helping utilities provide a competitive “total compensation”
package that allows them to compete with general industry companies to attract
and retain a competent, stable workforce that in turn provides efficiencies and
costs savings for the company and its customers and shareholders. As job
mobility across industries and heightened competition for leadership and top
talent has increased in recent years, workforce stability and the retention of key
leadership throughout the employee ranks provide several benefits to a utility

company and its customers, including:

° Minimizing costs associated with high turnover including recruiting,
training, and decreased productivity associated with filling vacant
positions.

. Continuity of the executive, management, and professional teams to
develop and implement effective business strategies. |

° More consistent and efficient customer service, with resultant cost savings

and other customer benefits.

-10-




- N R

o0

10
11

12.

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

In the regulated public utility industry, companies must meet the needs of
multiple stakeholders including customers, shareholders, and the communities in
which they operate. Incentive compensation programs, if properly designed and

implemented, provide benefits to all of those constituents.

THE DESIGN OF APS’ INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM

DdES THE BASIC DESIGN OF APS’ INCENTIVE COMPENSATION
PROGRAM COMPORT WITH THE GENERAL OBJECTIVES AND
PURPOSES OF SUCH INCENTIVE PROGRAMS?

Yes. APS’ annual program as of 2005 is called the Variable Incentive Plan and
has five distinct organization levels of participation—PNW Chair/CEO, Officer
(includes APS President, EVP and VP), Senior Management, Management and
Broad-Based Employees. These plans combine a focus on Company
performance and Business Unit results defined as Critical Success Indicators
(“CSIs”) and provide a monetary incentive when these goals are accomplished.
At APS, the current plan is funded when Company earnings exceed a threshold
level of performance. Having a corporate performance threshold based on
earnings is consistent with a large majority (88%) of similar gas and electric
utilities reported in the Hewitt database. The amount of the funded pool that is
earned is based on the achievement of Company Earnings and Business Unit
CSIs. CSIs are key business goals covering areas including operational
efficiency, safety, environment, and customer satisfaction. The incentive
program has been in place at APS for over ten years and is an integral part of the
overall business and human resource strategy to align employees with the
Company’s mission, strategy, and value system and enhance awareness of key

business objectives.

-11-
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A unique dimension to the employee alignment strategy of the APS incentive
program is the inclusion of IBEW members, which represent almost one-third of
the workforce, and at the participation level of other frontline employees. The
participation of represented groups is not common in the utility industry, and I
believe it has been particularly effective at APS in directing their behavior and
reinforcing the importance of key operating goals and objectives throughout the

organization across all employee groups.

Factors that have been identified through research and reported in general

industry surveys as enhancing incentive plan effectiveness include:

. Setting realistic goals/targets.

. Effectively communicating plans.

° Using appropriate measures.

. Ensuring a clear understanding of plan objectives.
J Correlating accomplishments with rewards.

In addition, motivation theory suggests that the effectiveness of an incentive plan
is driven by the employees’ perception of the ability to impact performance
results, the probability of achieving pre-set goals, and the meaningfulness of
rewards. APS’ Variable Incentive Plan is designed consistent with these

underlying “effectiveness” factors.

Finally, APS’ variable incentive compensation helps to manage the Company’s
ongoing cost structure of total pay because incentive awards must be “re-earned”

every year.

-12-
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COULD YOU PLEASE EXPLAIN IN MORE DETAIL HOW APS’
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM OPERATES TO ACHIEVE
THE GOAL AND OBJECTIVES OF THE PROGRAM?

APS has used its annual Variable Incentive Plan to focus employee behavior and
provide a meaningful opportunity to impact and share in the Company’s
operating results. APS provides a threshold, midpoint and maximum award
opportunity (as a percent of base pay) to its employees consistent with those
reported among other utility and general industry companies. A midpoint, or
“target” award is the amount which an employee will receive if the actual results
generally equal those budgeted. Actual payments are based on the results
achieved and are below target if the overall performance is less than planned or

above target if performance exceeds plan goals.

APS’s incentive awards are determined based on a combinati?n of financial and
operating performance results. The APS incentive paymen!t is based on the
Company meeting a threshold earnings goal and, at the Business Units, the level
of achievement of CSlIs. If the threshold earnings goal is not met, no payout is
made. After the threshold earnings goal is met, the incentive award is generally
determined 50% based on Company earnings and 50% based on CSIs through
the EVP level. This performance/award structure effectively balances
participants’ focus on customers and shareholders. For Frontline employees, an
additional award “kicker” of up to 2% of pay is awarded based on customer
satisfaction scores. In 2005, no Officer awards were granted. The 2005
incentive payout was approximately $30 million (of which a significant part was
paid by non-APS generation plant participants). Non-officer management awards
represented 35% of the pool and Frontline employee (including IBEW) awards

represented 65% of the total incentive pool. Awards at these organization levels

-13.
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reflected Corporate earnings performance and the achievement of Business Unit
CSIs (as described above). The performance/award structure effectively
balances the focus on performance for customers and shareholders, with an
increasing emphasis on incentives tied to customer performance metrics below
the Officer level, providing a more meaningful focus on pay for performance for

the Frontline employees.

HOW DO THE 2005 TARGETS AND ACTUAL INCENTIVES OF THE
APS PROGRAM COMPARE TO THOSE OF OTHER COMPANIES
THAT HAVE INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAMS?

APS’s target award structure, in general, appears to be reasonably positioned and
in some cases lower than median when compared with the opportunity at
comparable utilities and general industry companies. A target award (generally
expressed as a percentage of base pay) is the expected award level assuming all
performance goals are met at “plan” or “budgeted” levels. The following table
compares APS’s 2005 target awards to the typical market range of target annual
business incentive awards at the Officer level (Chair/CEO/Presiderit, EVP, VP)
Salaried Exempt—Management, Salaried Exempt/Non-Exempt—Frontline, and

Union Hourly—Frontline levels '.

1

Results from Hewitt’s 2005 Total Compensation Measurement™ DataBase survey of industrial and service

organizations and 2005 Competitive Compensation Analysis of executive and officer positions at APS.

- 14 -
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2005 Utility Industry 2005 General Industry | APS Target
Target (%) Target (%) (% of base
75th 75th pay)
Employee Group  Average Median _ %ile |Average Median _%ile
Chair/CEO - 85% 100% - 104% - “125%
President - 80% 85% - 99% - 75%
EVP - 50% 60% - 60% 70% 50%
VP - 40% 45% - 45% 50% 35%
S;;a“"d Exempt— 133 100 131 | 111 100 150 7.5%
anagement
Salaried Exempt/ _
Non-Exempt— 7.6 55 105 5.6 5.0 70 3%+1%
Frontline
U;,“°“ Hourly— 38 29 50 | 38 35 50 | 3%H%
rontline

As summarized above, the PNW Chair/CEO target is somewhat above average
but as pointed out later total target direct pay is below the market median. All
other organization levels appear to have target award opportunities that are at or
below the market median. While the Senior Management level is not shown in
the table due to the lack of a direct general market comparison, based on my
experience, I believe that APS’ target of 15% for this participant level would also
be at or below the market median. The large majority of incentive plan structures
provide for a potential range of actual awards from O to two times the target
award (e.g., if the management target is 7.5% of pay, the maximum award for
significantly exceeding budgeted goals is 15% of pay). APS’ award range

opportunity is consistent with this market practice.

The following table compares APS’ actual 2005 incentive awards (as a % of base
pay) and 5-year average actual awards to the 2005 market actuals for the same

participant levels:

-15-
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2005 Utility Industry 2005 General Industry APS Actual

Actual (%) ) Actual (%) (% of base pay)
75th 75th © 1 2001 -2005
Employee Group  Average Median _ %ile |Average Median _%ile | 2005 | Average
Chair/CEO 103% 148% 14% 178% | 0% 65.1%
President - - - - - - 0% 42.4%
EVP - 61% 120% - 66% 119% | 0% 21.0%
VP - 43% 78% - 47% 92% 0% 15.8%
S;};‘r‘ed Exempt— 53 100 168 | 114 100 150 |126%| 8.0%
anagement

Salaried Exempt/

Non-Exempt— 8.1 6.5 9.9 59 5.0 7.8 15.00% 3.8%

Frontline
Union Hourly— 37 23 50 | 40 40 50 |500%| 32%

Frontline .

VI

As summarized above, the actual 2005 and 5-year average annual awards
(expressed as a percentage of base pay) under the APS plan show a dramatic
shortfall for the executive and officer levels, 2005 Management awards were
near the market average and Frontline awards were below the median for salaried
non-exempt employees and at the 75™ percentile for IBEW participants. Five
year average awards were below market averages at all levels. Overall, these
award levels continue the trend of APS’ conservative management of cash

compensation relative to the market.

THE BENEFIT TO CUSTOMERS

HOW DOES APS’ INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM BENEFIT
CUSTOMERS?

APS’ incentive program directly benefits customers in a number of ways. In
general, as part of a total compensation program that helps to attract, motivate
and retain key employees, it is a key factor in driving a high performance culture.
By retaining high-performing employees, customers benefit not only from the
heightened experience of these valued employees but also by minimizing

turnover costs arising from recruiting, “downtime” and retraining. In addition,
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variable incentive compensation helps to manage payroll expenses because

incentive awards must be “re-earned” every year.

APS’ incentive program goals emphasize a balanced performance focus on
customers, shareholders, and the communities in which it operates. As
mentioned above, rﬁanagement and broad-based employee participants have
specific goals contributing to operational efficiency, improved productivity,
safety, environment, customer service, and cost control. All of these goals
contribute to two common results: reducing costs, which can then be passed
along to cuétomers in the form of reduced rates or which can free up funds for

other investments to benefit customers, and higher levels of customer service.

APS’ performance goals are specific, meaningful, achievable, relevant and time
sensitive. The measures directly benefit customers by focusing on controlling
costs, providing good customer service, and promoting safety. Goals are
established at the Corporate level, but also at the operating Business Unit (e.g.,
Fossil, Delivery, Shared Services) level to provide employee “line-of-sight” with
measures that they impact day-to-day. Goals are communicated to participants to
help them understand why objectives are important and how accomplishment of
“local” gqals contributes to achievement of higher-level Company goals. For
example, APS’ Delivery Unit CSIs include Safety goals measuring weeks
without a preyentable recordable injury, Customer Satisfaction as measured by
survey results, Business Performance Trends, System Average Interruption
Frequency Index (“SAIFI”) performance and Environmental Incidents. These

measures clearly have a strong correlation with customers.

-17 -
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VII. THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE APS PROGRAM

Q.

WHAT DETERMINATIONS ABOUT THE ACTUAL EFFECTIVENESS
OF THE APS INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM HAVE YOU
MADE?

I reviewed data prepared by APS comparing its performance against industry
performance on a variety of operating metrics. My conclusion is that, over the

past ten years, APS has a demonstrated performance record of cost containment,

system operating reliability and safety as summarized in:

. Attachment MKG-1 summarizes the Non-Generation O&M per
Customer APS v. Similar Sized and Regional Utilities 1995-2005 which
shows that APS has outperformed other regional and similarly sized
utilities in every year since 1995

o Attachment MKG-2 summarizes the Edison Electric Institute’s 2004
Reliability Report based on System Average Interruption Frequency Index
(SAIFI) and System Average Interruption Duration Index (SAIDI) from
1996 to 2004 which shows that APS has improved SAIFI by 38% and
SAIDI by 44% while the National Average SAIFI has gotten worse by 9%
and the National Average SAIDI has gotten worse by 109% during the
same period.

L Attachment MKG-3 summarizes how APS has consistently ranked
among the top utilities according to the Edison Electric Institute Safety
Survey for the lowest total recordable injury incidence rate from 1996-
2005

o Attachment MKG-4 summarizes the JD Powers Studies of Residential

and Business Customers which show that APS has ranked among the top
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third of utilities in each of the last five years, including the top ten in three |
of those years on customer satisfaction.
As described previously, these operating, safety and customer service metrics are
Critical Success Indicators in the annual Variable Incentive Plan. Based on my
review of plan documents and discussions with employees and officers, I believe
the incentive process has significantly contributed to APS’ impressive and

consistent results on these criteria.

I also conducted interviews with selected plan participants below the officer level
to gain insight into the motivational value and understanding of the incentive
plan purpose and mechanics. The interviews suggest that the annual variable
incentive plan has been effective in enhancing employee awareness of critical
operating activities and, particularly at the Management level and above,
influencing behavior. The plan is well communicated and understood and is
viewed as an important part of the total compensation program at all organization
levels. Generally, the employees I spoke with believe that the structure of the
incentive program and award determinations is reasonable. The interview results
are further evidence that the APS incentive programs have been effective and

continue to meet the program purpose and objectives.

. IMPORTANCE OF THE STOCK COMPONENT OF APS’S PROGRAM

TO WHAT EXTENT IS THE STOCK COMPENSATION COMPONENT
OF THE APS INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM AN
IMPORTANT ELEMENT OF THE PROGRAM?

Long-term incentives have been the fastest growing component of executive and
officer compensation over the past fifteen years. Today, long-term incentive

awards account for more than one-third of officer direct pay and are integral to a
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company’s ability to attract and retain management personnel. Based on the
most recent competitive analysis of APS’ executive compensation program, 93%
of its utility peer companies provide long term incentives to executives and

officers in the form of stock-based awards (e.g., stock options, restricted stock,

. and performance shares) and/or cash awards.

In 2002, the PWCC board adopted, and shareholders approved the 2002 Long
Term Incentive Plan, which provided for the granting of stock options,
performance shares and stock ownership awards. In Mr. Dittmer’s testimony, he
says that the stated purpose of the Plan is to promote the success and enhance the
value of PWCC by linking the participants’ personal interests to those of
shareholders. However, the complete description of the stated objectives of the
Plan, as disclosed in the PWCC proxy statement relating to the May 22, 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, is as follows: “The Plan is designed to attract,
motivate and retain selected employees of the Company. These objectives are
accomplished by makihg long-term incentive awards under the Plan, thereby
providing Participants with a proprietary interest in the growth and performance

of the Company.”

My understanding is that APS’ long-term incentive plan for its officers has
awarded limited performance shares and stock ownership awards, but it has not

granted stock options since 2003.

Under the performance share plan, participants are granted a “target” number of
shares, with a grant value that was determined to be below the market median in
the independent consultant study for the PNW Chairman/CEO, APS

President/CEO and EVP level and at the market median for other officers.

-20-
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Awards are earned based on the Company’s compound annual growth rate in
Earnings Per Share over a three-year performance period relative to the S&P
Electric Utilities Super Composite EPS growth rate over the same period.

Minimum, target and superior achievement goals are set at the beginning of the

performance period and final award levels may range from 0 to 2 times the

“target” grant size. However, for the three-year performance period ended

December 31, 2005, there were no payouts under the performance shares.

Half of the APS peer companiés reported granting performance shares to its
executive officers and more than three-quarters (79%) reported some form of
multi-year performance plan. Typical performance periods cover three or four
years and EPS is a commonly used metric for determining award size among

other utilities and general industry companies.

In addition to serving as a key component of a competitive total compensation
opportunity, enabling APS to attract and retain key leadership talent, the long-

term incentive plan also benefits APS customers by:

. Minimizing costs associated with high turnover at the executive level,

including recruiting, productivity reductions and continuity of leadership

. Minimizing the need for additional base pay or other fixed benefits to

provide competitive compensation levels

. Providing focus and accountability for the executive and management
team to develop and implement effective business strategies that span
multiple year periods. Using Earnings Per Share as the long-term
perfoﬁnance goal focuses on cost management and productivity gains

which directly translate into ongoing savings for customers. It serves as
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the broadest measure of all the functions of utility cost performance, both
within and between years.

o Long-term financial health provides Company stability and allows the
Company to continue to invest in the business operations, grow its asset
base and continue to improve operating efficiencies through economy of
scale and upgrades in technology and infrastructure which directly benefit
customers through maintaining a low cost generation and delivery

structure.

DOES APS HAVE A SPECIFIC EXECUTIVE RETENTION
INCENTIVE?

No, and because the Company stopped granting stock options after 2003 and
its performance shares have a grant value below the market median for senior
officers, I believe the Company should address this issue. After discussions
with management, I understand that the Company is now  considering
-reténtion measures that would better position the Company to offer a
competitive overall compensation package. I also understand that such

action would not adversely affect APS’ rates or financial ratios.

RESPONSE TO RUCO’S PROPOSED 20% DISALLOWANCE
RUCO HAS PROPOSED TO DISALLOW 20% OF ALL INCENTIVE
COMPENSATION FROM APS’S RECOVERABLE COSTS ON THE

THEORY THAT APS SHOULD SHARE THE COST OF ELECTRICITY
PRICE HIKES. DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS SUGGESTION?

No, I do not agree. While I understand the principle being suggested, it would be
inappropriate to exclude any portion of incentive compensation as this is part of

the normal “cost of doing business”. As previously stated, incentive
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compensation is an integral part of a competitive total pay program necessary to
attract and retain employees. The variable incentive program has also been
critical in reinforcing APS’ achievement of Critical Success Indices and its pay
for performance culture. The 2005 executive compensation market study
showed that total direct pay levels for the PNW Chairman/CEO, APS
CEO/President and EVP levels were below the market median and VP levels
were at the competitive market median. This study reflected cash incentive
awards paid in 2005 for 2004 performance. Given that no executive and officer
cash awards were paid in 2006 for 2005 performance, I expect that all levels will
be well below market median in the 2006 study. Had the 5-year average
incentive awards been reflected in the study, the conclusion would still have been
that APS executives’ total direct pay has been below the market median. I
believe that it is in the best interest of customers that APS continue to provide a

competitive variable incentive compensation opportunity to drive pay for

- performance. Even Mr. Dittmer acknowledged in staff testimony (page 110 line

20), that the cash incentives in place today are primarily tied to performance

measures that directly benefit APS consumers.

CONCLUSION

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR CONCLUSIONS.
Given the current demographics of APS’ workforce, including the high

percentage of employees who are currently or soon will be eligible to retire, and.
the projected decrease in talented candidates entering the workforce, APS’ ability
to maintain stability and effectively compete for new talent will be critical to its
future performance. Providing a competitive total compensation opportunity is

fundamental to APS’ ability to attract and retain high performing employees.
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APS’ use of an annual variable incentive compensation program and a long term
performance plan is consistent with competitive market practices in terms of
design, and the targeted compensation value is either below or consistent with

competitive market practices.

The results of the most recent (2005) competitive market study for officers and
executives demonstrated that the total direct (base pay, annual- and long-term
incentives) compensation package for the PNW Chairman/CEO, APS
President/CEO and EVP levels are below the market median and the VP level,
generally, is competitive with the market median only when annual incentives
are paid. Since annual incentive awards were not paid to executives and officers
for 2005 performance, and no performance shares were awarded, the competitive
position significantly drops below the market median for all levels. The
elimination of any of these programs would significantly impair APS’ ability to
attract and retain employees critical to its successful ongoing operation. In fact,
it could lead to higher turnover rates which would likely result in reductions in
productivity rates, increased recruiting and training costs as well as damage
employee morale and erode the Company’s value system of high performance,

accountability and pay for performance.

In addition, the annual incentive plan has demonstrated effectiveness at aligning
employees with key business objectives and reinforcing a high performance
culture. The design and administration of the variable pay programs, including
the goals and objectives, appear to correlate well with performance results that
have significantly benefited customers over the past 10 years. APS’ commitment
to goal setting at all levels of the organization and ongoing communication serve

to motivate employees, enhance awareness and create a clear focus on
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accountability and pay for performance. In sum, APS’ incentive compensation
programs are integral to its ability to attract and retain its employees, align
employee behavior with company goals and motivate employee performance, all
of which are critical to the success of a high-performing and efficient energy
generation and distribution company in today’s competitive business

environment.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR WRITTEN REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
Yes.

~-25-
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Summary of EEI Annual Refiability Ropo-rts Attachment MKG-2
EElNatkmalAveraga
of
Companies
46}
44§
41
82]
58
i |
64
5
75|
APS A —
SAIFI . ISAIDI APS changs from 1996:
1996 91 170.40 SAIF! iImprovemant 38%
1997} .89  132.60 SAIDI improvement 44%
1998 1.51 112.20 .
1999 143 96.60 E£Ei change from 1996:
2000 1.56 127.20 SAIFt Change 8%
2001 1.84 25.40 SAID] Change -109%
2002 141 106.80
2003 1.40 111.60
2004 1,18 05.40!
SAIFl Comparison
2.50 + er e S —
200 \ |
§ 150 T e N =T
o L T .
£ 100
0.50 l
0.00 : . ——r , , ‘ . i
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8 300 ‘ |
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z 250 e ;
o 200 T - = !
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= 100 4
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Attachment MKG-4, page 1

APS Electric Utility Residential Customer Satisfaction

1999-2006'
Customer Satisfaction Index
Year Industry APS Ranking
1999 97 96 51st among 78 utilties
2000 98 102 43rd among 75 utilities
2001 98 98 50th among 70 utilities
2002 100 104 22nd among 74 utilities
2003 101 110 7th among 77 utilities
2004 98 107 9th among 78 utilities
2005 99 111 6th among 78 utilities
2006 94 100 24th among 78 utilities®
Notes:
! Information prior to 1999 is not available as that is the first year JD Power
conducted the study.

’In 2006 APS was ranked in the top quadrant among Investor Owned Utilities
(IOUs) nationwide and second among the West Region IOUs.

Source:
JD Power Study of Residential Customers, 1999-2006.



Attachment MKG-4, page 2

APS Electric Utility Business Customer Satisfaction

2004-2006'
Customer Satisfaction Index
Year Industry APS Ranking
2004 100 104 12th among 52 utilities
2005 103 105 13th among 53 utilities
2006 104 108 9th among 52 utilities”
Notes:

! Comparable information prior to 2004 is not available.
?In both 2005 and 2006 APS was the top ranking IOU in the West Region

‘Source:
JD Power Study of Business Customers, 2004-2006.



APS Exhibit 52
Submitted 10/30/06

Staff PSA Proposal in APS Rate Case Compared to TEP ECAC Proposal’

Staff Proposal TEP ECAC Proposal
Base Fuel Cost Traditional TY cost-of-service Traditional TY cost-of-service
approach approach
Prospective Adjustor (or Established from difference Forward market price phased in
“ECAC”) Basis between base fuel cost and over four years for sales growth
projected average fuel cost above test year
Forecast Method All known fuel cost changes Palo Verde forward price for year

rolled in, averaged over all kWh
sales

of delivery weighted by 25% in
each of 4 years preceding
delivery

Escalation in Embedded Fuel Yes No

Costs Covered? .

Hedged Positions Reflected in Yes Not directly

Adjustor?

Included Off-System Sales Yes No

Margins in Adjustor

Dispatch Issues Reflected in Yes No

Adjustor (e.g., year-to-year

changes in maintenance

schedules)?

True-Ups for Forecast Cost deviations (higher or lower) | True-ups for

Deviations? are deferred, recovered the e incremental sales differences
following year — possibly and

e actual MGC price vs.
forward price used to price
last 25% of incremental sales

Deferral Accounting Required?

Yes

Unclear

Amortization Period for True-
Ups/Deferrals

Up to Commission discretion

Unspecified

! This document summarizes APS’s understanding and interpretation of the respective proposals by ACC

Staff in APS’ Rate Case and TEP with regard to establishing a fuel recovery mechanism.




ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY - REJOINDER POSITION
Computation of Increase in Gross Revenue Requirements
ACC Jurisdictional

Adjusted Test Year Ended 09/30/2005

(Dollars in Thousands)

Electric - APS Rejoinder

APS EXHIBIT 53
Page 1 of 2

REJOINDER A-1
Submitted 10/30/06

Line Line
No. Description Original Cost RCND Fair Value No.
1 Adjusted Rate Base "/ 4,456,937 7,765,052 6,110,995 1
2 Adjusted Operating Incomé” 129,539 129,539 129,539 2
3 Current Rate of Return 2.91% 1.67% 2.12% 3
4 Required Operating Income 389,091 389,091 389,091 4
5 Required Rate of Return® 8.73% 5.01% 6.37% 5
6 Operating Income Deficiency 259,552 259,552 259,552 . 6
7 Gross Revenue Conversion Factof’ 1.6407 1.6407 1.6407 7
8 Adjusted Increase in Base Revenue Requirements 425,847 425,847 425,847 8
9 Environmental improvement Chérggl 4,542 4,542 4,542 9
10 Environmental Portfolio Standard” 4,250 4,250 4,250 10
11 Total Increase in Revenue Requirement” 434,639 434,639 434,639 11
12 Total Sales to Ultimate Retail Customers 2,127322 2,1'27,322 2,127,322 12
13 Percentage Rate Increase 20.43% 20.43% 20.43% 13

1

3
4
5
6
7

=

=R R X

!

Rebuttal Testimony of APS Witness Rockenberger, Attachment LLR-3-1RB, page 1.

APS Exhibil 53, page 2 of 3 (Schedule C-1, as adjusted in Rebuttal Testimony of APS Witness Froggatt,

Attachment CNF-1RB, page 2, with rejoinder adjustments)
SFR Schedule D-1 page 1 of 2, filed 1/31/06.
SFR Schedule C-3, filed 1/31/06.

Rebuttal Workpapers of APS Witness Delizio, GAD_WP4RB, page 1.

Rebuttal Testimony of APS Witness DelLizio, page 6.

As discussed in Rejoinder Testimony of APS Witness Wheeler, page 2.. This is a reduction.in revenue requirement
of $16.6 million from the rebuttal revenue requirement shown in the Rebuttal Testimony of APS Witness Wheeler,

Attachment SMW-1RB.
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APS Exhibit 54
Submitted 10/30/06

Comparison of FFO to Debt from May 2, 2006 ACC Open Meeting on Emergency
Asking to FFO to Debt from APS Rebuttal Testimony

Projected 12/31/06 FFO to debt as provided at May 2, 2006 ACC Open Meeting 18.2%
assuming 7mil adjustor effective May 1, and no step 2 surcharge recovery in 2006

Current 12/31/06 estimate utilizing same methodology as in place as of May 2, 2006 estimate 17.9%

Calculation methodology changes mandated by S&P subsequent to May 2, 2006:

Change from average debt to year-end debt -0.9%
Change in method for operating leases 0.5%
Change in discount rate on Pf’A‘s from 10% to embedded cost of debt (5.9% at 12/31/05) -0.4%
Change in treatment of Palo Verde decommissioning contributions 0.5%
Total T 03%
Current 12/31/06 estimate (DEB_WP1RB) T 176%

EXHIBIT




APS Exhibit 55
Submitted 10/30/06

UNISOURCE ENERGY CORPORATION AND PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

PENSION FUND DATA EXHIBIT
$ Millions
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 200

Plan Assets at Year-End

Unisource Energy Corporation $120 $106 $124 $136 $149

Pinnacle West Capita! Corporation $765 $721 $887 $982  $1,065
Projected Benefit Obligation Liabiltiy (PBO)

Unisource Energy Corporation $117 $133 $162 $188 $208

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation $885 $1,059 $1,249  $1,372 $1,493
Underfunded PBO $

Unisource Energy Corporation -$3 $27 $38 $52 $59

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation $120 $338 $362  $390 $428
Underfunded PBO % :

Unisource Energy Corporation -2.6% 20.3% 23.5% 27.7% 28.4%

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 13.6% 31.9% 29.0% 28.4% 28.7%

2001-2006

Plan Contributions ’ Total

Unisource Energy Corporation $2 $6 $3 $6 $7 $9 $33

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation $44.2 $26.6 $46.0 $35.0 $52.7 $46.5 $251.0
Plan Contributions as % of Year-End Plan Assets Average

Unisource Energy Corporation 1.7% 57% 2.4% 4.4% 4.7% 3.8%

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 5.8% 3.7% 5.2% 3.6% 4.9% 4.6%
Return on Plan Assets

Unisource Energy Corporation’ -95% -11.7% 18.9% 9.7% 8.8%

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation -2.7% -4.4% 23.3% 12.3% 77%

S&P 500 Index -11.8% -22.1% 28.7% 10.8% 4.9%

' Percentages derived from data available in Form 10-K; Return on assets/Beginning Value of Assets
2 All Unisource information is from publicly available sources.
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF LAURA L. ROCKENBERGER
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0816)

INTRODUCTION
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is Laura L. Rockenberger. My business address is 400 North Fifth Street,
Phoenix, Arizona, 85004.

WHAT IS YOUR POSITION WITH ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE

'COMPANY?

I am the Manager of Operations Accounting for Arizona Public Service Company
(“APS” or “Company”). My educational background and professional
qualifications, as well as my professional expefience, are set forth in Appendix A,

which is attached to this testimony.

WHAT SCHEDULES ARE YOU SPONSORING?

[ am sponsoring the following Standard Filing Requirement (“SFR”) Schedules:
the historical and test year in_formation contained in SFR Schedule A-4, related to
Construction Expenditures and Gross Utility Plant in Service; the SFR Schedules B
Rate Base infqrmation; certain operating income pro forma adjustments in SFR
Schedule C-2; the historical and test year information contained in SFR Schedule
E-5, Detail of Utility Plant; and the test year information contained in SFR
Schedule F-3 related to construction requirements. The B schedules show the
elements of APS’ rate base at original cost and reconstructed cost new (“RCN”) at

September 30, 2005, as well as the pro forma adjustments to rate base.
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. WAS YOUR PRE-FILED TESTIMONY PREPARED BY YOU OR UNDER

YOUR DIRECTION?
Yes.

¢

SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY
PLEASE PROVIDE A SUMMARY OF YOUR TESTIMONY.

In large part, the pro forma adjustments to the test year rate base represent the

implementation of Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission™ or “ACC”)

Decision No. 67744, issuéd. April 7, 2005. Included in this Decision was

Commission approval to transfer certain Pinnacle West Energy Corporation

- (“PWEC”) units, specifically Redhawk Units 1 and 2, West Phoenix Units 4 and 5

and Saguaro Unit 3 (“PWEC Units”) to APS. This subsequently occurred on July
29, 2005. In addition, in Decision No. 67504, issued January 20, 2003, the
Commission authorized the purchase of the PPL Sundance Energy, LLC generating
units (“Sundance Units”') and approved an accounting order for the deferral of]
costs. The Sundance Units were subsequently acquired by APS on May 13, 2005.
There are no Sundance Unit cost deferrals included in this filing because the
criteria for cost deferrals, as allowed pursuant to Decision No. 67504, has not been
met. The majority of the pro formas that I am sponsoring in this proceeding simply

implement these Commission Decisions.

In response to a request from Commission Staff, APS has selected a fiscal year, the
12 months ending September 30, 2005, as a test period (“Test Year™). As such, the
PWEC Units and the Sundance Units were included in the rate base at September
30, 2005. The Test Year was then édjustcd to make it more representative of]
normal operations at the time new rates in this docket are approved by the

Commission, which is assumed to be January 1, 2007,
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My testimony addresses a number of accounting-related topics to support the
Company’s rate case application. I identify and explain adjustments to rate base
and certain operating income adjustments. The rate base pro forma adjustments
include the following adjustments: West Phoenix Unit 4 Regulatory Disallowance,
Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (“ISFSI” or “Spent Fuel Storage™)
costs, Palo Verde Unit 1 steam generators (“PV Unit 1 Steam Generators™)
replacement costs, and deferred bark beetle remediation costs. For these items,
there are corresponding operating income pro forma adjustments. In addition, there
are operating income pro forma adjustments for the PWEC Units, the Sundance
Units, nuclear plant decommissioning expense, coal reclamation costs, depreciation
and amortization, property taxes, payroll, underfunded pension liability,
advertising, and certain other miscellaneous adjustments in the SFR Schedule C-2
pro formas. The operating income pro formas also include an income tax
calculation at the current statutory combined state and federal income tax rates.
The SFR Schedule C-2 pro formas for the West Phoenix Unit 4 Regulatory
Disallowance, Spent Fuel Storage, PV Unit 1 Steam Generators and bark beetle
remediation include a calculation for the synchronization of interest expense used
in the calculation of state and federal income tax expense. Mr. Chris Froggatt
provides details regarding the income tax adjustment and interest synchronization
adjustment in his testimony. [ also provide direct testimony on an overall
allowance for working capital and Reconstructed Cost New Less Depreciation
(“RCND™), which is shown on SFR Schedule B-4. And finally, I sponsor SFR

Schedule E-5 and actual Test Year information contained in SFR Schedule F-3.

HOW IS YOUR TESTIMONY ORGANIZED?

I will first discuss the items that have a pro forma adjustment to Original Cost Rate
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III.

Base, as set out in Attachments LLR-1-1 through LLR-1-5, and the corresponding
pro forma adjustments to operating income. ‘I will then discuss the remaining
operating income pro forma adjustments. These pro forma adjustments, as set out
in Attachments LLR-2-1 through LLR-2-17 and LLR-3, reflect total Company
amounts prior to any jurisdictional allocation. Next I will present the results of the
Company’s Allowance for Working Capital (Attachment LLR-4), followed by the
most recent RCN Study (Attachments LLR-5-1 and LLR-5-2) and SFR Schedule
E-5, Detail of Utility Plant.

PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS AFFECTING BOTH RATE BASE &
OPERATING INCOME

WHAT ARE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS?

Because the Commission requires a historical test year, it is necessary to adjust
recorded revenues and expenses for known and measurable changes in rates or
charges. The use of pro forma test year revenues and expenses more accurately
reflects the level of revenues and expenses in the future, when the new rates will be
in effect. Pro forma adjustments include normalizations, annualizations and known
and measurable changes that affect actual rate base, revenues, and expenses in the

test year. .

WHAT ARE “NORM ALIZATIONS”?

Normalizations are adjustments that modify test year data to reflect a typical test
year. These are generally accounting adjustments that remove expenses or
revenues properly recorded during the Test Year, but are associated with prior

periods.

WHAT ARE “ANNUALIZATIONS”?

Annualizations are adjustments that compensate for timing differences, such as
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adjusting the number of customers at the end of the test year, along with the sales
revenues and expenses to reflect the revenues associated with those customers and

the costs of serving that number of customers at the end of the test year.

WHAT IS A “KNOWN AND MEASURABLE” ADJUSTMENT?

Known and measurable adjustments reflect the Company’s expécted financial
conditions when the new rates are expected to be-in effect. An adjustment is
considered to be “known” when, given all the circumstances, its probability of]
occurrcncé is significantly greater than the chance it will not occur. An adjustment
is “measurable” if it can be quantiﬁéd in a meaningful fashion, such that the
recognition of at least part of its effect on Test Year results will make the Test Year

“more representative” than if the adjustment were omitted altogether.

A PWEC Units - West Phoenix Unit 4 Regulatory Disallowance

DID YOU RECORD THE REGULATORY DISALLOWANCE FOR THE
PWEC UNITS IN ACCORDANCE WITH DECISION NO. 677447

Yes. In Decision No. 67744, the Commission authorized a jurisdictional
$700,000,000 original cost rate base (“OCRB”) for the PWEC Units at December
31,2004. Because the PWEC Units did not transfer to APS until July 29, 2005,
the $700,000,000 OCRB was reduced by additioﬁal accumulated depreciation and
related deferred taxes for the period of January 1, 2005 through July 29, 2005.
Thus, the regulatory disallowance for the PWEC Units at July 29, 2005 reduced the
net plant by $155,036,000. See Attachment LLR-1-1.

ARE THERE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE REGULATORY
ACCOUNTING FOR THE DISALLOWANCE AND THE ACCOUNTING
UNDER GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
(“GAAP”)? |

Yes. Under GAAP, the portion of the regulatory disallowance related to West
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Phoenix Unit 4 could not be recorded in the GAAP financial statements because

the unit was not considered “recently completed™.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE THAT WOULD NOT
ALLOW THE WEST PHOENIX UNIT 4 REGULATORY
DISALLOWANCE TO BE REFECTED IN YOUR GAAP FINAL
STATEMENTS. '

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 90, “Regulated
Enterprises — Accounting for Abandonments and Disallowances of Plant Costs™
was the authoritative accounting guidénce we relied on in determining the amount
of the loss that should be recorded for GAAP purposes. In accordance with thé
SFAS 90, when it becomes probable that part of the cost of a recently completed
plant will be disallowed for rate-making purposes and a reasonable estimate of the
amount of the disallowance can be made, the estimated amount of the probable
disallowance shall be deducted from the reported cost of the plant and recognized

as a loss.

SFAS 90 does not define “recently completed”. Based on' discussions with
Deloitte,_ our external auditors, we concluded that a plént that was completed within
twelve months of a rate filing is considered recently completed for purposes of]
SFAS 90. The in-service date for West Phoenix Unit 4 was June of 2001. Our rate
filing requesting that West Phoenix Unit 4 be included in rates was made in June of]
2003, two years after the in-service date. Thus, the plant was not considered
recently completed . and the disallowance could not be recorded for GAAP

accounting purposes.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE RATE BASE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR
WEST PHOENIX UNIT 4 REGULATORY DISALLOWANCE.

Because the disallowance was not recorded for GAAP purposes, a pro forma
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adjustment is needed to reduce the rate base by the disallowed amount.
Accordingly, the rate base reduction for the West Phoenix Unit 4 regulatory

disallowance at September 30, 2005 is $11,155,000. See Attachment LLR-1-2.

IS THERE A CORRESPONDING OPERATING INCOME ADJUSTMENT
FOR THE DEPRECIATION EXPENSE RELATED TO THE WEST
PHOENIX UNIT 4 REGULATORY DISALLOWANCE?

Yes. The operating income pro forma reflects an annual reduction in depreciation

expense of $230,000. See Attachment LLR-2-1.

B. INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION
WHY IS THERE A NEED FOR INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE

. INSTALLATION?

An Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation is a dry storage facility for the| .
temporary disposal of spent nuclear fuel. The fuel pools where the spent nuclear
fuel from the Palo Verde Nuclear Generation Station (“Palo Verde™) is currently
stored have reached the méximum allowed capacity. Because the U.S. Department
of Energy has delayed siting and constructing permanent spent nuclear fuél storage

facilities, the. continued operation of Palo Verde requires an alternative interim

~ storage solution for spent nuclear fuel. The costs associated with Spent Fuel

Storage are the costs of interim storage for spent nuclear fuel at Palo Verde.

IS APS ASKING FOR CONTINUING RECOVERY OF SPENT FUEL

STORAGE COSTS IN THIS RATE CASE FILING?

Yes. The Company has included pro forma adjustments for Spent Fuel Storage in a
manner consistent with APS’ last rate application. Specifically, APS is requesting
recovery of its share of the ongoing costs associated with Spent Fuel Storage and

an amortized portion of deferred amounts, as discussed below.
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WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE RECOVERY OF SPENT FUEL
STORAGE COSTS?

Commission rule, A.A.C. R14-2-1608, provides for the recovery of interim spent
nuclear fuel storage costs through a Systems Benefit Charge. The Commission
first approved the recovery of system benefits costs for APS in Decision No.
61973, issued October 6, 1999, which. adopted a settlement agreement that

: I
addressed electric restructuring.

WHAT CHANGES RELATED TO SPENT FUEL STORAGE OCCURRED
AS A RESULT OF DECISION NO. 67744?

On April 1, 2005 (the effective date of Decision No. 67744), APS commenced
recovei'y for the amortization of prior deferred costs and the current accrual for
Spent Fuel Storage costs associated with the current fuel burn. A portion of those
costs represent post-shutdown Spent Fuel Storage costs that are being funded into
the Palo Verde nuclear decommissioning trusts, which I discuss later in my

testimony.

HOW ARE THE COSTS ESTIMATED?
The cost estimates for Spent Fuel Storage are updated every three years and were
most recently updated again by TLG Services, Inc. for 2004.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE SPENT FUEL STORAGE PRO FORMA RATE
BASE ADJUSTMENT.

The net rate base reduction of $5,869,000 results from funds collected in regulated
rates and reserved for the cost of current on-going and future activities in the
decommissioning period to transfer spent nuclear fuel to the dry storage facility.

See Attachment LLR-1-3.
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IS SPENT FUEL STORAGE EXPENSE INCLUDED IN NUCLEAR FUEL
EXPENSE IN THE TEST YEAR?

Yes. Since the Test Year (ended September 30, 2005) occurred after the effective
date of Decision No. 67744 (April 1, 2005), there are six months of Spent Fuel
Storage expenses included in the unadjusted Test Year expenses. Thus the Spent
Fuel Storage expense needs to be annualized in an operating income pro forma

adjustment.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE CORRESPONDING OPERATING INCOME PRO
FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR SPENT FUEL STORAGE.

The total Test Year annualized nuclear fuel expense is $14,759,000. Of this
amount, $3,667,000 represents ongoing Spent Fuel Storage expense, which is
included in the Base Fuel and Purchase Power Expense pro forma, and is addressed
in Mr. Ewen’s testimony. The pro forma adjustment of $11,092,000 reflects the
annual amortization of previously deferred amounts. This is shown on Attachment
LLR-2-2.

HOW DOES THE COMPANY PROPOSE TO ADDRESS THE

AMORTIZATION OF PREVIOUSLY DEFERRED SPENT FUEL
STORAGE EXPENSE?

The Spent Fuel Storage annualized expense for amounts previously deferred is
$11,092,000, which is comprised of pre-shutdown costs of $9,976,000 and post-
shutdown costs of $1,116,000. Consistent with Decision .No. 67744, the Company
proposes to amortize the costs associated with pre-shutdown activities over a five-
year period. For Units | and 3, the post-shutdown costs are amortized over the
license period, and for Unit 2, over the term of the sale/leaseback agreement
(through Decembef 31, 2015). This is also consistent with our last rate proceeding.

The Company is requesting that the Commission’s Decision in this docket
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specifically provide for the amortization of the Spent Fuel Storage expense

regulatory asset included in Attachment LLR-2-2.

OF THESE PROPOSED AMOUNTS TO BE RECOVERED IN RATES,
WHAT PORTION REPRESENTS POST-SHUTDOWN OPERATIONS TO
BE FUNDED IN THE DECOMMISSIONING TRUSTS?

APS is requesting annual funding into the decommissioning trusts for the amounis
approved in Decision No. 67744. Included in these amounts is $752,000, which
represents post-shtit down costs included in the ongoing accrual, and $792,000,
which represents the amortization of previously deferred post-shut down amounts.
See Attachment LLR-3. The amount that APS is requesting does not reflect the
post-s.hutdown component of Spent Fuel Storage cost estimated in the 2004 study.
The Company is deferring the differ\ence for future recovery in subsequent rate

proceedings.

DO POST-SHUTDOWN SPENT FUEL COSTS QUALIFY FOR
FAVORABLE TAX TREATMENT?

APS has filed a private letter ruling requesting Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™)
approval to use the qualified decommissioning funds for spent fuel costs. If such
approval is granted, APS plans to use the qualified decommissioning funds for
post-shutdown spent fuel costs to their fullest extent, as allowed under the federal

income tax rules.

C. PALO VERDE UNIT | STEAM GENERATORS

WHY HAS APS MADE AN ADJUSTMENT FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF
PALO VERDE UNIT 1 (“PV UNIT 1”) STEAM GENERATORS?

Like other nuclear generating stations throughout the nation, heat and corrosion
have caused damage to the tubes in the Palo Verde (“PV”) steam generators. The

PV owners, including APS, have determined it is both necessary and economically

10-
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desirable to replace PV steam generators and related equipment in each unit to
prevent a decrease in the unit’s output and to maintain its reliability. The Unit 2
steam generators and related equipment were replaced in 2003, as addressed in
Decision No. 67744. The Unit ! steam generators and related equipment were
replaced in 2005 and are included in this rate case. Unit 3 steam generators and
related equipment are expected to be replaced in 2007, and recovery of the related

costs will be requested in a subsequent rate proceeding.

WHAT RELATED COMPONENTS WERE REPLACED DURING THE
PROJECT FOR PV UNIT 1?

In addition to the two PV Unit 1 Steam Generators, three low-pressure turbine
rotors, core protection calculators and pressurized heaters were replaced, which
improves the future reliability and effictency of PV Unit 1, as well as increases its

output by approximately 22 megawatts. The 22 megawatt improvement was

included in the simulation used to determine the Company’s proposed fuel and

purchased power expense and off-system margin, as sponsored by Mr. Ewen.
Therefore, the PV Unit 1 Steam Generators rate base pro forma adjustment reflects
the “matching principle;” as well as faimess principles, which dictate that the
investment required to generate the additional 22 megawatts, which are included in

the fuel simulation, should also Be included in rate base.

WHEN WAS THE PV UNIT 1 STEAM GENERATORS REPLACEMENT
PROJECT COMPLETED?

The PV Unit |1 Steam Generators replacement project was completed in December

2005, a full year before new rates from this case are likely to be in effect.

WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE PV UNIT 1 STEAM
GENERATORS RATE BASE ADJUSTMENT? '

The $82,896,000 increase in rate base was calculated using the new Steam

-11-
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Generators’ estimated cost, as of December 31, 2005, when the Steam Generators

were p]ace’d' in service. See Attachment LLR-1-4.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE CORRESPONDING OPERATING INCOME
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE PV UNIT 1 STEAM GENERATORS
REPLACEMENT PROJECT.

Depreciation expense needs to be adjusted to include one full year of depreciation
on fhe new PV Unit 1 Steam Generators and exclude the actual Test Year
depreciation expense on the old PV Unit 1 Steam Generators. Because the fuel and
purchased power operating income pro forma already reflects the impact of the PV
Unit 1 Steam Generators replacement, there afe no other test period results affected
by this adjustment. This adjustment increases expenses for the Test Year by

$2,047.000. See Attachment LLR-2-3.

D. BARK BEETLE REMEDIATION

WHY WERE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS FOR BARK BEETLE
REMEDIATION NECESSARY?

Decision No. 67744 allows for the défcrral of bark beetle remediation costs over
and above the normal vegetation control expense. This “bucket of costs” can then
be deferred, amortized and included in rates. A rate base pro forma is necessary to
add the deferred bark beetle remediation costs to rate base. A corresponding

operating income pro forma adjustment removes the actual bark beetle remediation

costs from the Test Year and includes an annual amortization of the deferred costs.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE RATE BASE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR BARK
BEETLE REMEDIATION COSTS.

APS began deferring these dollars in 2005 and has estimated a total deferral of

 distribution-related bark beetle remediation costs of $11,288,000 by January 1,

2007, when rates are expected to be in place to recover these costs. This pro forma

-12 -
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adds $6.115,000 to rate base. See Attachment LLR-1-5. Mr. Stephen Bishoff]

discusses bark beetle remediation activities related to these costs in his testimony.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE CORRESPONDING OPERATING INCOME
ADJUSTMENT FOR BARK BEETLE REMEDIATION.

As stated above, the Company expects to spend approximately $11,288,000 on
distribution-related bark beetle remediation from January 1, 2005, to January 1,
2007, when it is anticipated that rates from this filing will be in place to recover
these costs. APS is proposing a three-year amortization of these expenses, which is
$3,763,000 in annual amortization expense. The $1,438,000 pro forma adjustment
increases Test Year expenses and represents the difference between the proposed
$3,763,000 annual amortization and the $2,325,000 actual expense included in the
Test Year. See Attachment LLR-2-4.

WHAT IS THE ANTICIPATED ONGOING BARK BEETLE
REMEDIATION EXPENSE? '

It is unknown whether the bark beetle remediation efforts will be completed by
December 31, 2006, or if the actual costs will exceed the estimated costé as of that
date. If the actual amounts exceed the estimated amounts included in this filing,
and/or extend beyond 2006, such amounts will be deferred for recovery in a

subsequent rate case.

TOTAL RATE BASE ADJUSTMENTS

PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE ADJUSTED TEST YEAR ORIGINAL RATE
BASE PROPOSED BY APS.

At September 30, 2005, APS is proposing a total Company OCRB adjustment of]
$71,987,000 to increase the OCRB to $5,327,833,000. The junsdictional
allocation of the OCRB is $4,466,697,000, which is sponsored by Mr. David

Rumolo. These adjustments are summarized in SFR Schedule B-2.

-13 -



—

N N [\ ) N NN = [ — — - [ - [ — p—
G U AW N R, O W YU D WN O~ O

O 0 N o0 »nn » W N

ADDITIONAL PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS TO OPERATING IN COME
A PWEC UNITS

WHY WERE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS NECESSARY FOR THE
PWEC UNITS?

The Commission authorized the transfer of the PWEC Units to APS in Decision

No. 67744, and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC™) approyed
the transfer on June 15, 2005. The PWEC Units then transferred to APS on July
29, 2005. Because the PWEC Units transferred to APS during the Test Year, the
PWEC units are already included in the Test Year rate base; however, an operating
income pro forma adjustment is necessary to annualize the PWEC Units operating

expenses.

WHAT IS THE OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR
THE PWEC UNITS?

The pro forma adjustment to operating income is for $53,644,000, which
annualizes the revenue and operating expenses for the PWEC Units. See|

Attachment LLR-2-5.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE REDUCTION IN THE “OPERATING REVENUE
LESS FUEL AND PURCHASE POWER EXPENSES” COMPONENT OF
THE OPER%TING INCOME PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR THE
PWEC UNITS. :

As discussed in Mr. Peter Ewen’s testimony, the reduction of $1,125,000 is
associated with auxiliary power purchased by PWEC from APS that is no longer

applicable because the PWEC Units are now owned by APS.
HOW WAS THE ROUTINE OPERATION S AND MAINTENANCE

EXPENSE COMPONENT OF THE OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE PWEC UNITS CALCULATED?

Annualized routine operations and maintenance expense of $26,204,000 reflects

the actual 2004 expenditures for the PWEC Units, adjusted for the expected

- 14-
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increase in average projected operating megawatt hours for 2006 through 2011.
The $22.363,000 pro forma adjustment reflects the $26,204,000 annualized
operations and maintenance expense reduced by $3,841,000, which represents two

months of actual costs in the Test Year.

IS THERE AN OVERHAUL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE COMPONENT
OF THE OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR THE
PWEC UNITS?

Because the PWEC Units have recently been placed in-service, the Company has
no historical cost basis for calculating overhaul costs. As discussed in Mr. Ewen’s
testimony, the normalized overhaul maintenance expense of $10,000,000 was
estimated using a projected 12-year average, restated in 2004 dollars. The
$9,741,000 pro forma adjustment reflects the $10,000,000 normalized cost reduced

by $259,000, which represents two months of actual costs in the Test Year.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL (“A&G”)
EXPENSE COMPONENT OF THE OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE PWEC UNITS.

The operating income pro forma for PWEC A&G expenses represents the portion
of 2004 actual A&G expenses charged to the PWEC that will now be charged to
APS in compliance with the Ciompany’s Affiliate Accounting policies. Thus, the
ongoing A&G costs assoctated with the PWEC Units transferred to APS when the
assets transferred. The $20,415,000 pro formé adjustment thus reflects ten months
of A&G expense based on historical PWEC actual costs that were not included in

the Test Year.

IS THERE A DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
COMPONENT OF THE OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE PWEC UNITS?

Yes. The annualized depreciation and amortization expense and related pro forma

-15-
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adjustment for the PWEC Units is included in the APS Depreciation and
Amortization pro forma, which [ discuss later in my testimony. See Attachments

LLR-2-9 and LLR-2-10.

IS THERE A PROPERTY TAX COMPONENT OF THE OPERATING
INCOME PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR THE PWEC UNITS?

Yes, the annualized property tax expense and related pro forma adjustment is
included in the APS Property Taxes pro forma, which [ discuss later in my

testimony. See Attachments LLR-2-12 and LLR-2-13.

B. SUNDANCE UNITS
ARE THE SUNDANCE UNITS INCLUDED IN THIS FILING?

Yes. In January 2005, the Commission authorized APS to purchase the Sundance
Units (Decision No. 67504). They were subsequently acquired on May 13, 2005
for $189,500,000 and are included in the rate base.: SFR Schedule C-2 includes a
pro forma adjustment to operating income, which is necessary to annualize the Tesf

Year expense.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE CORRESPONDING OPERATING INCOME PRO
FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR THE SUNDANCE UNITS.

As shown in SFR Schedule C-2, the operating income pro forma adjustment of]
$4.860,000 .includes non-fuel operations and maintenance expenses of the

Sundance Units. See Attachment LLR-2-6.

HOW WAS THE ROUTINE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
(“O&M”) COMPONENT OF THE OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE SUNDANCE UNITS DETERMINED?

The annualized O&M expense of $6,410,000 includes $3,660,000, which reflects
one full year of routine O&M expense and $2,750,000 of overhaul maintenance

costs. The routine O&M expense was estimated based on the projected information

-16 -
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provided by PP&L Sundance Energy, LLC, as adjusted for the expected level of]
Company operation, as discussed in Mr. Ewen’s testimony. The $4,860,000 pro
forma adjustment reflects the divfference between the $6,410,000 annualized costs
and the Test Year actual costs of $1,550,000, which is about five months of actual

costs.

IS THERE A DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION "EXPENSE
COMPONENT OF THE OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE SUNDANCE UNITS DETERIV[INED"

Yes. The annualized depreciation and amortization expense and related operating
income pro forma adjustment are included in the APS Depreciation and
Amortization pro forma, which I discuss later in my testimony. See Attachments

LLR-2- 9 and LLR-2-10.

IS THERE ALSO A PROPERTY TAX COMPONENT OF THE
OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR THE
SUNDANCE UNITS?

Yes. These amounts are included in the APS Property Taxes pro forma, which 1

discuss later in my testimony. See Attachments LLR-2-12 and LLR-2-13.

DID THE COMPANY DEFER ANY COSTS RELATED TO THE
SUNDANCE UNITS AS AUTHORIZED IN DECISION NO. 67504?

No. APS did not defer costs under the accounting order authorized in Decision No.
67504. This Decision allowed for the deferral of cost, net of savings, of owning,
operating and maintaining the Sundance Units that were not recovefed in the
unbundled generation rates. The Sundance Units did not meet this threshold, as

defined in the Commission’s Decision.

-17 -
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C. NUCLEAR PLANT DECOMMISSIONING
PLEASE EXPLAIN THE NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING EXPENSE.

Like all nuclear power plants, Palo Verde eventually will need to be

decommissioned, an expensive and time consuming process. Regulatory agencies
throughout the country, including this Commission, have required that-the cost of]
the eventual decommissioning be recovered from utility customers during the

operating life of the facility.

WHAT IS MEANT BY A “QUALIFIED” DECOMMISSIONING FUND?

A qualified decommissioning fund is a segregated reserve fund dedicated
exclusively to the payment of nuclear decommissioning costs and management
costs and tax liability of the fund.  Beneficial owners of the qualified
decommissioning trust are allowed a deduction for cash payments to these funds.
There is a preferential tax rate (of 20%) on realized gaihs associated with the assets
held by the qualified deﬁommissioning fund. Currently, the amounts collected
from customers that relate to decommissioning of Palo Verde are being deposited
into a “qualified” decommissioning fund. The Nuclear Regulatory Commission|
and most state regulators, including this Commission, prefer the external funding
into qualified decommissioning funds for two reasons: (1) the increased security of]
the funding for its intended purpose; and (2) the income tax benefits afforded|
qualified decommissioning funds. The latter translates into lower annual

decommissioning expense for our customers.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE NEED FOR A PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR
THE NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING EXPENSE.

In Decision No. 67744, the Commission approved an annual decommissioning

funding amount of $19,211,000, beginning April 1, 2005. See Attachment LLR-3.

- 18-
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A pro-forma adjustment of $3,883,000 is required to annualize the qualified
funding levels to $19,211,000 as approved in Decision No. 67744. See Attachment
LLR-2-7. The Company is requesting that the Commission’s Decision in this
docket specifically provide for approval of the $19,211,000 annual level of]
decommissioning funding.  Attachment LLR-3 should be attached to any

Commission Decision accepting these amounts.

D FOUR CORNERS COAL RECLAAMTION

WHAT IS COAL RECLAMATION?

Coal reclamation is the process of fetuming the site of a coal mine to its original
state. Coal reclamation is regulated by the Office of Surface Mining (“OSM™), an
agency within the U.S. Department of Interior. The OSM has established standards
and procedures for approving permits and inspecting active coal mining- and
reclamation operations. OSM requires -the mine be brought back to its

“Approximate Original Contour” (“AQC”). -

WHY DOES APS HAVE TO PAY FOR COAL RECLAMATION?

APS is under contract with BHP Billiton until June 30, 2016, to receive coal for the
Four Corners Power Plant. Pursuant to this contract, APS must pay for its share of]
final reclamation costs as a component of the price of coal.

WHY IS THERE A NEED FOR A COAL RECLAMATION PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENT?

The estimate for final reclamation costs is generally revised every five years. The
total costs are based on a study performed by Marston as of September 2004. The
study reflects an onsite visit ‘to the mine and a review of the AOC. The estimate is
developed in two parts: ongoing reclamation while the mine is in operation and

final reclamation at the end of the life cycle of the mining pit. The -Company has
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reduced the 2004 Marston study overhead costs to be more consistent with the
OSM guidelines regarding overhead costs related to reclamation activities and has
added royalties and revenue taxes to the study costs. A pro forma adjustment of]
$1,305,000 is included in SFR Schedule C-2 to reflect the annual expense based
upon the 2004 Marston study. See Attachment LLLR-2-8.

HAS THE COMMISSION PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED THE
INCLUSION OF COAL RECLAMATION COSTS IN REGULATED
RATES?

Yes, in Decision No. 59601, the Commission approved the recovery of previously
deferred coal reclamation costs. The Company is requesting a similar recovery in

this case for the increase in coal reclamation cost estimates.

WHY IS COAL RECLAMATION EXCLUDED FROM THE FUEL AND

. PURCHASE POWER PRO FORMA?

Coal reclamation is excluded from the Fuel and Purchase Power pro forma in order
to exclude those costs that are not related to the current fuel burn from the Power

Supply Adjustor calculation.

E DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

WHAT ADJUSTMENTS HAS THE COMPANY MADE TO
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE?

Consistent with Decision No. 67744, as of April 1, 2005, APS implemented the
depreciation rates ordered by the Commission. For this filing, Dr. Ronald White| "
performed depreciation studies as of December 31, 2004, which included the APS
assets and the PWEC Units. Dr. White’s technical update of the depr'eciation rates
that were authorized in Decision No. 67744 generally reflects the passage of time
from December 31, 2002 through December 31, 2004. Please refer to Dr. White’s

testimony for further discussion of this point.
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Based upon results of the technical update to the depreciation study, depreciation
and amortization expense increases from $321,526,000 in the Test Year to
$£344,581,000. This pro forma adjustment increases annual expense by

$23,055,000. See Attachments LLR-2-9 and LLR-2-10.

WERE THE PWEC UNITS INCLUDED IN THE DEPRECIATION
STUDIES PREPARED BY DR. WHITE?

Yes. The annualized depreciation expense was calculated based on the original
cost of the PWEC Units at September 30, 2005, as reduced by the regulatory
disallowance recorded under GAAP, and extended plant lives that were required by

Decision No. 67744.

WERE THE SUNDANCE UNITS INCLUDED IN THE DEPRECIATION
STUDIES PREPARED BY DR. WHITE?

No. Since the Sundance Units were acquired after December 31, 2004 (the date of]
Dr. White’s studies), these units were not included in the APS study. This
annualized depreciation expense is based on the annual depreciation rates
authorized  in Decision No. 67744 for Saguaro Unit 3 combustion turbine

generators, which are the APS units most nearly similar to the Sundance Units.

DO THE DEPRECIATION RATES PROVIDE FOR A NET SALVAGE
ALLOWANCE?

Yes. Consistent with the Commission’s rules and depreciation rates approved in
Decision No. 67744, APS provides for a net salvage allowance in the depreciation
rates. As such, the Statement of Financial Ac.couming Standards 143: Asset| "
Retirement Obligations has not been implemented for ratemaking purposes, which

was also provided for in Decision No. 67744.
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PLEASE EXPLAIN THE OPERATING REVENUE INCLUD.ED ON THE
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION PRO FORMA.

The depreciation study prepared by Dr. White does not include aﬁ allocation for
Company depreciation to APS Energy Serviceé (“Energy Services™) or to Pinnacle
West Capital Corporation (“PWCC”) Marketing and Trading (“PWCC M&T?),
which i1s in accordance with the Commission’s Code of Conduct and the
Company’s Affiliate Accounting policies. The.refore, the pro forma includes an
operating revenue adjustment of $480,000, which reflects the amounts received
from other affiliates for their allocation of shared services depreciation expense.

See Attachment LLR-2-9.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE AMORTIZATION OF GAIN INCLUDED ON
THE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION PRO FORMA.

The $77,000 shown on Attachment LLR-2-9 is the operating income pro forma
adjustment necessary to annualize the $155,000 gain aﬁuortization, which
represents the annual amortization expense of the total $775,000 gain associated
with the previously authorized sale of the Glen Canyon 230 kV line to PacifiCorp,
pursuant to Decision No. 64306. A five year amortization of the gain is consistent

with the treatment of this item in the Company’s last rate case.

IS THE COMPANY PROPOSING ANY CHANGES TO ITS EXISTING
AMORTIZATION RATES?

No, APS is not requesting any change to the amortization rates authorized in

Decision No. 67744. These rates are set out on Attachment LLR-2-11.

IS THE COMPANY PROPOSING ANY NEW AMORTIZATION RATES?
Yes, the Company is requesting approval for two new rates to prov'ide for the
amortization of leased vehicles that are purchased by the Company at the end of the

lease term. The Company is requesting a 50% amortization rate for vehicles with a
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Gross Vehicle Weight (“GVW?™) under 26,000 pounds, and a 20% amortization
rate for vehicles with a GVW greater than 26,000 pounds. The rates reflect what
we believe will be the éstimated lives for such vehicles. See Attachment LLR-2-

11.

F. PROPERTY TAXES

HAS APS PROPOSED AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE TEST YEAR AD
VALOREM (PROPERTY) TAXES?

Yes, the pro forma adjustment is an increase in operating expense of $16,867,000. |
This adjustment includes amounts to annualize the PWEC Units property taxes,
oné full year of property taxes for the Sundance Units, estimated taxes for the full
Maricopa Community College Bond, and an automatic 2007 increase in property
taxes that will result when the PWEC Units have passed the “phase-in” period
provided by A.R.S. § 42-14156, after which, the units will have to apply the
Arizona Department of Revenue’s (“ADOR”) scheduled depreciated value in the
same manner as all of APS’ existing generation units. See Attachments LLR-2-12

and LLR-2-13.

HOW WERE PROPERTY TAXES CALCULATED?
The property taxes reflect actual plant values received from the ADOR as of;

December 31, 2004. The 2005 tax yeaf APS composite tax rate, which includes
the PWEC Units, was calculated based on tax rates provided by the County
Treasurer in each of the counties where APS has property. In addition to the APS
composite tax rate, the actual 2005 tax rate for the Sundance Units was used.
Finally, this pro forma adjustment takes into account the reduction in assessment
ratio provided by House Bill 2779, which was passed during the 2005 legislative

session.
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G.  PAYROLL

DID APS ANNUALIZE TEST YEAR PAYROLL? .

Yes. Aﬁachment LLR-2-14 shows an increase to Test Year expenses of]
$9,239,000. ‘This pro forma adjustment annualizes the Test Year payroll, benefits,
and payroll tax expense to December 2005 employee levels, and includes
December 2005 wage levels for performance review employees, April 2006 wage
levels for union employees and no cash incentives for officers. This methodology}
for performénce review employees and union employees is consistent with payroll
annualization édjustments authorized by the Comfnission in prior APS cases.
Officer salaries are included at 2004 levels. The net effect of these adjustments is
an increase to Test Year operating expenses as a result of higher costs associated

with a rising average salary and increased employee levels.

DOES THIS TOTAL PAYROLL ADJUSTMENT ONLY AFFECT O&M?
Yes, this adjustment excludes those costs that are capitalized. This O&M

adjustmént was estimated by calculating the percentage of APS O&M payroll to
total payroll during the Test Year. The resulting O&M payroll and payroll taxes
were allocated to fuel, operations (excluding fuel), and maintenance based on the

Test Year payroll amounts booked to each of these activities.

H UNDERFUNDED PENSION LIABILITY .

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR
ACCEL%B{IATED RECOVERY OF THE UNDERFUNDED PENSION
LIABIL .

This adjustment is intended to accelerate the recovery of our underfunded pension
Iiabi'lity over a five-year period beginning in 2007. This would be accomplished by
increasing pension expense and estab]ishing a regulatory liability. Amounts

collected under this adjustment would be contributed to the pension plan. Since the

.
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recovery is accelerated, the Company is proposing a ten year amortization of this
regulatory hability, beginning in 2012. This would have the impact of reducing] -

future pension expense during the amortization period.

HOW WAS THE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR ACCELERATED
RECOVERY OF THE UNDERFUNDED PENSION LIABILITY
DETERMINED?

PWCC sponsors a pension plan for all its employees, including employees of APS.
As of Deceﬁber 31, 2004, the date of the most recént actuarial study, the projected
benefit obligation (“PBO™) of the Aper»]sioln plan was approximately $1,371 mil'lion.
The fair value of the plan’s assets was approximately $982 million. The difference|
of approximately $389 million represents the underfunded position of the pension
plan. APS’ share of the plan represents ai)proximately 92% or approximately $358
million (Piﬁnacle West and the other subsi.diaries make up the other 8%). At
December 31, 2004, the portion attributable to APS ratepayers represents
approximately 61% or $218 million of the underfunded pension liability. The
remaining 39% relates to APS employees that support jointly owned facilities.
Because we are proposing accelerated recovery over five years, the annual increase
to pension expense proposed in this adjustment is approximately $44 million. See '
Arniachment LLR-2-15. Again, since this is an accelerated recovery, we propose
amortizing the regulatory liability and reducing pension expense over 10 years

(beginning in 2012) in the amount of approximately $22 million.

L ADVERTISING

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE ADVERTISING PRO FORMA?

This pro forma adjustment reduces Test Year expenditures by $6,140,000 for all
those advertising expenses that are related to branding or promotion. This approach

is consisteni with Staff’s recommendation in the Company’s prior rate case. See
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Attachment LI.R-2-16.

\

J. MISCELLANEQUS ADJUSTMENTS

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE MISCELLANEOUS ADJUSTMENTS.

This pro forma adjustment eliminates non-recurring or out of period expenses or
credits from the Test Year. The net increase to operating expense for these

adjustments is $ 3,876,000. Individually, they are as follows:

Financial Data Warchouse Costs $ (892,000)
Four Corners Severance Reserve True-Up $1,748,000
FERC Audit Reserve $ 2,000,000
APS Corporate Offices Rent Expense $ 3,237,000
Bill Estimation Refund $(2,217,000)

See Attachment LLR-2-17.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE MISCELLANEOUS PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENTS.

Financial Data Warehouse: APS terminated this project because it was

determined it would not meet the Company’s business needs. The adjustment
removes the write-off of the prior year costs.

Four Corners Severance Reserve True-Up: A prior period reserve, which was

associated with Four Corners’ participant disputes, was settled in 2004.

FERC Audit Reserve: This adjustment eliminates an audit reserve reversal for a

transmission audit issue that was successfully resolved without a finding against
the Company.

APS Corporate Offices Rent Expense: This adjustment reflects the portion of]

the CHQ Rent true-up for calendar year 2004 that is outside the Test Year period.
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Bill Estimation Refund: Adjustment to reverse the revenue impact of the Bill

Estimation accrual, pursuant to Decision No. 68112.

ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL

WHAT IS THE ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL SHOWN ON
SFR SCHEDULE B-1?

The allowance for working capital shown on SFR Schedule B-1 is $168,146,000.
See Attachment LLR-4.

PLEASE EXPLAIN SFR SCHEDULE B-5.

This SFR Schedule outlines the allowance for working capital to be included in the
Company’s rate base. Working capital represents the amount of cash, materials and
supplies, fuel inventories, and prepayments needed to meet current expenses and
contingencies that might ordinarily develop. Working capital is an investment just
like other capital requirements, such as power plants and transmission and
distribution iﬁfrastructure; thus it is part of APS’ rate base. I am testifying to all of]
the data in SFR Schedule B-5, with the exception of the Working Capital
calculation (line 1 of page 1), which Mr. Fred Balluff will address. My testimony
presents the calculation of the allowance for working capital, which includes a cash
working capital component determined using the lead/lag study methodology

required by Deéision No. 55931.

WHAT IS THE ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL?
Based on APS Test Year balances, the calculation of a reasonable allowance for|
working capital results in an addition to rate base of $168,146,000. This includes
$191,768,000 of materials, supplies and fuel inventories, and $5,517,000 of prepaid
amounts. This amount is reduced by the net cash working capital of $29,139,000

that is provided by operations.
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VII.

HOW WAS THE CASH WORKING CAPITAL CALCULATED?

The net cash working capital is calculated by performing a “lead/lag” study. See
Mr. Balluff's testimony for further discussion of this study and its results. The lead
lag study days, which were calculated from the study of the calendar year 2004,

were applied to the Test Year income statement.

REPRODUCTION COST NEW STUDY

WHAT IS MEANT BY THE TERMS “RCN” AND “RCND” AS USED IN
YOUR TESTIMONY?

A.A.C. R14-2-103(A) (3) (n) defines "Reconstructed Cost New Less Depreciation™
or “RCND” as:

An amount consisting of the depreciated reconstruction cost new of
property (exclusive of contributions and/or advances in aid of
construction) at the end of the test year, used and useful, plus a
proper allowance for working capital and including all applicable pro
forma adjustments. Contributions and advances in aid of
construction, if recorded in the accounts of the public service
corporation, shall be increased to a reconstruction new basis.

Thus, Reproduction Cost New (“RCN™) refers to the estimated costs that would be
incurred if the utility properties of APS that were devoted to public service as of]
September 30, 2005 were to be reproduced or reconstructed as new properties
using current cost levels. RCND is a net amount that results after deducting
accumulated depreciation and amortization (both of which are also restated in

current dollars) from the RCN amount.
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WHAT IS SHOWN ON SFR SCHEDULE B-4?
SFR Schedule B-4 presents the RCN and RCND amounts of APS” uiility
properties. These amounts were determined using an RCN Study performed by the

Company. See Attachment LLR-5-2.

WOULD YOU BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE PROCEDURES YOU FOLLOWED IN
CONDUCTING THE RCN STUDY?

Consistent with A.A.C. R14-2-103, the RCN study that supports SFR Schedule B-
4 was conducted by taking depreciable plant at original cost by FERC account,' by
vintage year, and adding back Contributions in Aid of Construction (*CIACY) at
original cost. Electric and gas utilities are required by the Uniform System of]
Accounts to subtract CIAC from original cost plant-in-service, rather than record it
as a separate liability account, as is done by water and sewer utilities. This amount
was multiplied by the Handy-Whitman Index factor, based on vintage year, to
arrive at RCN before CIAC adjustment. CIAC was also multiplied by the
appropriate Handy-Whitman Index. The adjusted CIAC (which is a negative
number) was added to the RCN determined before the CIAC adjustment, to arrive

at the final RCN number shown in column (a) of SFR Schedule B-4.

WOULD YOU EXPLAIN IN MORE DETAIL THE CONSIDERATION
THAT YOU GAVE TO CIAC IN DETERMINING RCN?

Yes. CIAC is generally cash paid to APS by third parties for construction of]
facilities that will be owned by APS. Sometimes, it xhay also include property
donated to the Company to provide service. Line extensions are the most cbmmon

source of CIAC. As with original cost plant, CIAC is indexed using the Handy-

' The Commission has adopted the FERC Uniform System of Accounts (“USOA™) in A.A.C. R14-2-
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Whitman Index, as required by A.A.C R14-2-103, to arrive at RCN. A summary of]}
CIAC is provided in column (b) of Attachment LLR-5-1.

WHAT IS THE HANDY-WHITMAN INDEX?

The Handy-Whitman Index is recognized by the utility industry as an equivalent to
a Consumers Pr.ice Index for electric utility property. It compares the current cost
of constructing electric utility property with past construction costs-, and presents
the comparison in the form of a cost index. For example, assume that transmission
towers and fixtures were purchased by APS in 1985 at an original cost of $400,000.
To determine RCN, the original cost would be muitiplied by the appropriate
Handy-Whitman index factor for towers and fixtures. In this case, the index factor
is determined by dividing the current year index of 388 for 2004 by the vintage
year index of 245 for 1985, or 388/245, which equals 1.58. The index factor of 1.58
multiplied by the original cost of $400,000 equals the currént reproduction cost or

RCN of $632,000.

WERE ALL ASSETS INDEXED AS YOU JUST DESCRIBED?
No, land and land rights, intangibles, capitalized leases, and leasehold
improvements are included in RCN at their original cost levels only, consistent

with previous treatment of these assets by the Commission.

PLEASE DEFINE INTANGIBLES AND DESCRIBE THE AMOUNT OF
INTANGIBLES THAT ARE INCLUDED IN RCN AS SHOWN ON SFR
SCHEDULE B-4?

Intangibles are assets that provide future economic benefit but have no physical
substance. Examples include patents and computer software. APS’ intangible plant
is included in column (a), line 4 of SFR Schedule B-4 at its original cost of]

$285,337,000 on September 30, 2005.
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BASED ON YOUR STUDY, WHAT IS THE RCN OF APS’ UTILITY
PROPERTY DEVOTED TO SERVICE TO THE PUBLIC AS OF THE END
OF THE TEST YEAR?

Total RCN for APS’ utility property is $17,767,330,000 including the
$285,337,000 of intangible plant discussed above. This total amount is shown in
column (c) of Attachment LLR-5-1, and in column (a) of SFR Schedule B-4.

WOULD YOU EXPLAIN HOW RCND WAS CALCULATED AS SHOWN ON
SFR SCHEDULE B-4?

Yes. RCN by FERC account (or Plant account) number is shown in column (a) of]
SFR Schedule B-4. To arrive at RCND, RCN is multiplied by a “condition.
percent,” also known as a net book value percent, which is shown in column (b).
RCND is shown in column (c). The condition percent used to convert RCN to
RCND is calculated by first taking the original cost less accumulated depreciation
(in other words, the net book value) for all depreciable plant by FERC account.
This is divided 'by the original cost for each FERC account to arrive at condition
percent. Thué, the condition percent is the percentage that results when one
compares original cost less accumulated depreciation and the original cost of plant|

In service.

For example, using the same hypothetical that I used earlier, assume again that
transmission towers and fixtures have an original cost of $400,000, and assume
accumulated depreciation of $250,000. The original cost less accumulated
depreciation would be $150,000, Which is $400,000 minus $250,000. Also, assume ‘
the towers and fixtures were purchased in 1985 and have a RCN value of $632,000.
Using these assumptions, the condition percent is calculated by dividing original

cost less accumulated depreciation by original cost, or $150,000/$400,000,
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resulting in 37.5%. Multiplying RCN by the condition peﬁ:ent yields RCND. In
this hypothetical, $632,000 x 37.5% = $237,000.

WOULD YOU PLEASE EXPLAIN SFR SCHEDULE B-4A?

SFR Schedule B-4A shows the computation of adjusted jurisdictional RCND rate
base as of September 30, 2005.- Column (a) presents data for Total RCND rate
base. Mr. Rumolo has provided the jurisdictional allocations of the Electric RCND
rate base between “ACC” and “Other,” which is presented in columns (b) and (c)

respectively.

HOW DID YOU ARRIVE AT THE AMOUNTS SHOWN ON LINES 9
THROUGH 23 OF SFR SCHEDULE B-4A?

The amounts shown on lines 9 through 23 of SFR Schedule B-4A for other rate
base elements were obtained from SFR Schedule B-1, column (a), which is
sponsored by Mr. Froggatt. As in past presentations and consistent with past
Commission practice, the RCND of these rate base elements are stated at their

original cost levels.

WOULD YOU PLEASE EXPLAIN LINES 25 AND 26 OF SFR SCHEDULE
B-4A?

The amounts shown on line 25 represent the RCND rate base on September 30,
2005. However, the end of test year data needs to be adjusted to more closely
reflect the-value of certain items of property when the proposed rates become
effective. Therefore, it was necessary to reflect the pro forma rate base adjustments
in the RCND rate base. The RCND amounts of the pro forma adjustments are
shown in detail on SFR Schedule B-3; the total is shown on line 26 of SFR
Schedule B-4A.
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WHAT IS THE TOTAL ADJUSTED RCND RATE BASE? _
The total Company RCND rate base, as adjusted, is approximately $9.2" billion.
This 1s shown in SFR Schedule B-4A, column (a), line 28.

PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW YOU COMPUTED COLUMNS (B) THROUGH
(E) ON SFR SCHEDULE B-4A TO REFLECT THE JURISDICTIONAL
ALLOCATION?

The jurisdictional allocation of the RCND rate base elements between state retail| -
service (the Commission) and other jurisdictions (primarily FERC) was made by
applying the original cost jurisdiction relationships derived from SFR Schedule G-
7, which is sponsored by Mr. Rumoio. The relationships of the allocations shown
on line 2, excluding the Southern California Edison (“SCE”) 500 kY columns,
were used 16 allocate between jurisdictions on line 8. Total RCN excludes the SCE
500 kV amounts. The data shown in column (d) for the SCE 500 kV line represents
known or directly computed information. The jurisdictional allocations of lines 9
through 23, because they are stated at original cost, were obtained directly from
SFR Schedule G-7. |

WOULD YOU PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE JURISDICTIONAL

ALLOCATION OF THE RCND RATE BASE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004
AFTER MAKING THE PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS?

The total Commission-jurisdictional RCND rate base after adjustméﬁts is
approximately $7.8 billion (SFR Schedule B-4A, column (b), line 28). After pro
forma adjustments, the Total All Other RCND rate base is approximately $1.4
billion (SFR Schedule B-4A, column (c)). The sum of columns (b) and (¢) equals

the Total RCND rate base shown in column (a).
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VIIL

IX.

DETAIL OF UTILITY PLANT
PLEASE DISCUSS SFR SCHEDULE E-5.

SFR Schedule E-5 is the detailed statement of utility plant that makes up the
Company’s rate base, broken down by account number under the Uniform System
of Accounts. The first page of SFR Schedule E-5 is a summary, which includes
balances for gross plant in service, accumulated depreciation, nuclear fuel, work in
progress, and plant held for future use. The remainder of the schedule presents

supporting detail by account.

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS
PLEASE DISCUSS SFR SCHEDULE F-3.

SFR Schedule F-3 shows the projected annual construction requirements, by
property classification, for 1 to 3 years subsequent to the Test Year. I am
sponsoring the actual Test Year information; Mr. Brandt is sponsoring the rest of]

the information on SFR Schedule F-3.

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED

PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE SPECIFIC COMMISSION ACTION THAT
THE COMPANY IS REQUESTING REGARDING THE
DECOMMISSIONING AND SPENT FUEL STORAGE EXPENSES
DISCUSSED IN YOUR TESTIMONY.

The Company is requesting that the Commission’s Decision in this docket
specifically provide for approval of the annual level of decommissioning funding
and Spent Fuel Storage costs, as set forth on Attachment LLR-3, as well as the

amortization of the Spent Fuel Cost regulatory asset included in Attachment LLR-

'2-2. Attachment LLR-3 should be attached to any Commission Decision accepting

these amounts.
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Q.
A.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
Yes.
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Appendix A
Statement of Qualifications
Laura L. Rockenberger

Laura L. Rockenberger is the Manager of Operations Accounting in the Shared
Services Finance organization for Arizona Public Service Company (“APS”). In this
position, Ms. Rockenberger has responsibility for Generation and Energy Delivery
Operations & Maintenance and Fuel accounting; Asset Accounting; Accounting
Services Administration, including payroll and accounts payable; and Accounting
Systems. These accounting services are provided as needed to support the Pinnacle

West Capital Corporation entities.

Ms. Rockenberger graduated cum laude from Miami University in 1982 with a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Business with an emphasis in Accounting and is a
member of Beta Gamma Sigma. Ms. Rockenberger also has a Bachelor of Arts with
an emphasis in Music, graduating cum laude from the University of Souih Carolina,
and is a member of Phi Beta Kappa. Ms. Rockenberger has been a Certified
Public Accountant in Arizona since 1985 and is a member of the Arizona Society of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Rockenberger has been elected to the Board of Directors for the

Society of Depreciation Professionals effective January 1, 2006.

Ms. Rockenberger was employed in public accounting by Price Waterhouse from
1982 to 1984. Shejoined APS in 1985 as an Internal Auditor and held positions at the
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station and Pinnacle West Capital Corporation. In 1987
Ms. Rockenberger joined SunCor Development Company (“SunCor™), a real estate
subsidiary of Pinnacle West Capital Corporation. At SunCor, she held positions as
the Director of Finance and Controller. In 1998 she joined APS as the Manager of

Operations Accounting, her current position.
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Attachment LLR-3

Page 1 of4
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
SCHEDULE OF AMOUNTS TO BE DEPOSITED IN THE
DECOMMISSIONING TRUSTS INCLUDED IN COST OF SERVICE
PALO VERDE TOTAL
(Thousands of Dollars)
(APS Share)
POST
SHUTDOWN
POST - ISFSI
SHUTDOWN REGULATORY
ON-GOING ASSET _
ISFSI AMORTIZATION  DECOMMISSIONING TOTAL ACC
ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL JURISDICTIONAL
CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT
LINE YEAR REQUIRED REQUIRED REQUIRED REQUIRED il
1 2004 8 376 3 38 % 15328 % 16,100 § 15,865
2 2005 752 792 19,211 20,755 20,452
3 2006 752 792 19,211 20,755 20,452
4 [2007 752 792 19,211 20,755 20,457 |
5 2008 752 792 19,211 20,755 20,452
6 2009 1,816 792 19,211 21,819 21,500
7 2010 4,431 o 792 19,211 24,484 24,127
8 2011 4,481 792 19,211 24,484 24,127
9 2012 4,481 792 19,211 24484 24,127
10 2013 4,481 792 19,211 24,484 24,127
1 2014 4,481 792 19,211 24,484 24,127
12 2015 4,481 792 19,211 24,484 24,127
13 2016 1,920 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
14 2017 1,920 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
15 2018 1,920 | 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
16 2019 1,920 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
17 2020 1,920 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
18 2021 1,920 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
19 2022 1,920 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
20 2023 1,920 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
21 2024 1,920 404 11,139 13,463 13,266
22 2025 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
23 2026 1,004 238 6,017 7,259 7.153
$ 51,330 § 13172 § 338934 $ 403436 § 397,546

/1/ ACC Jurisdictional share is approximately 98.54%.



Attachment LLR-3

- Page2of4
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
SCHEDULE OF AMOUNTS TO BE DEPOSITED IN THE
DECOMMISSIONING TRUSTS INCLUDED IN COST OF SERVICE
PALOC VERDE UNIT 1
(Thousands of Doflars)
(APS Share)
POST
SHUTDOWN
POST ISFSI
SHUTDOWN REGULATORY
ON-GOING ASSET
ISFSI AMORTIZATION DECOMMISSIONING TOTAL ~ ACC
ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL JURISDICTIONAL
CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT
LINE  YEAR REQUIRED REQUIRED REQUIRED REQUIRED 1/

1 2004 $ 125 $ 107 $ 4,077 $ 4,309 $ 4246
2 2005 251 214 ) 5,122 5,587 5,505
3 2006 251 214 5,122 5,587 5,505
4 2007 251 214 5122 5,587 5,505
5 2008 251 214 5,122 5,587 5,505
6 2009 605 214 5122 5,941 5,854
7 2010 960 214 5,122 6,296 - 6,204
8 2011 960 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
9 2012 960 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
10 2013 960 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
1 2014 860 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
12 2015 950 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
13 2016 960 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
14 2017 960 . 214 5,122 . 6,296 6,204
15 2018 960 214 5122 6,296 6,204
16 2019 960 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
17 2020 960 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
18 2021 960 - 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
19 2022 960 214 5,122 6,296 6,204
20 2023 960 214 5,122 8,296 6,204
21 2024 960 214 5122 6,296 6,204

22 2025

23 2026
$ 16,134 $ 4,387 $ -108,517 $ 127,038 $ 125,183

M/ ACC Jurisdictional share is approximately 98.54%.



* Attachment LLR-3

Page 3 0of 4
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
SCHEDULE OF AMOUNTS TO BE DEPOSITED IN THE
DECOMMISSIONING TRUSTS INCLUDED IN COST OF SERVICE
’ PALO VERDE UNIT 2
(Thousands of Dolfars)
(APS Share)
POST
SHUTDOWN
POST . ISFSI
SHUTDOWN REGULATORY
ON-GOING ' ASSET
ISFSI AMORTIZATION DECOMMISSIONING TOTAL ACC
ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL JURISDICTIONAL
CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT
LINE YEAR REQUIRED REQUIRED REQUIRED REQUIRED 4

1 2004 $ 126 $ 194 $ 6,153 $ 6.473 $ 6,378
2 2005 250 388 8,072 8,710 8,583
3 2006 250 388 8,072 8,710 8,583
4 2007 250 388 8,072 8,710 8,583
5 2008 250 388 8,072 8,710 8,583
6 2009 606 388 8,072 9,066 8,934
7 2010 2,561 388 8,072 11,021 10,860
8 2011 2,561 388 8,072 11,021 10,860
9 2012 2,561 388 8,072 11,021 10,860
10 2013 2,561 388 8,072 11,021 10,860
1 2014 2,561 388 8,072 11,021 10,860
12 2015 2,561 388 8,072 11,021 10,860
13 2016
14 2017
15 2018
16 2019
17 2020
18 2021
19 2022
20 2023
21 2024
22 2025
23 2026

$ 17,088 $ 4,462 $ 94,945 3 116,505 3 114,804

11/ ACC Jurisdictional share is approximately 98.54%.



Attachment LLR-3

Page 4 of 4
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
SCHEDULE OF AMOUNTS TO BE DEPOSITED IN THE
DECOMMISSIONING TRUSTS INCLUDED IN COST OF SERVICE
PALO VERDE UNIT 3
(Thousands of Dollars) .
(APS Share)
POST
SHUTDOWN
POST ISFSI
SHUTDOWN REGULATORY
ON-GOING ASSET
ISFSI AMORTIZATICN DECOMMISSIONING TOTAL ACC
ANNUAL ANNUAL - ANNUAL ANNUAL JURISDICTIONAL
CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTICN CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTICN AMOUNT
LINE YEAR REQUIRED REQUIRED REQUIRED REQUIRED "/
1 2004 $ 125 $ 95 $ 5,098 $ . 5,318 $ 5,240
2 2005 251 180 6,017 6,458 6,364
3 2006 251 190 6,017 6,458 " 6,364
4 2007 251 190 6,017 6,458 6,364
5 2008 251 180 6,017 6,458 6,364
8 2009 605 190 _ 8,017 6,812 6,713
7 2010 960 180 6,017 7,167 7,062
8 2011 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
9 2012 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
10 2013 960 : 190 6,017 7,167 7.062
1 2014 860 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
12 2015 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
13 2016 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
14 2017 960 190 6,017 7,167 7.062
15 2018 960 190 ‘ 6,017 7,187 7.062
16 2019 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
17 2020 960 190 6,017 7,167 - 7,062
18 2021 960 190 . 6,017 7,167 7,062
19 2022 960 : 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
20 2023 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
21 2024 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
22 2025 960 190 6,017 7,167 7,062
23 2026 1,004 238 6,017 7,259 7,153
3 18,098 $ 4,323 $ 137,472 $ 159,893 $ . 157,559

11/ ACC Jurisdictional share is approximately 88.54%.



ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

COMPUTATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

LINE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1 WORKING CAPITAL - OPERATIONS $ {29,139)
2  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES!" 106,427 a
3 FUEL- COAL AND OIL 25452 b
4  FUEL - NUCLEAR, NET 58,889 ¢
5  PREPAYMENTS 5,517
6 ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL $ 168,146
atb+os 191,768
Note . APS Materials and Supplies include FERC 154 & 156

Attachment LLR-4
Page 1 of 1
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
RCND BY MAJOR PLANT ACCOUNTS
TEST YEAR ENDING 8-30-2005
{Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment LLR-5-2
Page 1 of 1

SCHEDULE B4
Line PLANT CONDITION PERCENT
No. Function ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION RCN Percent RCND
: {a} {b} {c}
1. |INTANGIBLES 301 Organization 74 100.00% $74
2. 302 Franchises and consents 2.964 78.61% 2.330
3. 303 Miscellaneous intangible plant 282,209 37.81% 106,168
| 4. ] SUBTOTAL $285.337 $3108,572
. |JPRODUCTION 210 Land and Land Rights 3,308 100.00% 3,308
. 310 Limit Term Land Rights 54 35.12% 22
. 311 Structures and improvements 256,142 46.36% 118,748
B. 312 Boiler plant equipment 1,996,765 41.76% 833,910
g 314 Turbogenerator units 609,483 46.23% 2B81.756
0. 315 Accessory eiectric equipment 431,039 38.33% 165,236
11. 316 Miscellaneous powei plant equip. 114,11 57.52% 65,638|
12, 320 Land and tand rights, 3.502 100.00% 3502
3. 321 Structures and improvements 1,032,084 52.35% 540,328
14, 322 Reactor plant equipment 1,645 347 52.13% 857,675
N 323 Turbogenerator units 572,968 52.21% 298,120
3 324 Accessory eiectric squipment 874,278 48 88% 280,703
. 325 Misc power plant equip 221,602 50.96% 12,923
B. 330 Limit Term Land Rights 0 0.00% 0
9. 3 Structures and improvements 0 0.00% g
20. y. Reservoirs, dams, and waterways 0 0.00% 0
21. 3 Water wheels, turbines and generatars 0 0.00% 0
22, 334 Accessory electric equipment 0 0.00% 0
23. 335 Miscellaneous power plant equip. e 0.00% 0
4. 336 Roads, railroads and bridges 0 0.00% 0
5 340 Land and land rights 3158 100.00% 3,158
28. 341 Structures and improvements 58435 77.07% 45033
27, 342 Fuel holders, products and accessories 57,147 63.19% 36,110
28. 343 Prime movers 680,365 75 46% 513,379
29. 344 Generators 545,368 82.98% 452 526
30. 345 Agcessory eleciric eguipment 145,429 71.11% 103,414
31 346 __ [Miscellaneous power plant equip. 13,127 47.14% 5,188
32, SUBTOTAL $8,983 72 34,722 677
JA ITRANSMISSION 350 Land and land rights 4472 100.00% 4472
4. 350 Limit Term Land Rights 8288 49.82% 911
35. 352 Structures and improvements 54,233 52.24% 28,3321
36. 353 Station eguipment 1,063,880 72.82% 774,735
37. 354 Towers and fixtures 313,974 30.32% 95,194
38. 355 Poles and fixtures 390,956 72.09% 281,828
39. 356 Overhead conductors and devices 714,447 53.84% 384 657
40, 357 Underground conduit 29,887 70.32% 21.017
41, 358 Underground conductors and devices 46,951 53.51% 25124
42, SUBTOTAL $2,677,337 $1664719
43. |DISTRIBUTION 350 Land and tand rights 32,572 100.00% 32,572
44, 360 Limit Term Land Rights 1.823 73.30% 336
45, 361 Structures and improvements 55723 59.38% 33,081/
48. 362 Station equipment 435,463 74 96% 326,404/
47, 364 Poles, towers, and fixtures 619812 75.81% 469,876
48. 365 Overhead conductors and devices 442 054 6.72% 383334
49. 366 Underground condurt 538,381 1.47% 638,841}
50. 367 Underground conductors and devices 1,347,185 66.75% 899,221}
51. 368 Line transformers 742,797 51.88% 385,38
52. 369 _ |Services 401,744 9.01% 237,085
53. 370 Meters 233,878 9.96% 163,611
54. 371 Instatlations on customers’ premises 60,020 34.06% 50,453
55. 373 Street lighting and signal systems 110,221 - 80.77% 66,977
56. SUBTOTAL $5,181.683 $3,688,192
. {GENERAL 389 Land and land rights 10,640 100.00% 10,640
. 380 Structures and improvements 208,553 65.90% 138,112
. 381 Office furniture and equipment 126,66 41.16% 92,137
4. 391 Capitalized L.ease-Computer Equipment } 77 14.74% 1,294
. 392 _ |Transportation equipment 34,80 2.31% 825
B, 392 Capitalized Lease-Transportation Eguip. 12,51 58.03% 7,265
7. 383 . |Stores equipment . 5821 -542% -315
8. 394 Tools, shop and garage equipment 21,543 68.84% 14,831
E) 395 Laboratory equipment 3,255 49.95% 1,626
10. 396 Power operated equipment 32,427 28 15% 9,127}
1. 397 Communication equipment 184,924 2.16% 96,455
2. 308 Miscellaneous equipment 8272 91.45% 7 565
3. SUBTOTAL $659 242 $339,562
L 14.] TOTAL PLANT $17.767,330 10,523,722
Supporting Schedules ReCap Schedules
RCND Study {a) B-3
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REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF LAURA L. ROCKENBERGER
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-816)

INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, BUSINESS ADDRESS AND
OCCUPATION.

- My name is Laura L. Rockenberger. My business address is 400 North Fifth

Street, Phoenix, Arizona, 85004. Iam the Manager of Operations Accounting for
Arizona Public Service Company (“APS” or “Company”).

DID YOU FILE DIRECT TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING?
Yes. I filed direct testimony in this docket on November 4, 2005 (“Initial Filing™),
and also provided updated testimony on January 31, 2006 (“January Filing”).

SUMMARY OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY.
Most importantly, my Rebuttal Testimony addresses the critical need of the

Company to maintain an appropriate level of cash working capital and refutes both
the Staff and Residential Consumer Utility Office (“RUCO”) recommended

reductions in cash working capital that will further handicap the Company’s

 ability to have cash available to operate and maintain its electric system on a daily

basis. The Company opposes Staff recommendations that cash working capital be
reduced by $59,600,000 by removing “non-cash items” and including interest
expense in the Cash Working Capital calculation. RUCO also recommends that
depreciation expense, as a “‘non-cash item,” be excluded from and interest expense
be included in the cash working capital calculation. Certain income statement

expenses have been casually referred to as “non-cash” items; but, the stark reality
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is that these items provide cash resources that the Company desperately needs to
maintain operations while funding expansive growth in its service territory. The
fundamental regulatory concept that we must remain focused on is that the current
period depreciation expense, and other non-cash expenses, reduce rate base before
the cash is collected from the customers. Because there is a gap in time from the
rate base reduction (when the Company stops earning a return on the assets which
are “consumed” in operations and allocated to expense) and the cash collection
from the customers, it makes sense to bﬁdge that “gap” in time by including those
expenses in the cash working capital calculation. APS witness Balluff will
provide further elaboration on the technical merits of including these non-cash
items and excluding interest expense in the cash working capital calculation.
Finally, the Company does not oppose $5,019,000 in cash working capital
reductions recommended by Staff which are based on adjustments to the cash

working capital calculation.

My Rebuttal Testimony also discusses the rate base and operating income
adjustments advocated by Staff, RUCO and Arizonans for Electric Choice and
Competition (“AECC”).  These adjustments fall into these categories:
recommendations we do not oppose; those we can support in part; and, those we
completely oppose. These adjustments are summarized below. All the rate case
and operating income adjustments summarized are stated as total company
numbers. The jurisdictional portion of the adjustments are summarized in

Attachments LLR-3-1RB through LLR-3-3RB.

Adjustments to Both Rate Base and Operating Income

4. Palo Verde Unit 1 Steam Generators




O 0 N O n » W N o=

N N N N N N N e e e e b e et e et e
A O hd W N~ O YW NN A WN =D

The Company does not oppose RUCO’s recommendation to record the
$36,684,000 retirement of the old steam generators and low pressure turbines
which has no impact on rate base. Accordingly, the Company does not oppose the
related $262,000 adjustment to reduce operating income for depreciation expense
related to a portion of the old low pressure turbine equipment retired, but does
oppose the recommended $404,000 adjustment for depreciation on the old steam

generators which was included in the Company’s calculation.

B. Bark Beetle Remediation

The Company has deferred bark beetle remediation costs in compliance with
Decision No. 67744, and opposes both (1) Staff recommendations to remove 2005
expenses from January 1, 2005 through March 31, 2005, and (2) RUCO’s
recommendation to remove projected costs from the end of the Test Year through
December 31, 2006. These recommendations would decrease the allowable
deferred bark beetle remediation costs and related annual amortization expense.
The Company is not opposed to certain adjustrnenté to include the impacts of
deferred income taxes in rate base and correct the original pro forma for the actual
costs at September 30, 2005. The Company is also proposing to update the
projected costs through December 31, 2006. This will increase the total deferred
bark beetle remediation costs by $333,000 to $11,622,000. The net pro forma
adjustment will reduce rate base by $1,755,000 and increase amortization expense

by $110,000.

Additional Pro Forma Adjustments to Operating Income
A, PWEC Units' and Sundance Units

' “PWEC Units” refers to the generation plants that were transferred to APS in the prior rate case,
as discussed in my Direct Testimony.

1886415.2
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Mr. Ewen discusses the PWEC Units’ and Sundance Units O&M in his Rebuttal
Testimony.

The Company is opposed to Mr. Higgins' recommended adjustment to reduce the
PWEC Units’ A&G by $11,618,000 based on the concept that A&G recovery
should be limited to historical levels. It should be noted, however, that the
Company is not opposed to $5,098,000 in out-of-period adjustments related to
PWEC A&G which | address in “J. Other Administrative and General

Adjustments”.

B. Decommissioning

The Company is opposed to RUCO’s recommended $765,000 reduction in
operating expenses related to decommissioning. = RUCO included the
decommissioning costs, but did not take into consideration that funding into the
decommissioning trusts also provides for post-shutdown spent nuclear fuel storage
costs which was properly recorded as $765,000 in fuel expense and funded into

the decommissioning trusts.

C.  Spent Nuclear Fuel Storage
The Company is not opposed to Staff’s recommendation to reduce operating

income by $264,000 for ongoing spent nuclear fuel storage expenses.

D.  Depreciation and Amortization

The Company is opposed to RUCO’s recommended $6,991,000 reduction in
amortization expense, as RUCO provided an historical average rate which
understates normalized amortization expénse in a period of time when assets

balances are increasing significantly and, thus, amortization expense is increasing.

1886415.2
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E. Property Taxes

The Company is not opposed to Staff’s recommended $1,708,000 reduction in
property taxes related to the 2007 phase-in of new generation | plant costs.
Accordingly, the Company is opposed to RUCO’s adjustment to reduce the
property taxes by $5,977,000 based on the temporary suspension of the County |
Education Tax Rate, because RUCO did not take into consideration all known and
measurable factors impacting the assessed value which would impact the pro

forma adjustment.

F.  Payroll

The Company is opposed to both Staff and RUCO recommendations to disallow
stock-based incentive compensation and to have an overall 20% reduction in
incentive compensation. Mr. Wheeler discusses this further in his Rebuttal
Testimony. The Company is also opposed to RUCO’s recommendation that
Supplemental Excess Benefit Retirement Plan (“SEBRP”) expense be disallowed.
Mr. Brandt discusses this further in his Rebuttal Testimony.

lStaff has proposed an $8,155,000 increase in pension costs and a $2,038,000 |
increase in post retirement medical costs based on estimated 2006 expenses. The
Company agrees that the Test Year expenses should be basedv on 2006 cost levels
and has now received final 2006 actuarial calculations, which increase Test Year
pension expense by $2,249,000 and decrease post retirement medical costs by
$3,191,000. The Company is proposing adjustments based on these final 2006

actuarial calculations.
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G Underfunded Pension Liability

The Company opposes Staff, RUCO and AECC recommendation to deny the
Company’s request to accelerate the recovery of its underfunded pension liability
over a five-year period beginning in 2007. Mr. Brandt discusses the necessity for
the Company to accelerate this funding in his Rebuttal Testimony.

H. Advertising

The Company is not opposed to the $437,000 reduction in advertising costs
recommended by Staff, $66,000 of the $566,000 reduction recommended by
RUCO, and the $4,625.00 reduction recommended by Mr. Rigsby. The Company
is opposed to RUCO’s recommendation to remove $400,000 of meals expense
from operating expenses as these costs are incurred to provide company lunches
for employees that are working during their personal lunch time. The Company is

proposing a pro forma adjustment to reduce operating expenses by $508,000.

L Lobbying
The Company is opposed to adjustments to remove lobbying costs from the Test

Year, as Mr. Wheeler discusses in his Rebutta]l Testimony.

J Other Administrative and General Adjustments

The Company is not opposed to Staff and RUCO recommended adjustments to
reduce A&G by $8,520,000 for out-of-period costs and legal fees. This amount
includes $5,098,000 in PWEC Units out-of-period adjustments.

Liberty Consulting Group Fuel Audit

My Rebuttal Testimony also responds to one recommendation which was
addressed by Staff’s consultant, Liberty Consulting Group, in its Final Audit
Report: APS Fuel and Purchased Power Procurement and Costs (“Fuel Audit

18864152
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Report™), which was issued August 31, 2006. This recommendation addrgéses an
accounting practice for allocating refunds on fuel transportation costs to fuel
expense and inventory. The Fuel Audit Report noted that the recommended
accounting adjustment is only a short-term timing issue regarding the flow of fuel

expense through the Power Supply Adjustor (“PSA”).

Finally, my Rebuttal Testimony includes the calculation of estirnated Plant-in-
Service at December 31, 2006, as discussed in Mr. Wheeler’s Rebuttal Testimony.
The estimated Plant-in-Service is $11,369,665,000. The increase in Plant-in-
Service from the Test Year to December 31, 2006 is estimated to be $572,058,000,
which has a related revenue requirement of $13,480,000.

Q. HOWIS YOUR TESTIMONY ORGANIZED?
First, I will discuss the adjusﬁncnt to the cash working capital (“CWC”) included

>

in the Allowance for Working Capital, as set forth in Attachment LLR-1-1RB.
Then, I will discuss the items that have a pro forma adjustment to Original Cost
Rate Base, as set forth in Attachments LLR-2-1RB through LLR-2-3RB and any
corresponding pro forma adjustments to operating income. After the discussion of
these items, which adjust the rate base, I will present the Summary of Original
Cost and RCND Rate Base Elements, Adjustments to B-2 and Adjustments to B-3
in Attachments LLR-3-1RB through LLR-3-3RB. I will then discuss the
remaining operating income pro forma adjustments. These pro forma adjustments,
as set forth in Attachments LLR-4-1RB through LLR-4-8RB, reflect total
Company amounts prior to any jurisdictional allocation. Then I will discuss one
of the recommendations in the Fuel Audit Report that is related to fuel accounting
practices. Finally, I will discuss the estimated Plant-in-Service at December 31,

2006 as set forth in Attachment LI.R-5-1RB.

18864152
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. ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL

Q. HAVE YOU REVIEWED STAFF AND RUCO TESTIMONY AND
EXHIBITS RELATING TO WORKING CAPITAL?

A.  Yes. Both Staff witness Mr. Dittmer and RUCO witness Ms. Diaz Cortez discuss
working capital issues in their testimony. Both make significant adjustments to
the Company’s lead lag study in the area of cash working capital (“CWC”), as
identified in Staff Schedule B-4 and RUCO Schedule MDC-5.

Q. PLEASE IDENTIFY STAFF'S RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS TO
CWC.

A.  Asis shown in Mr. Dittmer’s Direct Testimony on page 32, Staff’s recommended

CWC adjustments are as follows:

APS CWC Recommendation $(29.3) million
Staff CWC Adjustments:

Remove Non-Cash [tems (43.7) million

Recognize Interest Expense (15.9) million

Total Non-Cash and Interest Expense (59.6) million

Revise Palo Verde Lease Payment Lag  (7.1) million
Adjust Level of Purchased Power Expense 2.6 million

Re-weight Revenue Lag (0.5) million
Total Other CWC Adjustments (5.0) million
Total Staff CWC Adjustments: $(64.6) million

Staff’s Recommended CWC: $(93.9) million

Q. PLEASE IDENTIFY RUCO’S RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS TO
CWC.

A.  Ms. Diaz Cortez also recommends that depreciation expense be excluded and
interest expense be included in the CWC calculation. Although Ms. Diaz Cortez

also substituted RUCO’s recommended expense levels for the Company in its

1886415.2
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CWC calculation, she states in her testimony on page 12 that her entire proposed
adjustment “is primarily attributable to the depreciation and interest expense

factors and decreases cash working capital by $78.2 million.”

DO YOU AGREE WITH THESE RECOMMENDATIONS?

I agree with Staff’s recommendations for adjustments to Palo Verde lease payment
lags, levels of purchased power expense, and to its re-weighting of revenue lags in
CWC. However, I strongly disagree with both Staff and RUCO’s
recommendation to eliminate so called “non-cash” items from CWC. 1 also
strongly disagree with their recqmmendation to include interest expense in the
CWC calculations. APS witness Balluff discusses the appropriateness of inclusion
of “non-cash” items, as well as the exclusion of interest expense in the CWC

calculations, in his Rebuttal Testimony.

TAKING INTO CONSIDERATION THE RECOMMENDATIONS THAT
YOU DO NOT OPPOSE, CAN YOU SUMMARIZE THE COMPANY’S
REVISED CASH WORKING CAPITAL REQUEST?

Yes. The Company does not oppose the recommended adjustments to the Palo
Verde lease payment lags, levels of purchased power expense, and to its re-
weighting of revenue lags. These total changes result in a revised cash working
capital request of ($34,158,000), which is a reduction of $5,019,000 from the
January Filing in SFR Schedule B-5, line 1. See Attachment LLR-1-1RB.

PLEASE EXPLAIN WHY CASH WORKING CAPITAL IS A CRITICAL
SOURCE OF FUNDS TO THE COMPANY.

The Company must operate and maintain its electric system on a daily basis. As
Mr. Wheeler discussed in his Direct Testimony, APS is experiencing dramatic

growth in its service territory. Mr. Brandt discusses in his Rebuttal Testimony that
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the Company anticipates spending in excess of an average of $900 million per |
year, from 2007 through 2009, for capital investments to serve its rapidly growing
customer base and maintain high service reliability. Cash working capital is a

critical source of funds.

The arbitrary reduction of rate base to the tune of about $44 million, due to a
perception by Staff and RUCO that such depﬁ:ciation expense is not a “cash” item,
effectively reduces APS’ cash flow during a time in which the Company is
experiencing unprecedented growth and must be able to generate sufficient cash to
continue construction and provide reliable service to its rapidly increasing

customer base.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE FUNDAMENTAL CONCEPT THAT PROVIDES
FOR INCLUDING NON-CASH ITEMS IN THE CASH WORKING
CAPITAL CALCULATION.

The fundamental regulatory concept that we must remain focused on is that the
current period depreciation expense, and other non-cash expenses, reduce rate base
before the cash is collected from the customers. Because there is a gap in time
from the rate base reduction (when the Company stops earning a return on the
assets which are “consumed” in operations and allocated to expense) and the cash
collection from the customers, it makes sense to bridge that “gap” in time by

including those expenses in the cash working capital calculation.

IS APS’ REQUEST TO INCLUDE THESE OTHER REVENUE ITEMS IN
THE LEAD LAG STUDY UNPRECEDENTED OR OUT-OF-LINE WITH
OTHER COMMISSIONS’ TREATMENT OF THESE SAME EXPENSES?

No. Mr. Balluff discusses the fact that other state commissions have recognized

the appropriateness of reflecting these non-cash items somewhere in a utility’s rate

-10-
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base. For APS, it has been eighteen years since these issues were litigated, so it is
time for the Commission to revisit the analysis of how cash working capital is

determined for rate making purposes.

;I}(())OIEI%RMA ADJUSTMENTS TO BOTH RATE BASE & OPERATING

A. Palo Verde Unit ] Steam Generators

- RUCO IDENTIFIED THAT THE COMPANY’S RATE BASE PRO

FORMA, WHICH REFLECTED THE REPLACEMENT OF STEAM
GENERATORS FOR PALO VERDE UNIT 1, FAILED TO INCLUDE A
PROVISION FOR THE RETIREMENT OF THE ORIGINAL UNIT 1
STEAM GENERATORS AND PROPOSED A RATE BASE ADJUSTMENT
TO REFLECT THAT RETIREMENT. DO YOU AGREE WITH RUCO’S
PROPOSED ADJUSTMENT?

Yes. As a result, the Company is proposing a rate base pro forma to reflect the
retirement of the original steam generators, including the low pressure turbine

rotors. The pro forma will decrease plant assets by $36,684,000 and decrease

. accumulated depreciation by $36,684,000. This pro forma has no effect on rate

base, but does have an impact on depreciation expense. See Attachment LLR-2-

IRB.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE IMPACT OF THIS PRO FORMA ON
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE.

The Test Year depreciation expense was adjusted to reflect the increase in the
level of plant-in-service resulting from the addition of the replacement steam
generators, net of the retirement of the original steam generators. The Company’s
depreciation expense adjustment was properly calculated for the replacement of
the steam generators, but did not include the retirement of the low pressure turbine

rotors in the calculation.

-11-
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RUCO PROPOSED A $666,000 ADJUSTMENT TO REDUCE
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE TO REFLECT THE RETIREMENT OF THE
ORIGINAL STEAM GENERATORS AND THE ADDITION OF THE
REPLACEMENT STEAM GENERATORS, INCLUDING THE LOW
PRESSURE TURBINES. DO YOU AGREE WITH RUCO’S
ADJUSTMENT? ‘

The Company agrees with a portion of the adjustment. The $666,000 adjustment
includes reductions in depreciation expense of $404,000 related to the steam
generators and $262,000 related to the low pressure turbine rotors. The Company
agrees with the $262,000 adjustment for the low pressure turbine rotors proposed
by Mr. Rigsby, which is included in Attachment LLR-4-1RB. However, the
$404,000 depreciation adjustment for the retirement of the originél steam
generators was included in the Company’s Test Year pro forma adjustment,
therefore, Mr. Rigsby’s adjustment would double count depreciation expense

reduction for the original steam generators. See LLR_WP17, page 2 of 12.

B. Bark Beetle Remediation

HAVE YOU REVIEWED STAFF AND RUCO TESTIMONY AND
EXHIBITS RELATING TO BARK BEETLE REMEDIATION?

Yes. Mr. Dittmer and Mr. Rigsby each addressed bark beetle remediation in their
Direct Testimony. They each concluded that Decision No. 67744 provided for the
deferral of bark beetle remediation costs and subsequent amortization of such
costs; and, furthermore, each accepted the three-year amortization period proposed
by the Company. Additionally, Mr. Dittmer and Mr. Rigsby each propose certain

pro forma adjustments, which I shall now address.

MR. DITTMER RECOMMENDED THAT THE COSTS DEFERRED FOR
THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2005 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2005 BE
REMOVED FROM THE DEFERRED COSTS AND
CORRESPONDINGLY, THAT THE ANNUAL AMORTIZATION

-12-
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- EXPENSE BE REDUCED. DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS

RECOMMENDATION?
No. Mr. Dittmer believes that the effective date to commence deferral of bark

beetle remediation costs should be April 1, 2005, the effective date of Decision
No. 67744. However, the language of that Decisioh, which states, “APS is
authorized to defer for later recovery the reasonable and prudent direct costs of
bark beetle remediation that exceed the test year [emphasis added] levels of tree
and bush control”, indicates that a full year of cost recovery was intended.
Therefore, the Company actually began deferring costs incurred effective January
1, 2005. The Company believes that the August 2004 Settlement intended and
Decision No. 67744, effective April 1, 2005, authorized that deferrals would
include the entire calendar year in which the deferral became effective. Thus,
effective January 1, 2005, the Company began deferring costs. to ensure that the

allowable deferred costs were properly calculated for 2005.

MR. DITTMER ALSO RECOMMENDS ADJUSTMENTS TO CORRECT
THE COMPANY’S ORIGINAL PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT. DO YOU
AGREE WITH THIS RECOMMENDATION?

The Company agrees that the rate base should include accumulated deferred
income taxes associated with APS’ pre-tax pro forma rate base adjustment and that
the actual bark beetle deferral balance used in the Company’s original pro forma
adjustment was incorrect. These corrections have been made and the projected
cost deferral through December 31, 2006 has been updated and slightly increased.
Taking these items into consideration, the Company is proposing a pro forma
adjustment to reduce the rate base by $1,755,000. See Attachment LLR-2-2RB.
This includes an adjustment to reduce the rate base by $2,793,000 for accumulated

deferred income taxes related to rate base adjustments, partially offset by a

-13-
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$1,038,000 rate base increase comprised of a $705,000 addition to rate base to
correct the calculation for the actual September 30, 2005, deferred bark beetle
remediation costs in the Company’s original pro forma in the January filing, as
discussed in Mr. Bischoff’s testimony, and a $333,000 addition to rate base to
increase the projected bark beetle remediation cost deferral through December 31,
2006.

IS THERE A CORRESPONDING OPERATING INCOME PRO FORMA
TO ADJUST THE ANNUAL AMORTIZATION EXPENSE?

Yes. A pro forma adjustment to increase the operating costs by $110,000 from
$1,438,000 to $1,548,000 to reflect the increased bark beetle amortization cost is
included as Attachment LLR-4-2RB.

MR. RIGSBY PROPOSES A PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT TO REMOVE
ESTIMATED BARK BEETLE REMEDIATION COSTS INCLUDED IN
THE COMPANY’S DEFERRAL CALCULATION. DO YOU AGREE
WITH THIS RECOMMENDATION?

No. Estimating costs for the period of time from September 30, 2005 (the end of
the Test Year) through January 1, 2007 (when rates are expected to be in j)lace), is
a reasonable period of time to project the costs for ongoing remediation activities
and also meets the standard of known and measurable costs. Qur current financial
projections, based on actual costs at July 31, 2006, and including transportation
costs related to remediation activities, indicate that the Company will have about
$11,622,000 in deferred costs at December 31, 2006, about $333,000 more than
the amounts estimated in our January Filing. It is appropriate under the matching
principal to use estimated costs to ensure that the rates in effect in 2007 provide (at
a minimum) for the amortization of the actual costs insurred by year-end 2006..

Thus, APS does not accept Mr. Rigsby’s proposed adjustments to reduce the rate

-14 -
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base for costs incurred subsequent to the Test Year, and the corresponding

adjustment to reduce operating expenses for the annual amortization expense.

TOTAL RATE BASE ADJUSTMENTS

PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE ADJUSTED TEST YEAR ORIGINAL COST
RATE BASE PROPOSED BY APS.

For the Test Year ending September 30, 2005, APS is proposing a total Company
OCRB adjustment of $10,660,000 to decrease the OCRB from $5,327,833,000 in
the January Filing to $5,317,173,000. The jurisdictional allocation of the OCRB is
$4,456,937,000, which is sponsored by Mr. David Rumolo. ‘These aﬁjustments are
summarized in Adjustments to Schedule B-2, which is included as Attachment
LLR-3-2RB.

RECONSTRUCTION COST NEW STUDY

HAVE YOU DEVELOPED REVISED RCND CALCULATIONS FOR
VARIOUS RATE BASE ADJUSTMENTS PROPOSED OR ACCEPTED BY
THE COMPANY?

Yes. In my Direct Testimony, I sponsored the Company’s Reconstruction Cost
New (“RCN™) and Reconstruction Cost New Less Depreciation (“RCND”) study.
In Attachments LLR-3-1RB through LLR-3-3RB, I present the Original Cost and
RCND Rate Base Elements, Adjustments to B-2 and Adjustments to B-3.

IS THE METHODOLOGY BY WHICH YOU CALCULATED THE RCN
AND RCND AMOUNTS THE SAME AS PRESENTED IN YOUR DIRECT
TESTIMONY?

Yes. The calculations of the RCN and RCND amounts follow the same methods
that I discussed at pages 28-33 of my Direct Testimony.

~-15-
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VII. ADDITIONAL PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS TO OPERATING INCOME

1886415.2

A PWEC and Sundance Units

MR. HIGGINS AND MR. SCHLISSEL RECOMMENDED REDUCTIONS
TO THE PWEC UNITS AND SUNDANCE UNITS O&M COSTS
INCLUDED IN OPERATING EXPENSES. WHAT IS THE COMPANY’S
RESPONSE TO THESE RECOMMENDATIONS?

Mr. Ewen responds to these recommended pro forma adjustments in his Rebuttal

Testimony.

MR. HIGGINS (AECC) RECOMMENDED THAT THE PWEC UNITS’
ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL (“A&G”) COSTS BE LIMITED TO
THOSE EXPENSES ATTRIBUTED TO THE PWEC UNITS DURING THE
COMPANY’S PRIOR RATE CASE. DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS
APPROACH?

No, I do not agree with Mr. Higgins’ pro forma adjustment to arbitrarily reduce
PWEC A&G by $11,618,000 based on the argument that some prior year costs
should be a consideration for reduction in costs in this rate case. Decision No.
67744 specifically ordered APS to rate base the units at December 31, 2004, at
$700,000,000. The order to rate base the generating units did not include any
requirements for or limitations on operating expenses. Additionally, it should be
noted that the Company has proposed a reduction in operating expenses of
$5,098,000 for PWEC Units A&G out-of-period adjustments, which effectively
reduces Mr. Higgins’ recommended adjustment of $11,618,000 to $6,520,000.
These A&G adjustments are discussed later in my testimony and included as

Attachment LLR-4-8RB.

B. Nuclear Plant Decommissioning

RUCO PROPOSED A $765,000 REDUCTION IN OPERATING EXPENSES |
FOR DECOMMISSIONING. DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS
ADJUSTMENT?
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No. During the Test Year, the Company funded $16,093,000 into the
decommissioning trusts. Since the decommissioning trusts are funded for both
plant decommissioning costs and post-shutdown spent nuclear fuel storage costs,
the Test Year operating expenses include $15,328,000 in depreciation expense for
decommissioning funding and $765,000 in fuel expense for post-shutdown spent
nuclear fuel storage funding. RUCO’s proposed adjustment did not include the
$765,000 in nuclear fuel expense for funding the post-shutdown spent nuclear fuel

storage costs.

C.  Spent Fuel Storage

STAFF HAS PROPOSED AN ADJUSTMENT TO SPENT NUCLEAR
FUEL STORAGE EXPENSE. DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS
RECOMMENDATION?

Yes. A pro forma adjustment of $264,000 is included in SFR Schedule C-2 to
reduce the ongoing spent nuclear fuel storage expense. See Attachment LLR-4-
3RB.

D.  Depreciation and Amortization

HAVE ANY OF THE PARTIES’ TAKEN THE POSTION THAT THE
COMPANY’S DEPRECIATION RATES PROPOSED IN THIS CASE ARE
DIFFERENT THAN THOSE AUTHORIZED IN COMMISSION
DECISION NO. 67744?

No. In fact, Staff witness Smith acknowledged that the depreciation rates
proposed by APS were developed in a manner that is consistent to the depreciation
rates that the Commission approved in Decision No. 67744 and recommended that

those rates be adopted.

HAVE YOU REVIEWED THE TESTIMONY PROVIDED BY RUCO
REGARDING AMORTIZATION EXPENSE?

-17-
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Yes. Ms. Diaz Cortez objected to the Company pro forma increasing amortization
expense by $10,002,000 without the Company performing a study of the general
and intangible assets. Ms. Diaz Cortez proposed an operating expense reduction

of $6,991,000 based on her analysis.

WHAT ANALYSIS DID MS. DIAZ CORTEZ PERFORM TO
CALCULATE HER ADJUSTMENT TO AMORTIZATION EXPENSE?

The composite rate appears to have been calculated by taking amortization
expense for the twelve months ended September 30, 2005, and dividing that
amount by the original cost plant balance at September 30, 2005. That composite
rate multiplied by the increase in the original cost plant balances during the Test
Year, increased amortization expense by $3,011,000. The pro forma adjustment

proposed by RUCO reduces the increase in amortization expense to that level.

WHAT OBSERVATIONS DID YOU MAKE REGARDING THE
METHODOLOGY USED BY MS. DIAZ CORTEZ IN HER PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENT CALCULATION?

Her calculation methodology does not have sufficient analysis or detail to properly
normalize amortization expense. The method is a high level general estimating
process that may be appropriate to use when the assets all have similar estimated
useful lives. However, because the Company’s intangible assets have a wide
range of estimated useful lives, and because each asset is individually amortized,

the calculation cannot properly normalize amortization expense.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE METHODOLOGY USED IN PREPARING THE
COMPANY PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT FOR AMORTIZATION
EXPENSE.

The pro forma adjustment proposed by the Company used a more precise method

to calculate amortization expense.  The calculation was based on the actual
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individual asset costs and lives at September 30, 2005, multiplied by the actual
amortization rates for each individual asset. By using the actual assets at
September 30, 2005, the calculation would exclude recent retirements and include
recent additions for a full year calculation of amortization expense. Fully
amortized assets were properly excluded from the calculation. The amortization
rates in effect today were approved by the Commission in Decision No. 67744.
The pro forma adjustment is the difference between the normalized annual
amortization expense and the actual test year amortization expense. This
calculation method was consistently used by the Company in the last rate case
filing and has not been objected to by any party in that case or by Staff in this

case.

HAVE YOU PERFORMED ANY ADDITIONAL REVIEWS OF
AMORTIZATION EXPENSE SINCE THE END OF THE TEST YEAR?

Yes. For the period of time from the end of the Test Year, September 30, 2005
through June 30, 2006, the General and Intangible Assets have increased from
$371 million to $387 million. At June 30, 2006, the annualized level of
amortization expense is $45.3 million which exceeds the normalized pro forma

adjustment proposed by the Company in its January Filing by $6.6 million.

IS THE COMPANY REQUESTING ANY CHANGES TO ITS EXISTING
AMORTIZATION RATES?

No. As I discussed in my Direct Testimony, APS is not requesting any change to
the amortization rates authorized in Decision No. 67744. These rates are set forth

on Attachment LLR-2-11.

IS THE COMPANY REQUESTING ANY NEW AMORTIZATION
RATES?
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Yes. APS is requesting two new rates which I discussed in my Direct Testimony.
No parties have objected to these rates. These rates are also set forth on

Attachment LLR-2-11.

E. Property Taxes

DID YOU REVIEW. THE STAFF AND RUCO TESTIMONY FOR
PROPERTY TAXES?

Yes. Mr. Dittmer proposed an adjustment to reduce property taxes by $1,708,000
to eliminate the APS proposed inclusion of the 2007 statutory phase-in of
increased property taxes associated with the PWEC Units. Additionally, Mr.
Rigsby proposed an adjustment to reduce property taxes by $5,977,000 to reflect
the temporary suspension of the County Education Tax Rate provided by H.B.
2876.

CAN APS ACCEPT STAFF’S PROPERTY TAX RECOMMENDATION
FOR THE TEST YEAR?

Yes. A $1,708,000 pro forma adjustment is included in SFR Schedule C-2 to
reduce operating expenses for property taxes. See Attachment LLR-4-4RB.

DO YOU AGREE WITH THE ADJUSTMENTS THAT RUCO
PROPOSED? '

No. The adjustment proposed by Mr. Rigsby only took into consideration the
impact of the temporary suspension of the County Education Tax Rate for 2006.
The suspension of the County Education Tax Rate will reduce property taxes in
2006, 2007 and 2008. There are other significant issues that will also impact
property taxes that Mr. Rigsby did not take into consideration. The Arizona
Department of Revenue has approved the 2007 assessed value, which is based on

APS plant balances at December 31, 2005, and has recently approved the
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Company’s request to reduce the 2007 assessed value for the PWEC Units
regulatory disallowance reflected in Company records that was discussed in my
Direct Testimony. The assessed value of the property, and thus the calculation of
the impact on the property taxes for the suspension of the County Education Tax
Rate, should appropriately consider these known and measurable net increases in
the 2007 assessed value. The Company is now opposed to this pro forma
adjustment because these net increases in assessed valuation, which are known and

measurable, were not factored into the analysis performed by Mr. Rigsby. If all of

these factors were considered at the time Mr. Rigsby proposed his adjustment, Mr.

Rigsby’s adjustment would fall to $2.4 million, rather than $6 million. In
addition, the $2.4 million reduction would also encompass Staff’s proposed
adjustment for the 2007 generation phase-in costs, which we have not opposed.

They are not additive.

F. Payroll

BOTH STAFF AND RUCO HAVE PROPOSED CHANGES TO
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION. WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO
THESE PROPOSED CHANGES?

In his Rebuttal Testimony, Mr. Wheeler explains why the Company disagrees with
both Staff’s proposal to disallow stock-based incentive compensation and RUCO’s
proposal that the Commission order an overall 20% reduction in incentive pay for

all employees.

WHAT IS THE COMPANY’S RESPONSE TO RUCO’S
RECOMMENDATION THAT THE SUPPLEMENTAL EXCESS BENEFIT
RETIREMENT PLAN (“SEBRP”) COSTS BE DISALLOWED?

The Company disagrees with RUCO’s position on SEBRP. Mr. Brandt explains

the Company’s position in his Rebuttal Testimony.
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HAVE YOU REVIEWED THE STAFF TESTIMONY ON PENSION
EXPENSE?

Yes. Mr. Dittmer recommended increasing operating expenses by $8,155,000 for
pension expense. His analysis was based on the level of estimated pension
expense that the Company was recording in 2006, in excess of the pension
expense recorded in the Test Year. In his testimony, Mr. Dittmer also noted that
this estimate will need to be adjusted to actual costs in 2006 when the actual costs

are known.

HAS THE COMPANY RECENTLY RECEIVED ACTUARIAL
INFORMATION THAT PROVIDES THE ACTUAL 2006 PENSION
EXPENSE?

Yes. The Company has received updated actuarial information for 2006, although
the final report has not yet been issued. The actuarially calculated number is
higher than last year and indicates that the Test Year expense should be increased
by $2,249,000. A pro forma adjustment of $2,249,000 is included to increase
pension expense based on the updated actuarial information. See Attachment

LLR-4-5RB.

HAVE YOU REVIEWED THE STAFF TESTIMONY FOR POST
RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS? '

Yes. Similar to pension expense, Mr. Dittmer recommended an increase in
operating expenses of $2,038,000, which is based on the actuarial estimates that
the Company is relying on to record 2006 post retirement benefit costs in excess of
the level of costs recorded in the Test Year. Mr. Dittmer also noted that his
estimate will need to be adjusted to actual costs when the final information is

available.
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DID THE ACTUARIAL INFORMATION RECENTLY RECEIVED BY
THE COMPANY INCLUDE THE ACTUAL 2006 POST RETIREMENT
MEDICAL BENEFITS?

Yes. The updated actuarial information indicates that the Test Year expense
should be decreased by $3,191,000. A pro forma adjustment of $3,191,000 is
included to decrease post retirement medical benefits expense based on the

updated actuarial information. See Attachment LLR-4-6RB.

G. Underfunded Pension Liability

STAFF, RUCO AND AECC HAVE ALL RECOMMENDED THAT THE
COMMISSION DENY THE COMPANY’S REQUEST TO ACCELERATE
THE RECOVERY OF ITS UNDERFUNDED PENSION LIABILITY OVER
A FIVE-YEAR PERIOD BEGINNING IN 2007. WHAT IS THE
COMPANY’S RESPONSE TO THESE RECOMMENDATIONS?

Mr. Brandt explains why the Company opposes these recommendations in his

Rebuttal Testimony.

H.  Advertising

STAFF PROPOSED PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS FOR ADVERTISING
COSTS. PLEASE DISCUSS THESE ADJUSTMENTS.

In his testimony, Mr. Dittmer identified marketing and sponsorship costs totaling

$437,000, which the Company has agreed to exclude from operating expenses.

RUCO ALSO PROPOSED PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS FOR
ADVERTISING COSTS. PLEASE DISCUSS THESE ADJUSTMENTS.

Ms. Diaz Cortez proposed adjustments totaling $566,000 for sponsorships and
other expenses that she deemed were not needed to provide electric service. Mr.
Rigsby proposed an adjustment for $4,625.00 to remove promotional advertising

that he believes is similar to branding advertising.
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DO YOU AGREE WITH THE ADJUSTMENTS PROPOSED BY MS. DIAZ
CORTEZ?

I agree with $66,000 of the proposed $566,000 adjustment. The $100,000 Dodge
Theatre expense was included in the operating adjustment for advertising costs
that Staff has proposed and the Company has already accepted. Ms. Diaz Cortez
has also proposed a $400,000 adjustment to reduce operating expenses for
busin;ss lunches. Business lﬁnches are provided by the Company when
employees are expected to continue to work during their personal lunch break.
We believe these are legitimate business expenses that provide the Company the
benefit of additional productive non-interrupted, non-paid work time from our
employees. For these reasons, the Company does not agree with Ms. Diaz

Cortez’s recommendation to reduce operating expenses for these lunches.

WHAT ADVERTISING COSTS PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT IS THE
COMPANY PROPOSING?

The Company is not opposed to Mr. Dittmer’s $437,000 adjustment, $66,000 of
Ms. Diaz Cortez’s adjustment and Mr. Rigsby’s $4,625.00 adjustment. An
operating income adjustment of $508,000 is proposed to remove these costs from

the Test Year Operations. See Attachment LLR—4-7RB.

L Lobbying

DO YOU AGREE WITH THE STAFF POSITION THAT LOBBYING
EXPENSES SHOULD BE RECORDED IN ACCOUNT NO. 426.4?

We agree that lobbying expenses should be recorded in Account No. 426.4.

FERC’s instructions for Account 426.4 state:
This account shall include expenditures for the purpose of influencing

public opinion with respect to the election or appointment of public
officials, referenda, legislation, or ordinances (either with respect to the
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possible adoption of new referenda, legislation or ordinances or repeal or
modification of existing referenda, legislation or ordinances) or approval,
modification, or revocation of franchises; or for the purpose of influencing
the decisions of public officials, but shall not include such expenditures
which _are directly related to appearances before regulatory or other
governmental bodies _in connection with the reporting utility’s existing or
proposed operations. [Emphasis added.]

DO THE FERC INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDE ANY ADDITIONAL
GUIDANCE ON CHARGING PRACTICES FOR ACCOUNT NO. 426.4?

The FERC Instruction states that “the classification of expenses as non-operating
and their inclusion in these accounts is for accounting purposes. It -does not
preclude Commission consideration of proof to the contrary for ratemaking or

other purposes.”

FERC ACKNOWLEDGES THAT LOBBYING COSTS CHARGED TO
FERC ACCOUNT 426.4 MAY BE CONSIDERED FOR RATE MAKING
PURPOSES. DOES THE COMPANY BELIEVE THAT LOBBYING
COSTS INCLUDED IN TEST YEAR OPERATING EXPENSES BENEFIT
THE RATEPAYER?

Yes. Mr. Wheeler discusses the benefits of lobbying costs to the ratepayers and
the appropriate inclusion of lobbying costs in operating expenses for ratemaking

purposes in his Rebuttal Testimony.

J Other Administrative and General Adjustments

STAFF AND RUCO TESTIMONY PROPOSED PRO FORMA
ADJUSTMENTS FOR OUT-OF-PERIOD EXPENSES INCLUDED IN THE
TEST YEAR. PLEASE DISCUSS THESE ADJUSTMENTS.

Staff testimony by Mr. Dittmer identified $8,419,000 in out-of-period adjustments
related to depreciation and rent expense. The $8,419,000 includes $5,098,000 in
out-of-period adjustments for the PWEC Units. Ms. Diaz Cortez also identified
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these depreciation and rent out-of-period costs, which are included in the amounts
identified by Mr. Dittmer. Additionally, Mr. Dittmer identified $101,000 in legal
costs related to the sale of the Silverhawk generating plant, which he
recommended be removed from operating expenses. The Company does not
oppose these pro forma adjustments totaling $8,520,000, which reduce operating
expenses for out-of-period and legal administrative and general expenses. See

Attachment LLLR-4-8RB.

LIBERTY CONSULTING GROUP FUEL AUDIT

THE STAFF’S FUEL AUDIT REPORT CONTAINS A CONCLUSION AND
A RECOMMENDATION REGARDING ACCOUNTING FOR
SUPPLEMENTAL FUEL CHARGES AND REFUNDS. PLEASE
IDENTIFY THIS CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION.

The Fuel Audit Report “Conclusion” section on page 140 states, “A review of
APS handling of supplemental fuel charges and refunds have been accounted for
in the PSA [Power Supply Adjustor] when applicable; the accounting methods are
not consistent for purposes of recording refunds, but the inconsistency has not had
a material impact on the PSA”. The related “Recommendation™ section on page
13 states that APS should, “Closely review and monitor adjustments to fuel costs
to assure that supplemental charges and refunds appropriately consider the impact

on inventory values and fuel expenses for financial reporting purposes.”

WHAT ARE THE ACCOUNTING TRANSACTIONS REFERENCED IN
THESE SECTIONS OF THE FUEL AUDIT REPORT?

Staff’s consultant reviewed three transactions related to railroad transportation
charges for coal delivery. These charges included a refund settlement and
retroactive rate reductions that were negotiated as part of a long term agreement.

The Fuel Audit Report noted that two of the three transactions properly allocated
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costs to both fuel expense and inventory based on the period of time that the
adjustment related to. The third and final adjustment was charged to fuel expense.
The Fuel Audit Report asserts that a portion of the adjustment related to the period
of September 2005 thru December 2005 should have been allocated to inventory.

DO YOU AGREE?

In retrospect, yes. The final settlement was signed on January 10, 2006, and was
related to the period of September 2005 through December 2005. When the entry
was made for the January 2005 financial statements, the assumption was that the

actual inventory turn dpproximated the targeted inventory turn of 25 days, or

~ would be close enough to reasonably record the entire amount as fuel expense for

the month of January. Actually the inventory turn was about 45-60 days and the
refund attributed to the month of December would have been more accurately
allocated to inventory and not expensed in January. The refund attributed to
December would flow through the inventory charged to fuel expense, and, thus,

the PSA in February 2006.

HOW DID THIS IMPACT THE PSA?
As noted by Staff’s consultant, the only impact would be the amount of time it

would have taken the costs to flow through the PSA. In this case, the costs would
have flowed through the PSA in the following month. The Fuel Audit Report
specifically states that this did not materially impact the PSA.

WERE THESE TRANSACTIONS MONITORED AND REVIEWED AT
THE TIME THE ENTRIES WERE RECORDED FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING PURPOSES?

Yes. This transaction was reviewed and approved at the time it was made.
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Consideration was given to recording a portion of the entry to inventory and a
judgment call was made at the time not to do so. As noted above, the amounts that
should have been allocated to inventory were not material and did properly flow

through the PSA account within 30 days.

OFFSETS TO FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF PARTIES’ RECOMMENDATIONS
A. Plant-In-Service

HAVE YOU CALCULATED THE VALUE FOR THE ADDITIONAL
PLANT-IN-SERVICE DISCUSSED IN MR. WHEELER’S REBUTTAL
TESTIMONY?

Yes. The additional Plant-in-Service is $572,058,000.

HOW DID YOU CALCULATE THE VALUE OF THE ADDITIONAL
PLANT-IN-SERVICE?

The additional Plant-in-Service of $572,058,000 consists of both actual transfers

to Plant-in-Service subsequent to September 30, 2005, and projected transfers to
Plant-in-Service through December 31, 2006. This includes $395,634,000 in
actual additions to Plant, net of actual retirements, for the period of October 1,
2005, through July 31, 2006. This also includes $176,424,000 of 'projected
additions to Plant, net of estimated retirements, for the period of August 1, 2006,
through December 31, 2006.

HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE INCREMENTAL RATE OF RETURN
THAT APPLIES TO THE ADDITIONAL PLANT-IN-SERVICE?

The incremental rate of return calculated to be 3.0% which is the difference
between the 11.5% requested return on equity and the 8.5% projected return on
equity at December 31, 2006.

18864152
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WHAT IS THE RESULTING REVENUE REQUIREMENT FOR THE
ADDITIONAL PLANT-IN-SERVICE?

The calculated revenue requirement at an 11.5% return on equity for the additional

plant-in-service is $13,480,000. See Attachment LLR-5-1RB.

IF YOU UPDATE PLANT THROUGH YEAR-END 2006, DON'T YOU
HAVE TO UPDATE OTHER COSTS AND REVENUES?

No. The 2006 return on equity of 8.5% already reflects the net impact of these
other rate-making elements. By calculating only the incremental re&enue
requirements for this plant, we have implicitly synchronized the adjustment with
related costs and revenues. If anything, this is conservative because, as can be
seen by Mr. Brandt’s Rebuttal Testimony, the Company’s return on equity
continues to decline in 2007 and 2008.

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED

DOES THE COMPANY BELIEVE THAT THE COMMISSION NEEDS TO
TAKE ANY FURTHER ACTION REGARDING THE APPROVAL OF
DEPRECIATION RATES?

For purposes of clarity and transparency, we are requesting that the Commission
formally authorize and approve, as it has in prior cases, the depreciation rates
developed by Dr. White and included in his Direct Testimony as Attachments
REW-1 and REW-2.

IS THE COMPANY REQUESTING THAT THE COMMISSION TAKE
ANY FURTHER ACTIONS REGARDING AMORTIZATION RATES?

Yes. As I stated in my Direct Testimony, the Company is not requesting any
changes to the amortization rates authorized in Decision No. 67744. The

Company is requesting that the Commission formally authorize the continued use
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of the amortization rates that are currently in effect and approve two new
amortization rates. The two new rates provide for the amortization of leased
vehicles that are purchased by the Company at the end of the lease term. The
Company is requesting a 50% amortization rate for vehicles with a Gross Vehicle
Weight (“GVW™) under 26,000 pounds and a 20% amortization rate for vehicles
with a GVW greater than 26,000 pounds. The rates reflect what we believe will
be the estimated useful lives for such vehicles. No party has objected to these
rates. We are requesting that the Commission include Attachment LLR-2-11, the
Amortization Rate Summary, as part of its final order.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE COMMISSION ACTION THAT THE
COMPANY REQUESTED IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY RELATED
TO DECOMMISSIONING AND SPENT FUEL STORAGE EXPENSE.

In my Direct Testimony, the Company requested that the Commission’s Decision
in this docket specifically provide for approval of the annual level of
decommissioning funding and Spent Fuel Storage costs, as set forth in Attachment
LLR-3, as well as the amortization of the Spent Fuel Cost regulatory asset
included in Attachment LLR-2-2. Aftachment LLR-3 should be attached to any

Commission Decision accepting these amounts.

CONCLUSION )
DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
Yes.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY : LLR-1-1RB
COMPUTATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL Page 1.0f 3
Revised Schedule B-5
TEST YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

REVISED
: REBUTTAL AS FILED
LINE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT ©  INC/(DEG)
1 WORKING CAPITAL - OPERATIONS (34,157,681)  (29,138,588)  (5,019,083)
2 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES™ 106,426,822 106,426,822 0A
3 FUEL- COAL AND OIL 25,452,192 25,452,192 0B
4  FUEL - NUCLEAR, NET 59,888,780 59,888,780 0C
5  PREPAYMENTS 5,517,425 5,517,425 a
6 ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL 163,127,538 168,146,621 (5,019,083)
Note ™ Materials and Supplies include FERC 154 & 156
A+B+C= 191,767,794 191,767,794 . 0

SUMMARY OF ACCEPTED CHANGES

REVENUE LAG (427 493)

PURCHASED POWER 2,691,284 -

PV LEASE (7,139,392)

STATE TAXLAG - (143,482)

TOTAL (5,019,083)



ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
CASH WORKING CAPITAL SUMMARY - LEAD LAG STUDY
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

LLR-1-1RB
Page 2 of 3

WORKING
CAPITAL
REQUIREMENT
LINE ) DESCRIPTION (SOURCE)
1 CASH REQUIRED FOR {PROVIDED BY) OPERATING EXPENSES (34,391,952)
2 SPECIAL DEPOSITS AND WORKING FUNDS 234,271

3 NETCASH WORKING CAPITAL REQUIRED FOR (PROVIDED BY) OPERATIONS

(34,157,681)
B



ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

LLR-1-1RB

CASH WORKING CAPITAL REQUIRED FOR OPERATING EXPENSES - LEAD LAG STUDY Page 3 of3
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
REBUTTAL - REVISED
L REVENUE  EXPENSE NET WORKING
; LAG LAG LAG cwe CAPITAL
LINE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT DAYS DAYS DAYS FACTOR _ REQUIREMENT
. (1) (2) 3) @ () ®)
1 FUEL FOR ELECTRIC GENERATION:
2 COAL 200,856,342 3236664  4.48567 0.01229 2,468,524
3 NATURAL GAS 237,557,927 3685231 4425857  -7.40626 -0.02029 (4.820,050)
4 FUELOWL 1,077,082 36.85231 3234060 451171 0.01236 13313
5 NUCLEAR:
6 AMORTIZATION 34445413 36.85231 000000  35.85231 0.10057 3,477,953
7 SPENTFUEL 7,336,099 36.85231  76.35359 -39.50128 -0.10822 (793,913
8 TOTAL NUCLEAR FUEL 21,761,512 2,684,040
9
10 TOTAL FUEL 481,272,863 345827
it
12 PURCHASED POWER '36.85231 3815020  -1.26789 -0.00356 {1.631,001)
13 TRANSMISSION BY OTHERS 14,391,245 3685231 3369389  3.15842 0.00865 124,484
14 TOTAL PURCHASED POWER & TRANSMISSION 472,537,541 (1,506,517)
15
16 TOTAL FUEL AND PURGHASED POWER 553,810,404 (1,160,690)
17
18 OTHER OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE:
19 PAYROLL 240,714,447 3685231 1500192  21.85039 0.05986 14,400,167
20 INCENTIVE 8,653,091 36.85231  214.50000 -177.64769 -0.48671 (4.211,546)
21 PENSION AND OPEB 38,986,000 36585231 7771371 -40.86140 0.11195 (4,364,483)
22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 26,995,515 36.85231 2035895  16.49336 0.04519 1,218,927
23 PAYROLL TAXES 18,118,131 36.85231 2178589  15.06642 0.04128 747916
24 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 53,466,114 36.85231 2422000  12.63231 0.03461 1,850,462
25 FRANCHISE PAYMENTS 11,986,402 3685231 5283966 -1558735 -0.04380 (525,004)
26 VEHICLE LEASE PAYMENTS 3,169,771 36.85231 743789  29.41442 0.08059 255,452
27 RENTS 6,776,038 3685231 3348601  70.33832 0.19271 1,305,810
28 PALO VERDE LEASE 45,900,681 36.85231 -67.14195 -0.18395 (8.443.430)
29 PALO VERDE S/L GAIN AMORT (4.575722) 36.85231 000000  36.85231 0.10067 (462,011)
30 INSURANCE 4,639,562 36.85231 000000  36.85231 0.10097 468,457
31 OTHER 119,131,871 3685231 3539000  1.46231 0.00401 477.719
32 TOTAL 573,962,000 2,726,436
L 33 —
34 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 121,525,565 36.85231 000000 3685231 0.10087 32464436
35 AMORT OF ELECTRIC PLT ACQ ADd 0 36.85231 000000 3685231 0.10097 0
36 AMORT OF PROP LOSSES & REG STUDY COST. (2,564,492)  36.85231 000000 3685231 0.10087 (258,837
37 TOTAL : 318,961,073 32,205,459
38 - —_—
39 INCOME TAXES:
40 CURRENT:
41 FEDERAL 59,824,326 3885231  58.95000 -22.09769 -0.06054 (3.621,765)
42 STATE 16,379,288 36.85231 -25.19769 0.06903 {1.130,662)
43 DEFERRED 77,758,889 36.85231 G.00000  36.85231 0.10097 7,851,315
44 TOTAL 153,962,503 3,098,858
45
46 OTHER TAXES:
47 PROPERTY TAXES 123,403,653 3685231  211.84223 -17508992 047970  (59,196,732)
48 SALES TAXES 158,240,555 1869615, 4021000 -23.51385 -0.06442  (10,193857)
49 FRANCHISE TAXES 18,920,381 16.69615  52.83966 -36.14352 -0.08902 (1,873,496)
50 TOTAL OTHER TAXES 300,564,589 (71,264,085
59 -
52 TOTAL 2,301.260.560 (34,391,652)
. Revenue Lag All
SUMMARY OF ACCEPTED CHANGES Change Only Other Total
REVENUE LAG (427.493) 0 (427.493)
PURCHASED POWER (354,718) 3045000 2,691,284
PV LEASE (11,935)  (7127.457)  (7,138,392)
STATE TAXLAG (4.422)  (139,060)  (143482)
Total (798.566)  (4.220,517)  (5.019,083)
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REJOINDER TESTIMONY OF LAURA L. ROCKENBERGER
ON BEHALF OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0816)

(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0826)

(Docket No. E-01345A-05-0827)

INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, ADDRESS AND OCCUPATION.
My name is Laura L. Rockenberger. My business address is 400 North Fifth Street,

Phoenix, Arizona, 85004. 1 am the Manager of Operations Accounting for Arizona

Public Service Company (“APS” or “Company”).

HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY FILED DIRECT AND REBUTTAL TESTIMONY IN
THIS PROCEEDING?

Yes.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REJOINDER TESTIMONY?
I will respond to the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mary Lee Diaz Cortez regarding

decommissioning costs and amortization and the Surrebuttal Testimony of William A.
Rigsby regarding property taxes.
DOES YOUR SILENCE REGARDING ANY OF THE OTHER ISSUES

DISCUSSED BY MARY LEE DIAZ CORTEZ OR WILLIAM A. RIGSBY
INDICATE AN ACCEPTANCE OF THOSE POSITIONS BY THE COMPANY?

No. It does not.

DOES YOUR SILENCE REGARDING ANY ISSUES DISCUSSED BY ANY
OTHER PARTY INDICATE AN ACCEPTANCE OF THOSE POSITIONS BY
THE COMPANY?

No. It does not.

SUMMARY
WOULD YOU PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR REJOINDER TESTIMONY?

-1-
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My testimony provides additional information to demonstrate that the amounts funded
into the Decommissioning Trusts are reflected as expenses in the Test Year and provides
supplemental information on amortization and property taxes to support the Company’s

position on these matters.

DECOMMISSIONING

DOES THE CASH FUNDING INTO THE DECOMMISSIONING TRUSTS
EXCEED THE TEST YEAR EXPENSES, AS STATED IN THE SURREBUTTAL
TESTIMONY OF MS. DIAZ CORTEZ?

No, it does not. The cash funding corresponds to the Test Year expense.

HAVE YOU PREPARED AN ANALYSIS THAT IDENTIFIES THE TEST YEAR
EXPENSES THAT PROVIDE FOR THE FUNDING LEVEL INTO THE
DECOMMISSIONING TRUSTS?

Yes. Attachment LLR-1-1RJ provides the analysis that demonstrates the total cash
funding of $16.1 million consists of $15.3 million in depreciation expense for funding of
plant decommissioning activities and $.8 million in fuel expense for funding of post-

shutdown spent nuclear fuel costs.

DOES THE DECOMMISSIONING STUDY INCLUDE COSTS FOR BOTH
DECOMMISSIONING ACTIVITIES AND POST-SHUTDOWN SPENT
NUCLEAR FUEL ACTIVITIES?

Yes, the decommissioning study includes costs for both plant decommissioning activities
and post-shutdown spent nuclear fuel activities. The funding levels have been approved
by the Commission in Decision No. 67744 and the Company has Private Letter Rulings
from the Internal Revenue Service for funding the decommissioning trusts based on the

costs included in the decommissioning study.

AMORTIZATION

MS. DIAZ CORTEZ STATED THAT THE COMPANY WAS NOT
RESPONSIVE TO RUCO DATA REQUEST 11.4 AND, AS SUCH, THE
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COMPANY HAS NOT SUBSTANTIATED ITS PROPOSED AMORTIZATION
EXPENSE. DID THE COMPANY RESPOND TO RUCO DATA REQUEST 11.4?

Yes. The Company provided. a response to RUCO Data Request 11.4 (“RUCO 11.4%)
on July 21, 2006, which included detailed information by asset type within each asset
category with the related monthly amortization expense and annualized amounts.
Additionally, the amortization rates were included in my Direct Testimony as
Attachment LILR-2-11. No further data requests were received from Ms. Diaz Cortez

stating that further information was needed related to RUCO 11 4.

HAS THE COMPANY PROVIDED ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR RUCO
11.4? ‘

Yes. On October 3, 2006, the Company provided supplemental information to RUCO

11.4 to provide further support for the calculations included in the Test Year expense.

PROPERTY TAXES

MR. RIGSBY STATED IN HIS TESTIMONY THAT THE COMPANY HAS NOT
UPDATED RUCO DATA REQUEST 11.2 (“RUCO 11.2”), AND, AS SUCH THE
COMPANY HAS NOT PROVIDED SUFFICENT INFORMATION TO
SUBSTANTIATE THE 2007 PROPERTY TAX EXPENSE CALCULATION
REFERENCED IN MY REBUTTAL TESTIMONY. HAVE YOU SINCE
UPDATED DATA REQUEST 11.2?

Yes. RUCO. 11.2 has been updated to provide supplemental information to support the
2007 property tax calculations included in my Rebuttal Testimony and related work

papers. This information was provided to RUCO on October 3, 2006.

IN HIS SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY, MR. RIGSBY STATED THAT HE
DOES NOT SUPPORT USING 2007 DATA IN THE TEST YEAR. CAN YOU
EXPLAIN WHY YOU SUPPORT USING THE 2007 DATA IN CALCULATING
THE TEST YEAR EXPENSE?

The 2007 prdperty tax expense calculation is based on historical Plant-in-Service general
ledger plant balances at December 31, 2005 which are both known and measurable.

Assuming that the rates from this proceeding will go into effect in 2007, it seems logical
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that the Test Year expense should be based on projected 2007 pfoperty taxes to ensure

the regulated rates provide for our 2007 property tax expense.

CONCLUSION

DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR REJOINDER TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

Yes.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
Comparison of Projected Construction Expenditures per Customer to Test
Year Plant in Service Investment per Customer

Exhibit Description: This exhibit presents a comparison of the additional plant
investment per customer with the test year plant in service per customer. This
analysis shows that projected construction expenditures per new customer of 20.6
thousand dollars is significantly greater than the investment per existing customer of
10.9 thousand doliars that is reflected in current retail rates.

Projected
Construction
Expenditures ' Test Year
2007 - 2008 Plant in Service 2
(Thousands) (Thousands)
Plant Investment *
Production b3 660,000 $ 5,645,000
Transmission $ 449,000 $ 1,352,000
Distribution $ 711,000 $ 3,821,000
Total $ 1,820,000 $ 10,818,000
Projected
Construction
Expenditures Test Year
Per Customer Plant in Service
2007 - 2008 Per Customer
(Thousands) (Thousands)
Investment per Customer
Production $ 7.5 $ 5.7
Transmission 5 5.1 $ 14
Distribution 3 8.0 $ 3.8
Total $ 206 * $ 10.9 °

' From APS Exhibit 27.

2 From APS witness Rumolo DJR_WP1.

3 General Plant investment was allocated on a proportional basis to Production,
Transmission and Distribution.

* Based upon projected 2007-2008 new customer growth of 88,418 customers.

® Based on 996,687 customers. This is the test year ending Sept. 05 average
number of customers from APS S.F.R Scheduie H-2.

EXHIBIT
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Summary of Price Elasticity Estimates

The attached table summarizes the estimates of the price elasticity of retail demand for electricity available to
APS from published industry sources or from APS’ own analyses or models.

Each of these studies was similar in purpose, which was to estimate the change in electricity consumption due to
a change in the price of electricity. However, the studies differed in design between the following categories:

* Aggregate models — uses average price and average usage levels aggregated across groups of
customers over time to estimate the relationship between price and consumption;

* Disaggregate models — uses actual prices and usage levels at the household level over time to estimate
the relationship between price and consumption; and

* Fuel Substitution models — uses prices of competing fuels, as well as the price of electricity, to
estimate the relationship between price and electricity consumption over time.

In general, the elasticity estimates confirm that electricity demand is relatively inelastic. In other words, the
absolute value of the coefficient of elasticity is less than 1.0, meaning that a 1% change in price results in
something less than a 1% change in electricity consumption.

Additionally, nearly all reported price elasticity estimates have a negative coefficient, meaning that
consumption of electricity declines as the price increases and vice-versa. Price and consumption are therefore
considered to be inversely related.

The short-run elasticity estimates from the industry studies summarized in the table tend to fall between -0.1
and -0.4. APS’ own estimates of price elasticity tend to be slightly lower than many of those reported in the
industry, but the industry estimates also span a fairly broad range and the APS estimates are contained within
that range.

———
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SUMMARY OF PRICE ELASTICITY ESTIMATES

Price Elasticity Estimates
Short-Run* ! Long-Run*
# of Dates Average Average
Studies Published Low High Point Est. Lo High Point Est,
INDUSTRY STUDIES
Residential Customers v
1. Aggregated Models 16 1962-1993 0.57 -0.80 -0.21 -0.81 -1.66 -0.97
2. Fuel Substitution Models 4 1974-1978 -0.18 -0.54 -0.25 -0.72 -2.10 -0.99
3. Disaggregated models 9 1970-1993 0.04 -1.08 -0.39 -0.45 -2.33 -0.99
Commercial Customers . 10 1973-1993 0.00 -1.18 -0.33 -0.56 -1.60 -0.93
Industrial Customers 9 1973-1992 -0.14 -0.97
Average
Low High Point Est.
APS ANALYSES / MODELS
Residential Customers -0.06 -0.35 -0.19
Commercial Customers -0.09 -0.20 -0.15

* Short-run elasticity captures behavioral response within 1st year; Long-run elasticity is over multiple years to permit appliance replacement and fue! switching.



LigIHX3

‘gseaiou Juawalnbas anuaAal Jso3 jeutbiio [euoidipsunl DOV 000'SSE 0SS B UC Paseq paaLsp dlam sabieyd asayl UoHBNIIED SIU) 10} pash Sem UAMM/YLLO0'$ Jo @BJeuyd “Ipy dIMO V ¢
‘sjutod SISBQ OGE 40} 000'GEZ' L6814 pue spiod siseq 0/ | 10 8SEaIOU) JuBWBIINDAI anuaAal 1503 jeuibuo jeuondipsun{
D0V 000'6v¥'99% B UO Paseq paAuap aiam sabieyd asayl -UONBIND|ed SIU} 10} PasN aiem UMM/81S00"$ J0 8bieyo “[py uoniiy julod s1Seq 0G¢ & pUB UMMY/LSZ00°$ 40 abieyd “Ipy UoRNY Julod SiSeq 0LL WV 2

"$89) 8S|UOUEY PUB DOHD ‘SdT ‘9BIBUING YSd UMM/PSS000'$ J0ISNIpY Walu) wSd UAMMN/Z00'$ '8lel J0isnlpy vSd UMX/Y00'$ ‘sabieyd aseq ay) apnjoul umoys sjunowse jig Aguo
[BIOL 3Y1 UMY 008 Je S1oedu) sjel pajsenbal Jeuy 18)8| 900Z ‘Z 1990100 SBARI UOISSIUWOY 0} 8suodsal 9002 ‘6 19G0I00 .SdV Woy O uwnjed ‘v Xipuaddy uo UMOUS Se Sajes JUsLND uo Iig AiYILo [e1o] |

16°0 $ 160 $ 16°0 $ 160 $ ¢ Juauisnipy dIMO
1497 $ vy $ 102 $ 10¢ $ LJuawisnipy uonuny
0L'LL $ 0516 $ 0L'LL $ 0516 $ , S8jey (90 Aejy) yuaung uo g Alyjuon
008 008 008 008 UMY Ao s Jawolsny
sejey Z|-3 B sajey g} -3 Jswwng sajey Z|-3 JOIUIM sajey z|-3 Jewuwng
[ Tov dimo pue oy uoplyjuiod siseg 0s¢ | [ TPV dimO pue Tpy uonupy juiod siseq 021 |
(p) () (@) (2)
Jawoysny [enuspisay Z1-3 9|npeyss 8jey uo sjusunsnipy UORLINY pue dIMD jo 3oedu |ig
ANVJINOD FOIAYIS O118Nd YNOZINY
Z Jo | ebied

9002/¢/1 | paywgnsg
29 Hayx3 sdv

~

o

- o



APS Exhibit 62
Submitted 11/3/2006

Page 2 of 2
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
Derivation of Attrition and CWIP Adj. Charges
{000's)
170 Basis Point Attrition Adj. Charge
Total Inc. in Orig. Cost Rev. Req. Staff Surrebuttal with 170 Basis Point Attrition Adj. $ 258,012
Less Staff Proposed Rev. Req. $ 191,563
Attrition Rev. Req. from Revised A-1 with 170 Basis Point Attrition Adj. $ 66,449
.APS S.F.R Schedule H-2 MWH sales 26,513,307
170 Basis Point Atirition Adj. per kWh charge $ 0.00251
350 Basis Point Attrition Adj. Charge
Total Inc. in Orig. Cost Rev. Req. Staff Surrebuttal with 350 Basis Point Attrition Adj. $ 328,798
Less Staff Proposed Rev. Req. $ 191,563
Attrition Rev. Req. from Revised A-1 with 350 Basis Point Attrition Adj. $ 137,235
‘APS S.F.R Schedule H-2 MWH sales 26,513,307
350 Basis Point Attrition Adj. per kWh charge $ 0.00518
CWIP Adj. Charge
. Total Inc. in Orig. Cost Rev. Req. Staff Surrebuttal with CWIP Adj. 221,916
Less Staff Proposed Rev. Req. 191,563
CWIP Rev. Req. from Revised A-1 $ 30,353
APS S.F.R Schedule H-2 MWH sales 26,513,307
CWIP Adj. per kWh charge $ 0.00114

' See APS Exhibit No. 63, Pg. 3, Column A, Ln. 8.

2 See Staff witness Dittmer's Revised Schedule A, Pg. 1, Column E, Ln. 7 from Staff's Surrebuttal Testimony.

® See APS Exhibit No. 63, Pg. 4, Column A, Ln. 8.
4 See APS Exhibit No. 63, Pg. 5, Column A, Ln. 8.
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APS EXHIBIT 63

APS Exhibit 63 provides the SFR Schedules that would
correspond with certain of the financial integrity
adjustments proposed by APS witnesses Wheeler and
Brandt. Its purpose is to demonstrate how such
adjustments can be integrated into an adjusted test year

revenue requirements calculation.

EXHIBIT
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APS EXHIBIT 63 - INDEX

Revenue Requirement Calculation -

With APS Attrition Adjustment of 170 Basis Points
Schedule A-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -

With APS Attrition Adjustment of 350 Basis Points
Schedule A-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -
With APS CWIP Adjustment
Schedules A-1, B, C-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -
With APS Plant-in-Service Adjustment
Schedules A-1, B, C-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -

With APS Attrition Adjustment of 170 Basis Points
And APS CWIP Adjustment

Schedules A-1, B, C-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttai Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -

With APS Attrition Adjustment of 170 Basis Points
And APS Plant-in-Service Adjustment

Schedules A-1, B, C-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -

With APS Attrition Adjustment of 350 Basis Points
And APS CWIP Adjustment

Schedules A-1, B, C-1 )

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -

With APS Attrition Adjustment of 350 Basis Points
And APS Plant-in-Service Adjustment

Schedules A-1, B, C-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -
With APS Depreciation Adjustment
Schedules A-1, C-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Revenue Requirement Calculation -
With APS Attrition Adjustment of 350 Basis Points

And APS Plant-in-Service Adjustment and APS Depreciation Adjustment

Schedules A-1, B, C-1
Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

Cost of Capital Calculation --

With APS Attrition Adjustment of 170 Basis Points
And APS Attrition Adjustment of 350 Basis Points
Schedule D-1

Based on Staff Surrebuttal Proposal

APS EXHIBIT 63
Page 2 of 28
Submitted 11/3/2006

Page 3

Page 4.

Pages 5 -7

Pages 8 — 10

Pages 11 ~ 13

Pages 14 — 16

Pages 17 - 19

Pages 20 - 22

Pages 23 ~ 24

Pages 25 - 27

Page 28
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
Computation of Increase in Gross Revenue Requirements
ACC Jurisdictional
Adjusted Test Year Ended 09/30/2005
Schedule A-1
(Dollars in Thousands)

(a) (b) (c)

Staff Surrebuttal Proposal
With APS Aftrition Adjustment of 170 Basis Points

[;\;T Description Original Cost RCND Fair Value

1 Adjusted Rate Base 4,402,377 7,710,492 6,056,435
2 Adjusted Operating Income % 237,636 237,636 237,636
3 Current Rate of Return 5.40% 3.08% 3.92%
4 Required Operating Income 394,893 394,893 394,893
5 Required Rate of Return ¥ 8.97% 5.12% 6.52%
6 Operating Income Deficiency 157,257 157,257 157,257
7 Gross Revenue Conversion Factor 1.6407 1.6407 1.6407
8 Total Increase in Revenue Requirements 258,012 258,012 258,012
9 Total Sales to Ultimate Retail Customers 2,127,322 2,127,322 2,127,322
10 Percentage Rate Increase 1213% 12.13% 12.13%

1/ See Revised Joint Accounting Schedules of the ACC Ultilities Division Staff filed with Staff Surrebuttal 9/27/06,
Revised Schedule B, page 1 of 2, column {D)

2/ See Revised Joint Accounting Schedules of the ACC Utilities Division Staff filed with Staff Surrebuttal 9/27/06,
Revised Schedule C, page 1 of 4, column (C)

3/ See APS Exhibit 63, page 28 of 28, column (h); includes attrition adjustment of 170 basis points

4/ Does not include EPS or EIC proposals
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
Computation of increase in Gross Revenue Requirements
ACC Jurisdictional
Adjusted Test Year Ended 09/30/2005
Schedule A-1
(Dollars in Thousands)

(a) (b} (¢

Staff Surrebuttal Proposal
With APS Attrition Adjustment of 350 Basis Points

l;\;r: Description Original Cost RCND Fair Value’

1 Adjusted Rate Base " 4,402,377 7,710,492 6,056,435
2 Adjusted Operating Income ¥ 237,636 237,636 237,636
3 Current Rate of Return 5.40% 3.08% 3.92%
4 Required Operating Income 438,037 438,037 438,037
5 Required Rate of Return ¥ 9.95% 5.68% 7.23%
6 Operating Income Deficiency 200,401 200,401 200,401
7 Gross Revenue Conversion Factor 1.6407 1.6407 1.6407
8 Total Increase in Revenue Requirements 328,798 328,798 328,798
9 Total Sales to Ultimate Retail Customers 2,127,322 2,127,322 2,127,322
10 Percentage Rate Increase 15.46% : 15.46% 15.46%

1/ See Revised Joint Accounting Schedules of the ACC Utilities Division Staff filed with Staff Surrebuttal 9/27/06,
Revised Schedule B, page 1 of 2, column (D)

2/ See Revised Joint Accounting Schedules of the ACC Utilities Division Staff filed with Staff Surrebuttal 9/27/06,
Revised Schedule C, page 1 of 4, column (C)

3/ See APS Exhibit 63, page 28 of 28, column (); includes attrition adjustment of 350 basis points

4/ Does not include EPS or EIC proposals
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